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This is further to our disclosure dated August 22, 2025 wherein Rathi Bars Limited (‘Company’) 
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on September 16, 2025.  
 
Please find enclosed herewith the 32nd Annual Report of Rathi Bars Limited for the Financial Year 
2024-25 along with the Notice of the 32nd AGM (‘Annual Report’). The Annual Report is available 
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NOTICE 

 

Notice is hereby given that the Thirty Second (32nd) Annual General Meeting (“AGM”) of the members of 

Rathi Bars Limited (“The Company”) will be held on Tuesday, 16th day of September 2025 at 12:30 p.m. 

IST through video conferencing (“VC”) / other audio-visual means (“OAVM”) to transact the following 

business: 

 

ORDINARY BUSINESS: 

 

1. ADOPTION OF AUDITED STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS: 

 

To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Standalone Financial Statements of the Company for the 

financial year ended 31st March, 2025 together with the Reports of the Board of Directors and Auditors 

thereon. 

 

2. APPOINTMENT OF DIRECTOR RETIRING BY ROTATION: 

 

To appoint a director in place of Mr. Anurag Rathi (DIN: 00063345), Managing Director as Director, who 

retires by rotation, and being eligible, offers himself for reappointment. 

 

SPECIAL BUSINESS: 

 

3. REGULARISATION OF MR. HUKUM SINGH (DIN: 07989600) 

 

To consider and, if thought fit, to pass with or without modification, the following resolution as an 

Ordinary Resolution: 

 

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 152, 161 and other applicable provisions of the 

Companies Act, 2013, Regulation 17 and other applicable provisions of the Securities and Exchange Board 

of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations 2015, including any statutory 

modification(s) or re-enactment (s) thereof for the time being in force, Mr. Hukum Singh (DIN: 07989600), 

who was appointed as an Additional Director, Non-Executive Director of the Company w.e.f. October 25, 

2024 to hold office till the date of this Annual General Meeting, be and is hereby appointed as Non-

Executive Director of the Company, liable to retire by rotation. 

 

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT any Director of the Company be and is hereby authorized to do all such 

acts, deeds, matters and things as may be considered necessary, desirable or expedient to give effect to the 

above resolution including but not limited to filing the required forms with the Registrar of Companies and 

such other authorities as may be required.” 

 

4. RATIFICATION OF REMUNERATION OF COST AUDITORS: 

 

To consider and, if thought fit, to pass with or without modification, the following resolution as an 

Ordinary Resolution: 

 

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to Section 148(3) and other applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies 

Act, 2013 (including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment(s) thereof, for the time being in force), 

and the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended from time to time, the Company hereby 

ratifies the remuneration of Rs. 25,000/- (Rupees Twenty-Five Thousand Only) plus applicable taxes and 

reimbursement of out-of-pocket expenses payable to Avnesh Jain & Co, Cost Accountants, who have been 

appointed by the Board of Directors on the recommendation of the Audit Committee, as the Cost Auditors 

of the Company, to conduct the audit of the cost records maintained by the Company for the Financial Year 

ending March 31, 2026.” 
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5. APPOINTMENT OF SECRETARIAL AUDITOR OF THE COMPANY FOR A PERIOD OF 5 

(FIVE) CONSECUTIVE YEARS: 

 

To Consider, and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s), the following resolution as an 

Ordinary Resolution:  

 

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”) and 

all other applicable provisions of the Act and Rules made thereunder, Regulation 24A and other applicable 

Regulations of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 

Requirements) Regulations, 2015, including any statutory amendment(s), modification(s) or re-

enactment(s) thereof, for the time being in force, and pursuant to the recommendation of the Board of 

Directors, M/s Siya Ram & Associates, Company Secretaries (Peer Reviewed FRN: I2014DE1146800) be 

and is hereby appointed as the Secretarial Auditor of the Company to conduct the secretarial audit of the 

Company for a period of 5 (Five) consecutive years, commencing from the financial year 2025-26 till 

financial year 2029-30 at a professional fees as determined by the Board of Directors. 

 

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors be and is hereby authorized to do all such acts, 

deeds, matters and things as may be considered necessary, desirable or expedient to give effect to the above 

resolution.” 

 

6. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS WITH RATHI SPECIAL STEELS LIMITED: 

 

To Consider and, if thought fit, to pass with or without modification, the following resolution as an 

Ordinary Resolution:  

 

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to Section 188 and all other applicable provisions, if any of the Companies 

Act, 2013  (‘Act’) and Regulation 23(4) and other applicable regulations of the Securities and Exchange 

Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosures Requirements) Regulations, 2015, and provisions of , 

the approval of the members of the Company be and is hereby accorded to the Board of Directors of the 

Company to enter into, contract(s)/ arrangement(s)/ transaction(s) (whether by way of an individual 

transaction or transactions taken together or series of transactions or otherwise) as mentioned in the 

explanatory statement with Rathi Special Steels Limited accordingly a related party of Rathi Bars Limited, 

on such terms and conditions as may be agreed between the Company and Rathi Special Steels Limited, 

for an aggregate value of up to Rs. 150 crores to be entered during FY 2025-26, subject to such 

contract(s)/arrangement(s)/ transaction(s) being carried out at arm’s length and in the ordinary course of 

business of the Company. 

 

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of the Company, be and is hereby authorized to 

take such steps as may be necessary for obtaining approvals, statutory, contractual or otherwise, in relation 

to the above and to settle all matters arising out of the Company and incidental thereto, and to sign and 

execute all deeds, applications, documents and writing that may be required, on behalf of the Company and 

generally to do all acts, deeds, matters and things that may be necessary, proper, expedient or incidental 

thereto for the purpose of giving effect to this Resolution.”  

 

7. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS WITH BHIWADI IRON PRIVATE LIMITED: 

 

To Consider and, if thought fit, to pass with or without modification, the following resolution as an 

Ordinary Resolution:  

 

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to Regulation 23(4) and other applicable Regulations of the Securities and 

Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosures Requirements) Regulations, 2015, and 

provisions of Section 188 and all other applicable provisions, if any of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘Act’), 

the approval of the members of the Company be and is hereby accorded to the Board of Directors of the 

Company to enter into, contract(s)/ arrangement(s)/ transaction(s) (whether by way of an individual 

transaction or transactions taken together or series of transactions or otherwise) as mentioned in the 

explanatory statement with Bhiwadi Iron Private Limited accordingly a related party of Rathi Bars Limited, 

on such terms and conditions as may be agreed between the Company and Bhiwadi Iron Private Limited, 
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for an aggregate value of up to Rs. 175 crores to be entered during FY 2025-26, subject to such 

contract(s)/arrangement(s)/ transaction(s) being carried out at arm’s length and in the ordinary course of 

business of the Company. 

 

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of the Company, be and is hereby authorized to 

take such steps as may be necessary for obtaining approvals, statutory, contractual or otherwise, in relation 

to the above and to settle all matters arising out of the Company and incidental thereto, and to sign and 

execute all deeds, applications, documents and writing that may be required, on behalf of the Company and 

generally to do all acts, deeds, matters and things that may be necessary, proper, expedient or incidental 

thereto for the purpose of giving effect to this Resolution.” 

 

8. RE-APPOINTMENT OF MR. ANURAG RATHI (DIN: 00063345) AS MANAGING DIRECTOR 

OF THE COMPANY: 

 

To Consider and, if thought fit, to pass with or without modification, the following resolution as a 

Special Resolution:  

 

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 196, 197, 203 and Schedule V of the 

Companies Act, 2013 and Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 

2014 and the Articles of Association of the Company and recommendation of Nomination and 

Remuneration Committee, Anurag Rathi (DIN: 00063345), be and is hereby re appointed as the Managing 

Director of the Company for a period of Five years with effect from 21st day of January, 2026 on such 

terms and conditions with the liberty given to the Board of Directors to alter and vary the terms and 

conditions of the said reappointment and/or remuneration in such manner as may be agreed to by and 

between the Company and Mr. Anurag Rathi provided, however, such alterations are within the maximum 

limits laid down in the Companies Act, 2013 for the time being in force.” 

 

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board be and is hereby authorized to do all the acts and take such 

steps as may be necessary, proper or expedient to give effect to this resolution.” 

 

9. RE-APPOINTMENT OF MR. UDDHAV RATHI (DIN: 06604905) AS WHOLE TIME DIRECTOR 

OF THE COMPANY: 

 

To Consider and, if thought fit, to pass with or without modification, the following resolution as a 

Special Resolution:  

 

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 196, 197, 203 and Schedule V of the 

Companies Act, 2013 and Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 

2014 and the Articles of Association of the Company & recommendation of Nomination and Remuneration 

Committee, Mr. Uddhav Rathi (DIN: 06604905), be and is hereby reappointed as Whole 

Time Director of the Company for a period of Five years with effect from 21st day of January, 2026 on 

such terms and conditions, with the liberty given to the Board of Directors to alter and vary the terms and 

conditions of the said reappointment and/or remuneration in such manner as may be agreed to by 

and between the Company and Mr. Uddhav Rathi provided however, such alterations are within the 

maximum limits laid down in the Companies Act, 2013 for the time being in force.” 

 

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of the Company, be and is hereby authorized to 

take all such steps as may be necessary, proper and expedient to give complete effect to this resolution.” 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Date: 22.08.2025 

Place: New Delhi 

 

By order of the Board of Directors 

For Rathi Bars Limited 

 

 

 

SD/- 

Bharti Chitkara 

(Company Secretary cum Compliance Officer) 
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NOTES: 

 

1. An explanatory statement pursuant to Section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’) relating 

to the special business to be transacted at the Annual General Meeting is annexed hereto. 

 

2. The relevant details, pursuant to Regulation 36(3) of the SEBI (LODR) Regulations and Secretarial 

Standard on General Meetings as issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India, in respect 

of Director seeking appointment / re-appointment at this AGM is also annexed as “Annexure - 1” 

of this notice. 

 

3. In view of the MCA Circular dated September, 19 2024 read with Circulars Dated May 5, 2020, May 

5, 2022 and December 28, 2022 issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA Circulars”) and 

SEBI Circular dated October 3, 2024 and other notification in force, the 32nd AGM of the Company 

is being conducted through VC/OAVM facility, without physical presence of members at a common 

venue. The deemed venue for the 32nd AGM shall be the Registered Office of the Company. 

 

4. In terms of the MCA and SEBI Circular(s) as mentioned above, physical attendance of Members at 

the AGM and appointment of proxies has been dispensed with. Accordingly, the Attendance Slip, 

Proxy Form and Route Map are not annexed to this Notice. As the meeting is held through VC/ 

OVAM, appointment of proxy to attend and cast vote on behalf of the member is not available. 

However, in pursuance of Section 112 and Section 113 of the Act, representatives of the Member 

may be appointed for the purpose of casting vote through remote e-voting prior to the AGM, 

participation in the 32nd AGM through VC/OAVM facility and for e-voting during the AGM. 

 

5. In line with the Circulars of MCA & SEBI, the Notice of the 32nd AGM along with Annual Report is 

being sent by e-mail to all those members, whose e-mail IDs were registered with the Company/ 

Depository. Further, a letter providing a weblink for accessing the Notice and Annual Report for FY 

2024-25 is being sent to those shareholders who have not registered their email address. Annual 

Report including Notice are also available on the website of the Company at  http://rathisteels.com/ 

and on the website of Stock Exchanges i.e. BSE Limited at www.bseindia.com. Notice is also 

available on the website of NSDL (agency for providing the Remote e-Voting facility) i.e. www. 

evoting.nsdl.com. 

 

6. In case of joint holders attending the AGM, the Member whose name appears as the first holder in 

the order of names as per the Register of Members of the Company will be entitled to vote at the 

AGM. 

 

7. Pursuant to Section 113 of the Act, Institutional/Corporate Shareholders (i.e. other than individuals/ 

Hindu undivided family, non-resident individuals. etc.) are required to send a scanned copy (PDF/ 

JPG Format) of its Board or governing body resolution/ authorization. etc., authorizing its 

representative to attend the AGM through VC/ OAVM on its behalf and to vote through remote e-

voting. The said certified true copy of the Board resolution should be sent to the Scrutiniser by email 

through its registered email address to pwrasso@gmail.com with a copy marked to 

rathibars@hotmail.com.  

 

8. The Company has fixed Tuesday, September 09, 2025 as the Cut-off date for determining the 

eligibility to vote on item(s) of business to be transacted at the 32nd AGM as detailed in notice. Any 

person who acquires shares of the Company and becomes a member of the Company after sending 

the Notice and is holding shares as of the cut-off date, may obtain the login ID and password by 

sending a request at investor@masserv.com. Any shareholder who disposes off his shareholding such 

that he/she is not a member as on the cut-off date should treat this Notice for information purposes 

only. Please note that a person, whose name is recorded in the Register of Members or in the Register 

of Beneficial Owners maintained by the depositories as on cut-off date only shall be entitled to avail 

the facility of remote e-voting or e-voting during the Meeting. If members opt for remote e-voting, 

then they should not vote at the Meeting. However, once an e-vote on a resolution is cast by a 

member, such member is not permitted to change it subsequently or cast the vote again. Members 
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who have cast their vote by remote e-voting prior to the date of the Meeting can attend the Meeting 

and participate in the Meeting but shall not be entitled to cast their vote again. 

 

9. The Board of Directors of the Company have appointed M/s Siya Ram & Associates, Company 

Secretaries (Peer Reviewed FRN: I2014DE1146800), as the Secretarial Auditor of the Company and 

Mr. Devesh Maheshwari, partner of M/s PWR Associates, Company Secretaries has been appointed 

as the Scrutinizer to scrutinize the votes cast by the shareholders in respect of items of business to 

be transacted at the 32nd AGM, in a fair and transparent manner. 

 

10. The Scrutiniser will, after the conclusion of e-voting at the AGM, scrutinise the votes cast at the 

AGM and votes cast through remote e-voting, make a consolidated Scrutiniser’s Report and submit 

the same to the Chairman or a person authorised by him in writing, who shall countersign the same 

and declare results (consolidated) within two working days from the conclusion of the AGM. 

 

11. The results of the voting indicating the number of votes cast in favour or against each of the 

Resolution(s), invalid votes and whether the Resolution(s) have been carried out or not, together with 

the Scrutinizer’s Report, will be placed on the website of the Company at http://rathisteels.com/ and 

on the website of BSE Limited at www.bseindia.com immediately after the declaration of result by 

the Chairman or any person authorized by him in writing. 

 

12. In compliance with provisions of MCA & SEBI Circulars referred above in the Notice, Section 108 

of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 20 of the Companies (Management and Administration) 

Rules, 2014, Regulation 44 of SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015 and Secretarial Standard on General 

Meetings (SS-2) issued by ICSI, the Company is offering e-voting facility to the shareholders to 

enable them to cast their votes electronically on the items mentioned in the Notice. Those 

shareholders who do not opt to cast their vote through remote e-voting, may cast their vote through 

electronic voting system during the AGM. For this purpose, the Company has entered into an 

agreement with National Securities Depository Limited (NSDL) for facilitating voting through 

electronic means, as the authorised agency. The facility of casting votes by a member using remote 

e-Voting system as well as venue voting on the date of the AGM will be provided by NSDL.  

 

13. Mas Services Limited (“RTA”) will be providing the facility for remote e-voting, participation in the 

32nd AGM through VC/OAVM and voting during the 32nd AGM through electronic voting system. 

The remote e-voting period will begin on Saturday, September 13, 2025 at 09:00 A.M. (IST) will 

end on Monday, September 15, 2025 at 05:00 P.M. (IST). The remote e-Voting module shall be 

disabled by RTA for voting thereafter. 

 

14. The Members who have cast their votes by remote e-voting prior to the AGM may attend the AGM 

through VC/ OAVM but shall not be entitled to cast their votes again. 

 

15. Members may join the 32nd AGM through VC/OAVM on September 16, 2025 from 12:15 P.M. (IST) 

i.e. 15 minutes before the scheduled start time and the Company may close the window for joining 

the VC/ OAVM facility 15 minutes after the scheduled start time, i.e. by 12:45 P.M. (IST) on date of 

AGM.  

 

Please refer to detailed instructions for remote e-voting, attending the 32nd AGM through 

VC/OAVM and electronic voting during the AGM, as set out in this Notice. 

 

16. Statutory registers as prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013 and all documents referred to in the 

notice, will be available for inspection through electronic mode, without any fee, by the members 

from the date of circulation of this Notice, up to the date of AGM i.e. September 16, 2025. Members 

desiring for inspection of said documents are requested to send an e-mail to the Company at 

rathibars@hotmail.com. For inspection, the Shareholders may contact the Company Secretary at 

rathibars@hotmail.com at least 5 days before the date of the 32nd AGM. 

 

17. The SEBI has mandated submission of Permanent Account Number (PAN) by every participant in 

securities market. Shareholders holding shares in demat form are, therefore, requested to submit the 
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PAN to their respective Depository Participant(s). Shareholders holding shares in physical form can 

submit their PAN details to the Company or to the RTA (Link Intime India Private Limited). 

 

18. Members having any question or query related to agenda/ business of the 32nd AGM or would like 

to express their views or ask questions during the AGM, may register themselves as speaker by 

sending email to the company secretary on the Company’s investor email-id, i.e. 

rathibars@hotmail.com at least 10 (Ten) days prior to the date of meeting i.e., by September 06, 

2025 from their registered email address mentioning their Name, DP ID and Client ID/ Folio 

Number, PAN, Mobile Number. Request given on other email IDs will not be considered. Those 

Members who have registered themselves as a speaker will only be allowed to express their views/ 

ask questions during the AGM. The Company reserves the right to restrict the number of questions, 

number of speakers and their sequence depending on the availability of time for smooth conduct of 

the AGM. Please note that the Members’ questions will be answered only if they continue to hold 

the Equity Shares as of September 09, 2025 i.e., the cut-off date for e-voting. 

 

19. The Members can join the 32nd AGM in the VC/OAVM mode 15 minutes before and after the 

scheduled time of the commencement of the Meeting by following the procedure mentioned in the 

Notice. The facility of participation at the 32nd AGM through VC/OAVM will be made available for 

1000 members on first come first served basis. This will not include large Shareholders (Shareholders 

holding 2% or more shareholding), Promoters, Institutional Investors, Directors, Key Managerial 

Personnel, the Chairpersons of the Audit Committee, Nomination and Remuneration Committee and 

Stakeholders Relationship Committee, Auditors, Scrutinizer etc. who are allowed to attend the 32nd 

AGM without restriction on account of first come first served basis. 

 

20. The recorded transcript of the AGM will be hosted on the website of the Company. 

 

21. Members holding shares in physical form are requested to intimate immediately to the Registrar & 

Share Transfer Agent of the Company, MAS Services Limited having its registered office at T-34, 2nd 

Floor, Okhla Industrial Area, Phase - II, New Delhi - 110020 Ph: - 011-26387281/82/83 Fax: - 011-

26387384 quoting registered Folio No. (a) details of their bank account/change in bank account, if 

any, and (b) change in their address, if any, with pin code number.  

 

22. In case, shares are in demat form, members are requested to update their bank detail with their 

depository participant. 

 

23. The Equity Share capital of the Company is held by 9250 Shareholders as on 31.03.2025, out of 

which 9246 Shareholders holding almost 100.00 % of the capital are in dematerialized form and the 

balance 3 shareholders holding (4 shares) 0.00% of the capital are in physical form. The shareholders 

having shares in physical form are advised to dematerialize the shares at the earliest. 

 

24. In terms of Section 72 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the applicable provisions, the shareholders 

of the Company may nominate a person in whose name the shares held by him/ them shall vest in 

the event of his/ their death. Shareholders desirous of availing this facility may submit the requisite 

nomination form SH-13 duly filed in to the RTA of the Company. 

 

25. Any member requiring further information on the audited financial statements for the year ended 31st 

March, 2025, is requested to send the queries in writing to Company Secretary/ CFO, at least one 

week before the meeting. 

 

26. The procedure for E-voting has been comprehensively outlined and explained in detail within this 

Notice for the information and convenience of the shareholders. 

 

27. The voting rights of shareholders shall be in proportion to their shares of the paid-up equity share 

capital of the Company as on cut-off date i.e. September 09, 2025. 

28. In respect of the matters pertaining to nomination, power of attorney, change in name/ address etc., 

the members are requested to approach the Company’s Registrars and Share Transfer Agent, in 

respect of shares held in physical form and the respective Depository Participants, in case of shares 
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held in electronic form. In all correspondence with the Company/ Registrar and Share Transfer 

Agent, members are requested to quote their folio numbers or DP ID and Client ID for physical or 

electronic holdings respectively. 

 

29. Members who hold shares in multiple folios in identical names or joint holding in the same order of 

names are requested to send the share certificates to the Registrar, for consolidation into a single 

folio.   

 

30. In case you have not registered your email id with depository or RTA you may registered your email 

id in following manner: 

 

Physical Holding Send form ISR-1, ISR-2 (in case signature of shareholder does not match 

with RTA record), SH-13 to RTA i.e. (MAS Services Limited, T-34, 2nd 

Floor Okhla Industrial Area Phase-II, New Delhi 110020. 

Demat Holding Please contact your Depositary Participant (DP) and register your email 

address as per the process advised by DP. 

 

 

EXPLANATORY STATEMENT PURSUANT TO SECTION 102(1) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 

2013 

 

ITEM NO. 3: REGULARISATION OF MR. HUKUM SINGH (DIN: 07989600): 

 

Section 152(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”) provides that save as otherwise expressly provided in 

the Act, every Director shall be appointed by the Company in general meeting. 

 

Pursuant to Section 161(1) of the Act, the Board of Directors (the “Board”), on the recommendation of the 

Nomination and Remuneration Committee, appointed Mr. Hukum Singh (DIN: 07989600) as an Additional 

Non-Executive Director, liable to retire by rotation, with effect from October 10, 2024, to hold office up to 

the date of ensuing Annual General Meeting (“AGM”). 

 

On the basis of the recommendation made by the Nomination and Remuneration Committee of the Board 

of the Company, the Board proposes to regularise Mr. Hukum Singh as a Non-Executive Director. 

 

Mr. Hukum Singh has also given his consent to act as a Director in compliance with the provisions of 

Section 152 of the Act. A detailed profile of Mr. Hukum Singh as required under Regulation 36(3) of the 

SEBI LODR Regulations and Secretarial Standard-2 issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of 

India is attached as an Annexure-1 to this Notice. 

 

It is proposed to appoint Mr. Hukum Singh as a Non-Executive Director of the Company, liable to retire 

by rotation, in compliance with the provisions of Section 152, 160 read with relevant rules and regulations 

under SEBI LODR, by passing an Ordinary Resolution. 

 

In the opinion of the Board, Mr. Hukum Singh possess relevant expertise / experience and fulfils the 

conditions specified in the Act and the SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015 for appointment as a director. 

 

The terms and conditions of appointment of Mr. Hukum Singh as a Non-Executive Director shall be open 

for inspection at the Registered Office of the Company during normal business hours on any working day 

except Saturdays, upto the date of the Annual General Meeting. 

 

Save and except Mr. Hukum Singh and his relatives, none of the other Directors, Key Managerial Personnel 

or their relatives are concerned or interested, financially or otherwise, in the resolution set out at Item No. 

4 of the Notice. 

 

The Board recommends the resolution set out as Item no. 3 of the Notice for approval by the Members of 

the Company as a Special Resolution. 
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ITEM NO. 4: RATIFICATION OF COST AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION: 

 

As per Section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, 

the appointment of Cost Auditor shall be made by the Board of Directors on such remuneration as may be 

ratified by the Shareholders. Under the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, the Board while 

appointing the cost auditor is required to approve the remuneration payable to them and the remuneration 

so approved by the Board shall be ratified by the Shareholders. 

 

Accordingly, as recommended by the Audit Committee, the Board of Directors has appointed M/s Avnesh 

Jain & Co., Cost Accountants (FRN: 101048), as Cost Auditor of the Company for the FY 2025-26 at a 

remuneration of 25,000/- (Rupees Twenty-Five Thousand Only) (Inclusive of out-of-pocket expenses) plus 

applicable taxes.  

 

M/s Avnesh Jain & Co. has furnished a certificate regarding their eligibility for appointment as Cost 

Auditors of the Company. M/s Avnesh Jain & Co. has vast experience in the field of Cost Audit and has 

conducted the audit of cost records of the Company for the past several years under the provisions of the 

Companies Act, 2013. 

 

The ratification of the shareholders is sought by passing an ordinary resolution as set out at item no. 4 in 

the notice. 

 

The Board of Directors recommends the passing of the Resolution contained in this Item no.4 of the 

accompanying Notice.  

 

None of the Directors or Key Managerial Personnel or their relatives have any concern or interest, financial 

or otherwise, in passing of the said resolution, other than the extent of their holding in the securities of the 

Company, if any. 

 

ITEM NO. 5: APPOINTMENT OF SECRETARIAL AUDITOR OF THE COMPANY FOR A 

PERIOD OF 5 (FIVE) CONSECUTIVE YEARS: 

 

In accordance with the provisions of Section 204 and other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 

2013, read with Rule 9 of the Companies (Appointment & Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 

2014 (including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment(s) thereof, for the time being in force) (“the 

Act”), every listed company and certain other class of companies as prescribed under the Act, is required 

to annex a Secretarial Audit Report, issued by a Practicing Company Secretary, to their Board’s report, 

prepared under Section 134(3) of the Act.  

 

Furthermore, pursuant to recent amendments to Regulation 24A of the Securities and Exchange Board of 

India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations 2015 (“SEBI (LODR) Regulations”), 

every listed entity shall undertake a Secretarial Audit by a Secretarial Auditor who shall be peer reviewed 

company secretary and be appointed/re-appointed with the approval of the shareholders in its AGM, on the 

recommendation of the Board of Directors. The appointment of Secretarial Auditor in case of Secretarial 

Audit firm cannot be more two terms of 5(Five) consecutive years.  

 

Accordingly, the Board of Directors of the Company at its meeting held on August 22, 2025 has 

recommended to appoint M/s Siya Ram & Associates, Company Secretaries (Peer Reviewed FRN: 

I2014DE1146800), who has been selected through the applications invited from various professionals for 

appointment as the Secretarial Auditor of the Company to conduct the secretarial audit of the Company at 

annual professional fees of Rs. 25,000/- plus applicable taxes (Rupees Twenty-Five Thousand Only) for a 

period of 5 (Five) consecutive years, commencing from the financial year 2025-26 till 2029-30, as 

Secretarial Auditor of the Company to conduct the secretarial audit of the Company for a period of 5 (Five) 

consecutive years, commencing from the financial year 2025-26 till 2029-30. M/s Siya Ram & Associates, 

Company Secretaries is a well-established & recognized firm (FRN: I2014DE1146800) of Company 

Secretaries in Delhi NCR. The firm is having experience of more than 10 years in the professional services 

of Company Secretaries. 
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M/s Siya Ram & Associates, Company Secretaries has provided its consent to act as the Secretarial Auditors 

of the Company and has confirmed that the proposed appointment, if made, will be in compliance with the 

provisions of the Act and the SEBI (LODR) Regulations.  

 

The Board of Directors recommends the passing of the Resolution contained in this Item no. 5 of the 

accompanying Notice. 

 

None of the Directors or Key Managerial Personnel or their relatives have any concern or interest, financial 

or otherwise, in passing of the said resolution, other than the extent of their holding in the securities of the 

Company, if any. 

 

ITEM NO 6: MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS WITH RATHI SPECIAL STEELS 

LIMITED 

 

The Company is carrying business transactions with Rathi Special Steels Limited (a related party) for the 

sale/purchase of steel products. Pursuant to Section 188 (1) of the Companies Act, 2013, the Company can 

enter into business transactions at arm’s length with related party only with the approval of shareholders 

accorded by way of a special resolution and therefore, the Board hereby proposes and recommends the 

business transactions to the extent of Rs. 150 Crores (Rupees One Hundred Fifty Crore) per annum, to the 

shareholders for their approval in the forthcoming AGM. 

 

The resolution at Item No. 6 is recommended for approval by the Members. 

 

Management of both the companies is common and managed by family members except the independent 

directors and they are concerned or interested in the Resolution only to the extent of their shareholding. 

 

Details of the proposed transactions between RBL and RSSL, being related parties are as follows:  

 

Information pursuant to SEBI circular no. SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD1/CIR/P/2021/662 dated November 22, 

2021 

 

S. No. Description Details 

1 Name of the Related Party Rathi Special Steels Limited 

2 Nature of relationship Common Management 

3 Nature, material terms, monetary value 

and particulars of contracts or 

arrangement 

sale/purchase of steel products 

4 Tenure of the proposed transaction 1 Year, i.e; 2025-26 

5 Value of the proposed transaction Rs. 150 Crores 

6 Any advance paid or received for the 

contract or arrangement, if any 

None 

7 A statement that the valuation or other 

external report, if any, relied upon by the 

listed entity in relation to the proposed 

transaction will be made available 

through the registered email address of 

the shareholders 

All the related party transactions are carried 

at arm’s length price. Therefore, no 

separate/external valuation is carried out. 

Comparatives can be made available as and 

when required. 

8 Percentage of the Company’s annual 

consolidated turnover for the immediately 

preceding Financial Year 2024-25, that is 

represented by the value of the proposed 

RPT 

30.22% 

9 Justification for why the proposed 

transaction is in the interest of the listed 

entity 

will help the Company achieve synergies 

and economies of scale and will be in the 

best interest of the members 
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10 If the transactions relates to any loans, 

inter-corporate deposits, advances or 

investments made or given by the listed 

entity or its subsidiary 

Not Applicable 

11 Company’s Audit and Risk Management 

Committee approval 

The proposed transactions have been 

unanimously approved and recommended 

by the Audit Committee of Rathi Bars 

Limited which comprises of Independent 

Directors. 

12 Counter party's Board and Audit 

Committee approval 

These proposed transactions have also been 

approved by the Board and Audit 

Committee of Rathi Special Steels Limited. 

 

ITEM NO 7: MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS WITH BHIWADI IRON 

PRIVATE LIMITED 

 

The Company is carrying business transactions with Bhiwadi Iron Private Limited (a related party) for the 

sale/purchase of steel products. Pursuant to Section 188 (1) of the Companies Act, 2013, the Company can 

enter into business transactions with related party only with the approval of shareholders accorded by way 

of a special resolution and therefore, the Board hereby proposes and recommends the business transaction 

to the extent of Rs.175 Crore (Rupees One Hundred Seventy-Five Crore) per annum, to the shareholders 

for their approval in the forthcoming AGM. 

 

The resolution at Item No. 7 is recommended for approval by the Members. 

 

Management of both the companies is common and managed by family members except the independent 

directors and they are concerned or interested in the Resolution only to the extent of their shareholding. 

 

Details of the proposed transactions between Rathi Bars Limited and Bhiwadi Iron Private Limited, being 

related parties of the Company are as follows:  

 

Information pursuant to SEBI circular no. SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD1/CIR/P/2021/662 dated November 22, 

2021: 

 

S. 

No. 

Description Details 

1 Name of the Related Party Bhiwadi Iron Private Limited 

2 Nature of relationship Common Management 

3 Nature, material terms, monetary value and 

particulars of contracts or arrangement 

sale/purchase of steel products 

4 Tenure of the proposed transaction 1 Year, i.e; 2025-26 

5 Value of the proposed transaction Rs. 175 Crores 

6 Any advance paid or received for the contract 

or arrangement, if any 

None 

7 A statement that the valuation or other 

external report, if any, relied upon by the 

listed entity in relation to the proposed 

transaction will be made available through the 

registered email address of the shareholders 

All the related party transactions are carried 

at arm’s length price. Therefore, no 

separate/external valuation is carried out. 

Comparatives can be made available as and 

when required. 

8 Percentage of the Company’s annual 

consolidated turnover for the immediately 

preceding Financial Year 2024-25, which is 

represented by the value of the proposed RPT 

35.26% 

9 Justification for why the proposed transaction 

is in the interest of the listed entity 

will help the Company achieve synergies 

and economies of scale and will be in the 

best interest of the members 
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10 If the transactions relate to any loans, inter-

corporate deposits, advances or investments 

made or given by the listed entity or its 

subsidiary 

Not Applicable 

11 Company’s Audit and Risk Management 

Committee approval 

The proposed transactions have been 

unanimously approved and recommended 

by the Audit Committee of Rathi Bars 

Limited which comprises of Independent 

Directors. 

12 Counter party's Board and Audit Committee 

approval 

These proposed transactions have also been 

approved by the Board. 

 

ITEM NO 8: RE-APPOINTMENT OF MR. ANURAG RATHI (DIN: 00063345) AS MANAGING 

DIRECTOR OF THE COMPANY: 

 

Mr. Anurag Rathi (DIN: 00063345) is the Director of the Company since incorporation and now in the 

Board Meeting held on 22nd day of August, 2025, Subject to the approval of shareholders, he has been 

re-appointed as the Managing Director pursuant to provisions of Section 196, 197, 203, Rules and Schedule 

V (Part) of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules made there under and the Articles of Association of the 

Company. Therefore, his re-appointment as Managing Director requires the approval of shareholders 

through Special Resolution. 

 

The duties of the Managing Director shall be discharged subject to the superintendence, control and 

direction of the Board and he shall perform on behalf of the Company in the ordinary course of business 

all such acts, deeds, and things, which in the ordinary course of business, he may consider necessary or 

proper or in the interest of the Company. 

 

A detailed profile of Mr. Anurag Rathi as required under Regulation 36(3) of the SEBI LODR Regulations 

and Secretarial Standard-2 issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India is attached as an 

Annexure-1 to this Notice. 

 

Terms & Conditions 

1. Designation: Managing Director 

2. Term: 5 years with effect from 21.01.2026 

3. Salary: The Board has the liberty to fix a remuneration and other perquisites pursuant to the provisions 

of section 196, 197, 203 and Schedule V (Part) of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules made there under 

and the Articles of Association of the Company but the overall remuneration shall be within the limits of 

the Schedule V of the Companies Act, 2013. 

 

The resolution at Item No. 8 is recommended for approval by the Members. 

 

None of the Directors or Key Managerial Personnel of the Company and/or their relatives, other than 

Mr. Uddhav Rathi, in his personal capacity is concerned or interested, financially or otherwise, in this 

resolution. The Board recommends this resolution for your Approval. 

 

ITEM NO 9:  RE-APPOINTMENT OF MR. UDDHAV RATHI (DIN: 06604905) AS WHOLE TIME 

DIRECTOR OF THE COMPANY: 

 

Mr. Uddhav Rathi (DIN: 06604905) is the Director of the Company re-appointed as Whole Time Director 

and CFO of the Company in the Board Meeting held on 22nd day of August, 2025 pursuant to the provisions 

of the Companies Act, 2013.  

Therefore, his re-appointment as Whole Time Director requires the approval of shareholders through 

Special Resolution. 

 

The duties of the Whole Time Director shall be discharged subject to the superintendence, control and 

direction of the Board and he shall perform on behalf of the Company in the ordinary course of business 
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all such acts, deeds, and things, which in the ordinary course of business, he may consider necessary or 

proper or in the interest of the Company. 

 

A detailed profile of Mr. Uddhav Rathi as required under Regulation 36(3) of the SEBI LODR Regulations 

and Secretarial Standard-2 issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India is attached as an 

Annexure-1 to this Notice. 

 

 

Terms & Conditions 

1. Designation: Whole Time Director- CFO 

2. Term: 5 years with effect from 21.01.2026 

3. Salary: The Board has the liberty to fix a remuneration and other perquisites pursuant to the provisions 

of section 196, 197, 203 and Schedule V (Part II) of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules made there 

under and the Articles of Association of the Company but the overall remuneration shall be within the limits 

of the Schedule V of the Companies Act, 2013. 

 

The resolution at Item No. 9 is recommended for approval by the Members. 

 

None of the Directors or Key Managerial Personnel of the Company and/or their relatives, other than 

Mr. Anurag Rathi in his personal capacity is concerned or interested, financially or otherwise, in this 

resolution. The Board recommends this resolution for your Approval. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Date: 22.08.2025 

Place: New Delhi 

 

By order of the Board of Directors 

For Rathi Bars Limited 

 

 

SD/- 

Bharti Chitkara 

(Company Secretary cum Compliance Officer) 

 

 

ANNEXURE-1 

 

DETAILS OF DIRECTORS SEEKING APPOINTMENT, RE-APPOINTMENT AND FIXATION 

OF REMUNERATION AT THE 32ND ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING PURSUANT TO 

REGULATION 36(3) OF THE SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE BOARD OF INDIA (LISTING 

OBLIGATIONS AND DISCLOSURE REQUIREMENTS) REGULATIONS, 2015 AND 

SECRETARIAL STANDARD ON GENERAL MEETINGS (SS-2) ISSUED BY THE INSTITUTE 

OF COMPANY SECRETARIES OF INDIA. 

 

Name  Mr. Anurag Rathi Mr. Uddhav Rathi Mr. Hukum Singh 

DIN 00063345 06604905 07989600 

Date of Birth/age 26-11-1971 26-10-1991 13.10.1960 

Date of first 

appointment on the 

Board 

10-08-1993 13-02-2014 25-10-2024 

Qualifications Graduate Graduate Graduate 

Brief Resume Anurag Rathi is a Visionary 

Leader and the Managing 

Director of Rathi Steels Ltd, 

one of the most well-

established premium 

construction Steel brand in 

India. He has consistently 

demonstrated a 

Mr. Uddhav Rathi 

is an exceptional 

leader and serves as 

the Director of 

Rathi Steels Ltd, 

one of India’s most 

well-established 

and premium 

Mr. Hukum Singh is a 

seasoned professional 

with a rich background. 

A B.Com. graduate from 

Kurukshetra University, 

Kurukshetra (Haryana) 

in the year 1981.  
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commitment to excellence 

& Innovation. Born and 

raised in New Delhi, he 

completed his schooling at 

the prestigious Modern 

School, Vasant Vihar and 

pursued his education at 

Delhi University. His deep 

roots in the city have shaped 

his outlook and fuelled his 

passion for giving back to 

the community. Anurag 

Rathi is a member of 

various organisations. He is 

a member of the CII Delhi 

regional council also 

managing committee 

member of PHD. He was 

also the president of the 

Delhi Friend round table. 

He was also the secretary of 

the prestigious Rotary Club 

of Delhi Premier which 

achieved an extraordinary 

milestone, winning the 

highly coveted “Rotary 

International Programs of 

Scale grant. His journey is 

shining example of 

dedication, leadership and 

an unwavering commitment 

to service above self. His 

contribution to the 

community at large, 

continue to inspire and 

uplift all those around him. 

construction steel 

brands. 

With a 

specialization in 

Marketing and 

Finance, Mr. Rathi 

has consistently 

contributed his 

expertise and 

strategic vision to 

the sustained 

growth and overall 

well-being of the 

company. His 

dynamic leadership 

continues to play a 

pivotal role in 

strengthening Rathi 

Steels' position in 

the competitive 

steel industry. 

 

He served in the Indian 

Air Force from 1984 to 

1990. His corporate 

experience spans over 

two decades, including 

roles at Avery India 

Limited, Systopic Lab 

Limited, LG Electronics, 

and most recently, Rathi 

Bars Limited (2007-

2020). 

Nature of expertise in 

specific functional 

areas 

Managing Director of Rathi 

Bars Ltd and Rathi Special 

Steels Ltd alongwith 

directorship and member of 

others Rathi group 

companies 

Marketing and 

Finance 

Excise & Custom 

Disclosure of 

relationships between 

directors inter-se; 

Mr. Anurag Rathi is uncle of 

Mr. Uddhav Rathi 

Mr. Uddhav Rathi is 

the nephew of Mr. 

Anurag Rathi 

No relationship with 

other directors 

Names of listed entities 

in which the person 

also holds the 

directorship and the 

membership of 

Committees of the 

board along with listed 

entities from which the 

person has resigned in 

the past three years 

NIL NIL NIL 

 Terms and conditions 

of Appointment 

As decided by Board on 

recommendation of 

As decided by 

Board on 

As decided by Board on 

recommendation of 
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Nomination & 

Remuneration Committee  

recommendation of 

Nomination & 

Remuneration 

Committee 

Nomination & 

Remuneration 

Committee 

Directorships held in 

other public companies 

(excluding foreign 

companies and Section 

8 Companies) 

Rathi Special Steels 

Limited 

Rathi Special Steels 

Limited 

Gordhan Das Rathi 

Steels Limited 

Rathi Special Steels 

Limited 

Memberships/ 

Chairmanships of 

committees of other 

public companies 

(includes only Audit 

Committee and 

Stakeholders’ 

Relationship 

Committee). 

member of the CII Delhi 

regional council also 

managing committee 

member of PHD. 

Member of Audit 

Committee of Rathi 

Special Steels 

Limited 

NIL 

Number of meetings of 

the Board attended 

during the year 2024-

25 

11 11 3 

Relationship with other 

directors and key 

managerial personnel 

Mr. Anurag Rathi is uncle of 

Mr. Uddhav Rathi 

Mr. Uddhav Rathi is 

the nephew of Mr. 

Anurag Rathi 

No relationship with 

other directors 

Shareholding in the 

Company as on 31st 

March, 2025 

7.45% 5.26% NIL 

Listed Entities from 

which resigned as 

Director in past 3 Years 

NIL NIL NIL 

 

 

 

INSTRUCTIONS FOR E-VOTING 

 

The remote e-voting period begins on Saturday, September 13, 2025 at 09:00 A.M. (IST) and ends on 

Monday, September 15, 2025 at 05:00 P.M. (IST). The remote e-voting module shall be disabled for voting 

thereafter. The Members, whose names appear in the Register of Members/ Beneficial Owners as on the 

record date (cut-off date) i.e. Tuesday, September 09, 2025, are entitled to cast their vote electronically. The 

voting right of shareholders shall be in proportion to their share in the paid-up equity share capital of the 

Company as on the cut-off date, being Tuesday, September 09, 2025.  

 

In compliance with Regulation 44 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 

Regulations, 2015 and provisions of Section 108 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 20 of the 

Companies (Management and Administration) Amendment Rules, 2015, the Company is pleased to provide 

Members holding shares either in physical form or in dematerialized form the facility to exercise their right 

to vote at the Annual General Meeting (AGM) by electronic means and the business may be transacted 

through e-voting services provided by National Securities Depository Limited (NSDL). The instructions 

for e-voting areas under: 

 

The notice of the Annual General Meeting (AGM) of the Company inter alia indicating the process and 

manner of e-voting process along with printed Attendance Slip and Proxy Form is being dispatched to all 

the Members.  
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Shareholders are advised to update their mobile number and email Id correctly in their demat accounts to 

access e-Voting facility. 

 

LOGIN METHOD FOR INDIVIDUAL SHAREHOLDERS HOLDING SECURITIES IN DEMAT 

MODE 

 

A. INDIVIDUAL SHAREHOLDERS HOLDING SECURITIES IN DEMAT MODE WITH NSDL  

Method 1 - Individual Shareholders using NSDL IDeAS facility  

Shareholders who have registered for NSDL IDeAS facility: 

 

a) Existing IDeAS user can visit the e-Services website of NSDL Viz. https://eservices.nsdl.com either on 

a Personal Computer or on a mobile.  

b) On the e-Services home page click on the “Beneficial Owner” icon under “Login” which is available 

under ‘IDeAS’ section, this will prompt you to enter your existing User ID and Password. C) After 

successful authentication, you will be able to see e-Voting services under Value added services.  

d) Click on “Access to e-Voting” under e-Voting services and you will be able to see e-Voting page. e) 

Click on company name or e-Voting service provider name and you will be re-directed to e-Voting service 

provider website for casting your vote during the remote e-Voting period or joining virtual meeting & 

voting during the meeting. 

 

Or 

 

Shareholders who have not registered for NSDL IDeAS facility: 

 

a) If you are not registered for IDeAS e-Services, option to register is available at 

https://eservices.nsdl.com.  

b) Select “Register Online for IDeAS Portal” or click at 

https://eservices.nsdl.com/SecureWeb/IdeasDirectReg.jsp 

 

c) Enter 8-character DP ID, 8-digit Client ID, Mobile no, Verification code & click on “Submit”.  

d) Enter the last 4 digits of your bank account / generate ‘OTP’  

e) Post successful registration, user will be provided with Login ID and password. Follow steps given above 

in points (a-e). 

 

 

Shareholders/Members can also download 

NSDL Mobile App "NSDL Speede" facility by 

scanning the QR code mentioned below for 

seamless voting experience. 

 

 

 

METHOD 2 - Individual Shareholders directly visiting the e-voting website of NSDL  

 

a) Visit URL: https://www.evoting.nsdl.com  

b) Click on the “Login” tab available under ‘Shareholder/Member’ section.  

c) Enter User ID (i.e., your sixteen-digit demat account number held with NSDL), Password/OTP and a 

Verification Code as shown on the screen.  

d) After successful authentication, you will be redirected to NSDL Depository site wherein you can see e-

Voting page. Click on company name or eVoting service provider name and you will be redirected to e-

Voting service provider website for casting your vote during the remote eVoting period or joining virtual 

meeting & voting during the meeting. 

 

METHOD 3 - NSDL OTP based login 

 

a) Visit URL: https://eservices.nsdl.com/SecureWeb/evoting/evotinglogin.jsp    
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b) Enter your 8 - character DP ID, 8 - digit Client Id, PAN, Verification code and generate OTP. 

c) Enter the OTP received on your registered email ID/ mobile number and click on login.  

d) Post successful authentication, you will be re-directed to NSDL depository website wherein you will be 

able to see e-Voting services under Value added services. Click on “Access to e-Voting” under e-Voting 

services.  

e) Click on company name or e-Voting service provider name and you will be re-directed to e-Voting service 

provider website for casting your vote during the remote e-Voting period or joining virtual meeting & 

voting during the meeting. 

 

 

B. INDIVIDUAL SHAREHOLDERS HOLDING SECURITIES IN DEMAT MODE WITH CDSL 

 

METHOD 1 – Individual Shareholders registered with CDSL Easi/ Easiest facility  

Shareholders who have registered/ opted for CDSL Easi/ Easiest facility: 

 

a) Visit URL: https://web.cdslindia.com/myeasitoken/Home/Login or www.cdslindia.com   

b) Click on New System Myeasi Tab  

c) Login with existing my easi username and password  

d) After successful login, user will be able to see e-voting option. The e-voting option will have links of e-

voting service providers i.e., Mas Services, for voting during the remote e-voting period  

e) Click on company name or e-Voting service provider name and you will be redirected to e-Voting service 

provider website for casting your vote during the remote e-Voting period or joining virtual meeting & 

voting during the meeting. 

 

OR  

 

 

Shareholders who have not registered for CDSL Easi/ Easiest facility: 

 

a) To register, visit URL:  

https://web.cdslindia.com/myeasitoken/Registration/EasiRegistration  

https://web.cdslindia.com/myeasitoken/Registration/EasiestRegistration  

b) Proceed with updating the required fields.  

c) Post registration, user will be provided username and password.  

d) After successful login, user able to see e-voting menu.  

e) Click on company name or e-Voting service provider name and you will be redirected to e-Voting service 

provider website for casting your vote during the remote e-Voting period or joining virtual meeting & 

voting during the meeting. 

 

METHOD 2 - Individual Shareholders directly visiting the e-voting website of CDSL  

 

a) Visit URL: https://www.cdslindia.com  

b) Go to e-voting tab.  

c) Enter Demat Account Number (BO ID) and PAN No. and click on “Submit”.  

d) System will authenticate the user by sending OTP on registered Mobile and Email as recorded in Demat 

Account  

e) After successful authentication, click on company name or e-Voting service provider name and you will 

be redirected to e-Voting service provider website for casting your vote during the remote e-Voting period 

or joining virtual meeting & voting during the meeting. 

 

C. INDIVIDUAL SHAREHOLDERS HOLDING SECURITIES IN DEMAT MODE WITH 

DEPOSITORY PARTICIPANT 

 

Individual shareholders can also login using the login credentials of your demat account through your 

depository participant registered with NSDL / CDSL for e-voting facility: 

 

a) Login to DP website.  
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b) After Successful login, user shall navigate through “e-voting” option.  

c) Click on e-voting option, user will be redirected to NSDL/ CDSL Depository website after successful 

authentication, wherein user can see e-voting feature.  

d) After successful authentication, Click on company name or e-Voting service provider name and you will 

be redirected to e-Voting service provider website for casting your vote during the remote e-Voting period 

or joining virtual meeting & voting during the meeting. 

 

IN CASE OF MEMBERS RECEIVING PHYSICAL COPY OF NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL 

MEETING (FOR MEMBERS WHOSE EMAIL IDS ARE NOT REGISTERED WITH THE 

COMPANY/ DEPOSITORY PARTICIPANT(S) OR REQUESTING PHYSICAL COPY) 

 

a. Initial password is provided in the box overleaf. 

b. Please follow all steps given above 

 

Login Method for e-Voting for shareholders other than Individual shareholders holding securities in 

demat mode and shareholders holding securities in physical mode. 

 

1. Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the following URL: 

https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/ either on a Personal Computer or on a mobile. 

2. Once the home page of e-Voting system is launched, click on the icon “Login” which is 

available under ‘Shareholder/Member’ section. 

3. A new screen will open. You will have to enter your User ID, your Password/OTP and a 

Verification Code as shown on the screen. 

Alternatively, if you are registered for NSDL eservices i.e. IDEAS, you can log-in at 

https://eservices.nsdl.com/   with your existing IDEAS login. Once you log-in to NSDL eservices 

after using your log-in credentials, click on e-Voting and you can proceed to Step 2 i.e. Cast 

your vote electronically. 

4. Your User ID details are given below: 

 

Manner of holding shares i.e. Demat (NSDL or 

CDSL) or Physical 

Your User ID is: 

a) For Members who hold shares in demat 

account with NSDL. 

8 Character DP ID followed by 8 Digit Client ID 

For example, if your DP ID is IN300*** and 

Client ID is 12****** then your user ID is 

IN300***12******. 

b) For Members who hold shares in demat 

account with CDSL. 

16 Digit Beneficiary ID For example if your 

Beneficiary ID is 12************** then your 

user ID is 12************** 

c) For Members holding shares in Physical Form. EVEN Number followed by Folio Number 

registered with the company For example if folio 

number is 001*** and EVEN is 123456 then user 

5. ID is 123456001*** 

 

Helpdesk for Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode for any technical issues 

related to login through Depository i.e. NSDL and CDSL. 

 

Login type Helpdesk details 

Individual Shareholders holding securities in 

demat mode with NSDL 

Members facing any technical issue in login can 

contact NSDL helpdesk by sending a request at 

evoting@nsdl.co.in or call at: 022 - 4886 7000 

Individual Shareholders holding securities in 

demat mode with CDSL 

Members facing any technical issue in login can 

contact CDSL helpdesk by sending a request at 

helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com or contact at 

toll free no. 1800 22 55 33 
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Cast your vote electronically on NSDL e-Voting system. 

 

1. After successful login at Step 1, you will be able to see all the companies “EVEN” in which you are 

holding shares and whose voting cycle is in active status. 

2. Select “EVEN” of company for which you wish to cast your vote during the remote e-Voting period. 

3. Now you are ready for e-Voting as the Voting page opens. 

4. Cast your vote by selecting appropriate options i.e. assent or dissent, verify/modify the number of shares 

for which you wish to cast your vote and click on “Submit” and also “Confirm” when prompted. 

5. Upon confirmation, the message “Vote cast successfully” will be displayed. 

6. You can also take the printout of the votes cast by you by clicking on the print option on the confirmation 

page. 

7. Once you confirm your vote on the resolution, you will not be allowed to modify your vote. 

 

General Guidelines for shareholders 

 

1. Institutional shareholders (i.e. other than individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) are required to send scanned 

copy (PDF/JPG Format) of the relevant Board Resolution/ Authority letter etc. with attested specimen 

signature of the duly authorized signatory(ies) who are authorized to vote, to the Scrutinizer by e-mail 

to pwrasso@gmail.com with a copy marked to evoting@nsdl.co.in. Institutional shareholders (i.e. 

other than individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) can also upload their Board Resolution / Power of Attorney / 

Authority Letter etc. by clicking on "Upload Board Resolution / Authority Letter" displayed under "e-

Voting" tab in their login. 

 

2. It is strongly recommended not to share your password with any other person and take utmost care to 

keep your password confidential. Login to the e-voting website will be disabled upon five unsuccessful 

attempts to key in the correct password. In such an event, you will need to go through the “Forgot User 

Details/Password” or “Physical User Reset Password” option available on www.evoting.nsdl.com to 

reset the password.  

 

3. In case of any queries, you may refer the Frequently Asked Questions (FAQs) for Shareholders and e-

voting user manual for Shareholders available at the download section of www.evoting.nsdl.com or 

call on: 022 - 4886 7000 and 022 - 2499 7000 or send a request to Ms. Pallavi Mhatre, Senior Manager, 

NSDL at evoting@nsdl.co.in  

 

4. In terms of SEBI circular dated December 9, 2020 on e-Voting facility provided by Listed Companies, 

Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode are allowed to vote through their demat 

account maintained with Depositories and Depository Participants. Shareholders are required to 

update their mobile number and email ID correctly in their demat account in order to access e-Voting 

facility. 

 

Important note: Members who are unable to retrieve User ID/ Password are advised to use Forget User 

ID and Forget Password option available at abovementioned website. 
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BOARD’S REPORT 

To  

The Members of 

Rathi Bars Limited, 

 

Your directors present the Thirty Second (32nd) Annual Report on the business and operations of the 

Company along with the Audited Standalone Financial Statements of the Company for the financial year 

ended March 31, 2025. 

 

1. FINANCIAL RESULTS: 

 

The Company’s financial performance for the year ended 31st March, 2025 is summarized below: 

              

(Rs. In Lakhs) 

Particulars F.Y. 2024-2025 F.Y. 2023-2024 

Revenue from Operations 49,628.82 61,403.52 

Other Income 141.77 33.72 

Total Income 49,770.59 61,437.24 

Profit Before Interest, Depreciation and Tax 1,477.60 1,467.09 

Less: Interest 649.98 613.30 

Less: Depreciation 476.02 449.06 

Profit Before Tax 351.60 404.73 

Less: Provision for Tax  95.04 47.91 

Profit after Tax 256.56 356.82 

 

2. REVIEW OF OPERATIONS/ STATEMENT OF COMPANY’S AFFAIRS: 

 

During the year, the Company reported revenue from operations of Rs. 49,628.82 Lakhs as compared to 

Rs. 61,403.52 Lakhs in the previous year. There is a slight downfall in the revenue from operations of the 

Company as compared to the previous year. Due to decrease in Iron & Steel Price in both domestic and 

global market majorly due to uncertain market cues. Consequently, EBT has also decreased in FY 24-25 

to Rs. 351.60 Lakhs as compared to Rs. 404.73 Lakhs in the previous year. 

  

During the year, your Company had produced 92836.455 MT Steel Bars (Including trading purchase 

31712.170 MT) and 9608.025 MT Ingots/ Billets (Including trading purchase 9608.025 MT) as against 

production of 1,15,556.799 MT Steel Bars (including trading purchase of 33,891.690 MT) and 10,127.805 

Ingots/Billets (Including trading purchase 10,127.805 MT) during the corresponding period of last year. 

 

3. DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL (KMP): 

,  

The present Board of the Company is duly constituted. The Company has eminent individuals from diverse 

fields as Directors on its Board, who bring in the required skill, integrity, competence, expertise and 

experience that is required for making effective contribution to the Board. 

 

The composition of the Board of the Company as of 31st March 2025 is as under: 

 

Name Of the Director DIN Designation Date of Appointment 

Anurag Rathi 00063345 Managing Director 10/08/1993 

Uddhav Rathi 06604905 Whole-Time Director cum CFO 13/02/2014 

Sonali V Chitalkar 07602962 Independent Director 30/09/2016 

Rajendra Prasad 10057339 Independent Director 08/05/2023 

Shikha Chakraborty 08253713 Independent Director 12/10/2018 

Hukum Singh 07989600 Additional Non-Executive 

Director 

25/10/2024 
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a) Pursuant to Section 149 of the Companies Act, 2013, Ms. Sonali V Chitalkar, Ms. Shikha Chakraborty 

and Mr. Rajendra Prasad are the Independent Directors of the Company. 

 

*CHANGE IN DIRECTORS AND KMP 

 

• In accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Company’s Articles of 

Association, Mr. Anurag Rathi, Managing Director of the Company retires by rotation at the 

forthcoming Annual General Meeting and being eligible for re-appointment, has offered himself 

for re-appointment. He has confirmed that he is not disqualified under Section 164 of the 

Companies Act, 2013 and is eligible to be re-appointed as Director of the Company. 

 

• Mr. Chander Mohan, Non-Executive Director has resigned from the post of Director w.e.f. 

25.10.2024 And Mr. Hukum Singh was appointed as an Additional Non-Executive Director w.e.f.  

25.10.2024 and proposed to be regularized in the ensuing Annual General Meeting. 

 

• Ms. Anamika Shukla, Company Secretary and Compliance Officer of the Company has tendered 

her resignation vide her letter dated 09.12.2024 due to personnel and unavoidable circumstances 

which was accepted with immediate effect. 

 

• Ms. Bharti Chitkara, an Associate Member of Institute of Company Secretaries of India (ICSI) 

having Membership No. A72963 was appointed as the Company Secretary and Compliance Officer 

of the Company by the Board in their Board Meeting held on 11.02.2025. 

 

4. MEETINGS OF BOARD OF DIRECTORS: 

 

During the Financial Year 2024-25, the Company held Eleven (11) Board meetings of the Board of 

Directors as per Section 173 of the Companies Act, 2013. The provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 were 

adhered to while considering the time gap between two meetings. 

 

ATTENDANCE OF DIRECTORS IN BOARD MEETING: 

 

S. No. Name of the Director(s) Number of Meetings which 

director was entitled to attend 

Number of Meetings 

Attended 

1. Anurag Rathi 11 11 

2. Uddhav Rathi 11 11 

3. Chander Mohan 8 7 

4. Sonali V Chitalkar 11 10 

5. Rajendra Prasad 11 11 

6. Shikha Chakraborty 11 10 

7. Hukum Singh 3 3 

 

5. DECLARATION BY INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS: 

 

Ms. Shikha Chakraborty, Ms. Sonali V Chitalkar and Mr. Rajendra Prasad are the Independent Directors 

of the Company. The Company has received necessary declaration from each Independent Director under 

Section 149 (7) of the Companies Act, 2013, that they meet the criteria of independence laid down in 

Section 149(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 25 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 

Requirements) Regulations, 2015. 

 

6. DISCLOSURE OF RELATIONSHIPS BETWEEN DIRECTORS INTER-SE: 

 

Mr. Anurag Rathi, and Mr. Uddhav Rathi are related to each other in accordance with Section 2 (77) of the 

Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 4 of the Companies (Specification of Definitions Details) Rules, 2014 but 

Mr. Hukum Singh (Additional Non-Executive Director), Ms. Shikha Chakraborty, Ms. Sonali V Chitalkar 

and Mr. Rajendra Prasad (Independent Directors) of the Company, are not related to the other Directors of 

the Company. 
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7. REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS/ KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL (KMP)/ SENIOR 

MANAGEMENT: 

 

The remuneration paid to the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and Senior Management is in 

accordance with the Nomination and Remuneration Policy formulated in accordance with Section of the 

Act and Regulation 19 of the Listing Regulations. 

 

The information required under Section 197 of the Act read with Companies (Appointment and 

Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 in respect of Directors/ employees of the Company is 

as follows: 

 

S. 

No. 

Name Designation Remuneration 

paid for FY 

2024-25 (in Rs.) 

Ratio/ Times 

per Median of 

employee 

remuneration 

Percentage 

Increase/ 

decrease in the 

Remuneration 

1. Anurag Rathi 

 

Managing Director 21,60,000 8.99 0.00% 

2. Uddhav Rathi 

 

Whole-time Director 18,00,000 7.49 0.00% 

3. Chander Mohan Non-Executive 

Director 

1,18,032 0.49 -31.32% 

4. Rajendra Prasad Independent Director 50,000 0.21 0.00% 

5. Shikha 

Chakraborty 

Independent Director 50,000 0.21 0.00% 

6. Sonali V 

Chitalkar 

Independent Director 50,000 0.21 0.00% 

7. Hukum Singh Additional Non-

Executive Director 

Nil Nil Nil 

8. Anamika Shukla Company Secretary 5,38,837 2.24 -14.13% 

9. Bhari Chitkara Company Secretary 1,06,071 0.44 NA 

 

Notes: 

• The aforesaid details are calculated on the basis of remuneration for the financial year 2024-25 and 

include sitting fees paid to Directors during the financial year. 

• The remuneration to Directors is within the overall limits approved by the shareholders of the Company. 

• Percentage increase/ decrease in remuneration is not applicable in case of Mr. Anurag Rathi, Mr. 

Uddhav Rathi, Mr. Rajendra Prasad, Mrs. Shikha Chakraborty and Mrs. Sonali V Chitalkar as there is 

no increase/ decrease in the sitting fee or remuneration paid to them. 

• Percentage increase/ decrease in remuneration paid to Mr. Chander Mohan (Director) and Ms. Anamika 

Shukla (Company Secretary cum Compliance Officer) is based on their service to the Company till 

25.10.2024 and 09.12.2024 respectively 

• % increase/ decrease in remuneration of Ms. Bharti Chitkara is calculated on the basis of 2 months 

remuneration as she was appointed on 11.02.205. 

• The Company has total 92 permanent employees as on 31.03.2025 on roll. 

• The Company has paid remuneration to all its director as per the remuneration policy.  

 

8. A STATEMENT REGARDING OPINION OF THE BOARD WITH REGARD TO INTEGRITY, 

EXPERTISE AND EXPERIENCE (INCLUDING THE PROFICIENCY) OF THE INDEPENDENT 

DIRECTORS APPOINTED DURING THE YEAR: 

 

In the opinion of the Board, Independent Directors of the Company possess required integrity, expertise 

and experience necessary for administrative working in the steel industry. 
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9. WEB LINK OF ANNUAL RETURN, IF ANY: 

 

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 134(3)(a) and Section 92 of the Act read with Rule 12 of the 

Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014, Draft Annual Return of the Company as at 31st 

March, 2025 is uploaded on the website of the Company at 

https://www.aquare.co.in/mobileAPI/rathisteels/wp-content/uploads/2025/08/RBL_Form-MGT-7_ 

AB6160608_FY-24-25.pdf. 

 

10. DIVIDEND: 

 

Your directors do not recommend any dividend at this stage as the Company requires ploughing back of 

the profits to the working capital of the Company and expects better results in the coming years.  

 

11. SHARE CAPITAL: 

 

The Authorized Capital of the Company is Rs. 18,00,00,000/- (Rupees Eighteen Crores Only) and the Paid-

up Capital of the Company is Rs. 16,33,03,570/- (Rupees Sixteen Crores Thirty-Three Lakh Three 

Thousand Five Hundred Seventy only). There is no change in paid up capital of the Company during the 

year under review. 

 

12. MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS BETWEEN THE DATE OF THE BOARD 

REPORT AND END OF FINANCIAL YEAR: 

 

There have been no material changes and commitments, affecting the financial position of the Company 

which have occurred between the end of the financial year of the Company to which the financial statements 

relate and the date of the Report. 

 

13. CHANGE IN THE NATURE OF BUSINESS: 

 

There is no change in the nature of the business of the Company during the financial year 2024-25. 

 

14. TRANSFER TO RESERVES: 

 

The Board of Directors has decided to retain the entire amount of profit for the Financial Year 2024-25. 

 

15. MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS: 

 

In terms of Regulation 34 of the SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015, Management Discussion and Analysis 

Report is annexed herewith & marked as Annexure-A of this Board Report. 

 

16. INVESTOR EDUCATION AND PROTECTION FUND (IEPF): 

 

There is no such amount required to be transferred to the Investor Education and Protection Fund in 

accordance with the provisions of Section 125 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rules made thereunder. 

 

17. SUBSIDIARIES, JOINT VENTURES AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES: 

 

The Company has no Subsidiary, Joint Venture or Associate Company. 

 

18. FORMAL ANNUAL EVALUATION OF THE PERFORMANCE OF THE BOARD, ITS 

COMMITTEES & INDIVIDUAL DIRECTORS: 

 

The Board of Directors has carried out an annual evaluation of its own performance, Board Committees 

and individual Directors pursuant to the provisions of the Act and the Corporate Governance requirements 

as prescribed by SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements), Regulations 2015. 
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The performance of the Board was evaluated by the Board after seeking inputs from all the Directors on 

the basis of the criteria such as the Board’s composition and structure, effectiveness of Board’s processes, 

information and functioning, etc. 

 

The performance of the Committees was evaluated by the Board after seeking inputs from the Committee 

Members on the basis of the criteria such as the composition of committees, effectiveness of Committee 

Meetings, etc. 

 

The Board and the Nomination and Remuneration Committee reviewed the performance of the individual 

Directors on the basis of the criteria such as the contribution of the individual Director to the Board and 

Committee Meetings like preparedness on the issues to be discussed, meaningful and constructive 

contribution and inputs in meetings, etc.  In addition, the Chairman was also evaluated on the key aspects 

of his role. 

 

19. COMPANY’S POLICY ON DIRECTORS’ APPOINTMENT AND REMUNERATION 

INCLUDING CRITERIA FOR DETERMINING QUALIFICATIONS, POSITIVE ATTRIBUTES, 

INDEPENDENCE OF A DIRECTOR AND OTHER MATTERS PROVIDED UNDER SUB-

SECTION (3) OF SECTION 178: 

 

The Board has, on the recommendation of the Nomination & Remuneration Committee (NRC) framed a 

policy for the selection and appointment of Directors, Senior Management and their remuneration including 

criteria for determining qualification, positive attributes, independence of the directors and other matters 

provided under sub section (3) of section 178. The Remuneration Policy has been disclosed on the website 

of the listed entity which can be accessed through http://erp.tsnet.in:8080/rathisteels/wp-content/uploads/ 

2024/04/RBL_NR-Policy.pdf 

 

20. CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY: 

 

The Companies Act, 2013 introduced the concept of CSR pursuant to Section 135 while the eligibility 

criteria don’t cover your Company. 

 

21. VIGIL MECHANISM/WHISTLE BLOWER POLICY: 

 

In pursuant to the provisions of Section 177(9) & (10) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 7 of the 

Companies (Meetings of the Board and its Powers) Rules, 2014 and Regulation 25 of SEBI (Listing 

Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and in order to ensure that the activities of 

the Director(s) and employee(s) are conducted in a fair and transparent manner by adoption of highest 

standards of professionalism, honesty, integrity and ethical behavior, the Company has adopted a Vigil 

Mechanism policy. This policy has been prepared for directors and employees to report their genuine 

concerns in the interest of the Company and its stakeholders. 

 

22. AUDIT COMMITTEE AND ITS COMPOSITION: 

 

As per Section 177(2) and Regulation 18 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 

Regulations, 2015, the composition of Audit Committee as on 31st March, 2024 is as follows: 

 

NAME DESIGNATION CATEGORY 

Ms. Sonali V Chitalkar Chairperson Independent Director 

Ms. Shikha Chakraborty Member Independent Director 

Mr. Uddhav Rathi Member CFO 

 

23. AUDITORS: 

 

A. STATUTORY AUDITORS: 

 

Pursuant to Section 139 of the Act and Rules made thereunder, the members of the Company in their 

30th Annual General Meeting held on 04.08.2023 approved the appointment of M/s Masar & Co. 
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Chartered Accountants (FRN: 033829N) as Statutory Auditors for tenure of 5 (five) years, to 

examine and audit the accounts of the Company during the said period. 

 

a) STATUTORY AUDITOR’S REPORT: 

 

The Auditor’s Report for the financial year 2024-25 does not contain any qualification, reservation 

or adverse remark and therefore do not call for any further comments. The Auditors’ Report is 

enclosed with the financial statements in this Annual Report. 

 

B. SECRETARIAL AUDITORS: 

 

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies 

(Appointment and remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, and Regulation 24A of 

Listing Regulations, the Company has appointed M/s PWR Associates, Company Secretaries in 

Practice to undertake the Secretarial Audit of the Company for the FY ended March 31, 2025. 

 

a) SECRETARIAL AUDITOR’S REPORT: 

 

The Secretarial Auditor’s Report for financial year 2024-25 is annexed herewith and marked as 

Annexure-B of this Board Report and there are some qualification, reservation, adverse comment, 

or disclaimers made by the auditor in their report. The Board of Directors gave the suitable and 

satisfactory reply on each observation raised by the Secretarial Auditor. 

 

C. INTERNAL AUDITOR: 

 

Your Company has adequate system of internal control systems commensurate with size, scale and 

complexity of its operations to ensure accurate and timely reporting of various transactions, 

efficiency of operations and compliance with applicable laws, regulations, guidelines and 

Company’s policies. Review of the Internal Financial Controls for ensuring accuracy and 

completeness of the accounting record, safeguarding of assets, the prevention and detection of frauds 

and errors and timely preparation of reliable financial information. 

 

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 138 of the Companies Act, 2013, the Company has appointed 

Mr. Chaturbhuj Chauhan, Finance Manager to undertake the Internal Audit of the Company for FY 

2024-25.  

 

D. COST AUDIT AND MAINTENANCE OF COST RECORDS: 

 

Pursuant to Section 148(2) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 14 of the Companies (Cost 

Records and Audit) Amendment Rules, 2014, the Company is required to get its cost accounting 

records audited by a Cost Auditor. The Directors, on the recommendation of the Audit Committee, 

appointed M/s Avnesh Jain & Co. (Cost Accountants) to undertake the Cost Audit of the Company. 

The remuneration payable to the Cost Auditor is required to be ratified by the shareholders at the 

ensuing AGM. 

 

a) DISCLOSURE ON MAINTENANCE OF COST RECORDS:  

 

The Company made and maintained the Cost Records under Section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 

for the Financial Year 2024-25. 

 

24. REPORTING OF FRAUDS BY AUDITORS: 

 

During the year under review, the Statutory Auditors, Cost Auditors and Secretarial Auditors have not 

reported any instances of frauds committed in the Company by its Officers or Employees, to the Audit 

Committee under Section 143(12) of the Act, details of which needs to be mentioned in Director’s Report. 
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25. PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS UNDER SECTION 186: 

 

During the year under review, the Company has not advanced any loans or given guarantees or made 

investments. However, the details of investments already made by the Company are as follow: 

 

S. 

No. 

Name of Party Particulars of 

Investments 

Nature Purpose for which 

it shall be used 

Amount 

(In Rs) 

1. Gordhan Das Rathi 

Steels Limited 

Purchase of 

Shares 

Investment Revenue generation 7,66,289.00 

2. National Saving 

Certificate (NSCs) 

Purchase of 

securities 

Investment Revenue generation 6,045.00 

TOTAL 7,72,334.00 

 

26. INDUSTRIAL RELATIONS: 

 

During the year, your Company maintained harmonious and cordial industrial relations. 

 

27. SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE REGULATORS OR COURTS OR 

TRIBUNALS IMPACTING THE GOING CONCERN STATUS AND COMPANY’S 

OPERATIONS IN FUTURE:  

 

During the year under review, there have been no such significant and material orders passed by the 

regulators or courts or tribunals impacting the going concern status and Corporation in future. 

 

28. STATUS OF LISTING: 

 

The Company’s shares are listed at Bombay Stock Exchange Ltd. The Company has paid the listing fees 

to the Stock Exchange, Mumbai for the year 2025-26. 

 

29. PUBLIC DEPOSITS: 

 

Your Company has not invited or accepted any deposits from the Public during the year and there were no 

unpaid and unclaimed deposits as on March 31, 2025. Hence, no information is required to be appended to 

this Report in terms of Non-Banking Financial Companies Acceptance of Public Deposits (Reserve Bank 

of India Directions, 1998). 

 

30. PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES: 

 

None of the Employee was drawing remuneration in excess of the limits laid by the Companies Act, 2013 

as specified under Rule 5(2) and Rule 5 (3) of Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial 

Personnel) Rules, 2014. 

 

31. CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION AND FOREIGN EXCHANGE 

EARNINGS AND OUTGO: 

 

The manufacturing unit of the Company has continued their efforts to reduce their average energy 

consumption year on year basis. Some of the key measures taken by the Company are as follows: 

 

Information as required under Section 134(3) (m) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies 

(Accounts) Rules, 2014, our Director furnish following information as required. 

 

A) CONSERVATION OF ENERGY: 

 

The Company is using best technology available for conservation of energy and had taken adequate steps 

to improve the conservation of energy and this is a continuous process and forms an integral part of 

responsibilities of departmental heads. 
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Some of the energy conservation steps taken are as follow: 

 

i) Optimum Capacity utilization. 

ii) Optimization of pump and motor operations through standard operating practices. 

iii) Strict quality checks on inputs thus saving electricity consumption. 

iv) Minimization of handling losses. 

v) Total Energy Consumption and Energy Consumption per unit of production is optimum as per 

industry standards. 

 

B) During the year under review, the Company has consumed 2,77,64,532 KWH units of electricity 

and Nil liters of Diesel. However, the Company has discontinued the consumption of coal. 

 

C) TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION: 

 

The Company is using technology, which is best available in the Steel Industry (TMT) and always 

step forward to upgrade the same. 

 

D) FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO (IN Rs): 

 

During the year under review: 

 

Foreign Exchange Earned: NIL 

Foreign Exchange Outgo:  NIL  

 

32. COMPLIANCE OF SECRETARIAL STANDARD: 

 

The Company has complied with Secretarial Standards as prescribed by the Institute of Companies 

Secretaries of India and as per section 118 (10) of the Companies Act, 2013. 

 

33. CORPORATE GOVERNANCE: 

 

Your Company is committed to adopting and following the best practices in Corporate Governance and 

meets all the applicable requirements which are within its ambit, under the Companies Act, 2013, SEBI 

LODR Regulations, 2015 and Secretarial Standards issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India. 

Your Company is committed to ethical business decisions and conducting business with a firm commitment 

to value creation and the expectations of stakeholders.  

 

Your Company considers it an inherent responsibility to disclose timely and accurate information regarding 

the operations & performance, leadership, and governance of your Company. The certificate issued by the 

Statutory Auditors of the Company M/s. Masar & Co., Chartered Accountants pursuant to Schedule V Para 

E of SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015 and report on Corporate Governance are attached as Annexure C 

and D of this report respectively. 

 

34. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS: 

 

Related party transactions that were entered during the financial year were on an arm’s length basis and 

were in the ordinary course of business. There were no materially significant related party transactions with 

the Company’s Promoters, Directors, Management or their relatives, which could have had a potential 

conflict with the interests of the Company. However, transactions entered by the Company in the normal 

course of business are periodically placed before the Audit Committee for its omnibus approval and the 

particulars of contracts entered during the year are mentioned in Note No. 2(e) of the Financial Statements. 

 

35. DIRECTOR'S RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT: 

 

Pursuant to the requirement under Section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 with respect to Directors 

Responsibility Statement, the Board of Directors hereby state and confirm that: - 
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i) in the preparation of the annual accounts for the Financial Year ending March 31, 2025, the 

applicable accounting standards have been followed along with proper explanations relating to 

material departures; 

 

ii) the Directors had selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made 

judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the 

State of Affairs of the Company at the end of the financial year 31st March, 2025 and of the Profit & 

Loss of the Company for that period; 

 

iii) the Directors had taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting records 

in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 for safeguarding the assets of the 

Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities; 

 

iv) the Directors had prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis; 

 

v) the Directors have laid down Internal Financial Controls to be followed in the Company and that 

such Internal Financial Controls are adequate and were operating effectively; 

 

vi) the Directors had devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable 

laws and that such systems were adequate and operating effectively. 

 

36. BUSINESS RISK MANAGEMENT: 

 

In accordance with the provisions of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 

2015 the Board Members were informed about risk assessment and minimization procedures after which 

the Board formally adopted steps for framing, implementing and monitoring the Risk Management Policy 

for the Company. 

 

The main objective of this policy is to ensure sustainable business growth with stability and to promote a 

pro-active approach in reporting, evaluating and resolving risks associated with the business. In order to 

achieve the key objective, the policy establishes a structured and disciplined approach to Risk Management, 

in order to guide decisions on risk-related issues. 

 

In today’s challenging and competitive environment, strategies for mitigating inherent risks in 

accomplishing the growth plans of the Company are imperative. The common risks inter alia are: 

Regulations, competition, Business risk, Technology obsolescence, Investments, retention of talent and 

expansion of facilities. 

 

Business risk, inter-alia, further includes financial risk, political risk, fidelity risk, legal risk etc. As a matter 

of policy, these risks are assessed and steps as appropriate are taken to mitigate the same. 

 

37. INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROL: 

 

The Board has adequate system of internal control to safeguard and protect from loss, unauthorized use or 

disposition of its assets. All the transactions are properly authorized, recorded and reported to the 

Management. The Company is following all the applicable Accounting Standards for properly maintaining 

the books of accounts and reporting financial statements. The Internal Auditor of the Company checks and 

verifies the internal control and monitors them in accordance with policy adopted by the Company. 

 

38. DETAILS OF APPLICATION MADE OR ANY PROCEEDING PENDING UNDER THE 

INSOLVENCY AND BANKRUPTCY CODE, 2016, DURING THE YEAR: 

 

During the year under review, there were no application made or proceedings pending in the name of the 

Company under the Insolvency & Bankruptcy Code, 2016. 
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39. DETAILS OF DIFFERENCE BETWEEN THE AMOUNT OF THE VALUATION DONE AT THE 

TIME OF ONE-TIME SETTLEMENT AND THE VALUATION DONE WHILE TAKING A 

LOAN FROM THE BANKS OR FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS:  

 

During the year under review, there has been no one-time settlement of loans taken from Banks and 

Financial Institutions. 

 

40. DISCLOSURE UNDER THE SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT WORKPLACE 

(PREVENTION, PROHIBITION AND REDRESSAL) ACT, 2013:  

 

Your Company is committed to foster a positive workplace environment, free from harassment of any 

nature and takes strong and stringent action in the event of reporting any such incidents. Your Company 

has in place an Internal Complaints Committee to examine the cases of sexual harassment under the Sexual 

Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013. During the 

financial year 2024-25, no complaints have been received on this subject. 

 

• No. complaints of sexual harassment received in the year: Nil 

• No. complaints disposed off during the year: Nil 

• No. of cases pending for more than 90 days: Nil 

 

41. STATEMENT BY THE COMPANY WITH RESPECT TO THE COMPLIANCE TO THE 

PROVISIONS RELATING TO THE MATERNITY BENEFITS ACT, 1961. 

 

The Company affirms that it has duly complied with all provisions of the Maternity Benefit Act, 1961, and 

has extended all statutory benefits to eligible women employees during the year. 

 

ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS: 

 

The Board thanks the customers, vendors, dealers, investors, business associates and bankers for their 

continued support during the year. The Board places on record its appreciation of the contribution made by 

employees at all levels. The Company’s resilience to meet challenges was made possible by their hard 

work, solidarity, co-operation and support. The Board thanks the Government of India, the State 

Governments and other regulatory authorities and government agencies for their support and looks forward 

to their continued support in the future. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Date: 22.08.2025 

Place: New Delhi 

 

 

 

 

 

Sd/- 

Anurag Rathi 

(Managing Director) 

DIN:00063345 

By order of the Board of Directors 

For Rathi Bars Limited 

 

 

 

Sd/- 

Uddhav Rathi 

(WTD and CFO) 

DIN:06604905 
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Annexure-A 
MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT 

 
The management is pleased to present this Management Discussion and Analysis Report provides 
insights into the Company’s business performance, financial condition, risks and outlook for the 
financial year ended March 31, 2025 and is prepared in accordance with the provisions of the 
Companies Act, 2013 and SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015. 
 

1. INDUSTRY STRUCTURE AND DEVELOPMENTS 
 
The Indian steel and construction industry has been on a progressive trajectory, driven by increasing 
infrastructure development, urbanization, and government initiatives like “Make in India”, Smart 
Cities Mission, and PM Gati Shakti Yojana. The TMT (Thermo Mechanically Treated) bars segment 
continues to witness steady demand from public and private sector projects. 
 

2. COMPANY OVERVIEW AND PERFORMANCE 
 
Rathi Bars Limited is a renowned manufacturer of high-quality TMT bars and other steel products. 
Highlights for FY 2024-25 include: 
 
- Revenue from operations stood at Rs. 49,628.82 Lakh. 
- EBITDA stood at Rs. 1,477.60 Lakh. 
- Net profit after tax was Rs. 256.56 Lakh. 
- Investment in rolling mill upgrades. 
 
FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE WITH RESPECT TO OPERATIONAL PERFORMANCE 
 
During the year under review, the Company recorded a profit after tax of Rs. 256.56 Lakhs (previous 
year: Rs. 356.82 Lakhs). The basic and diluted earnings per share for the Financial Year 2024-25 
were at 1.57 per share (previous year: basic and diluted earnings per share at 2.19 per share). 
 
The turnover and profit/(loss) figures of Rathi Bars Limited are given below:  

(In Lakhs) 
Particular FY 24-25 FY 23-24 
Turnover 49,770.59 61,403.52 
EBITDA 1,477.60 1,467.09 
Profit before tax (PBT) 351.60 404.73 
Profit after tax (PAT) 256.56 356.82 

 
3. OPPORTUNITIES AND THREATS 

 
Opportunities: 
- Government focus on infrastructure 
- Demand from real estate and urban projects 
- Expansion in new geographies 
 
Threats: 
- Volatility in raw material prices 
- Competition and imports 
- Regulatory changes 
- Economic cycle dependency 
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4. SEGMENT–WISE OR PRODUCT–WISE PERFORMANCE 
 
The Company operates in a single segment – manufacturing and sale of TMT bars. Emphasis was on 
quality improvement and dealer network expansion. 
 
 

5. OUTLOOK 
 

The Company remains optimistic about the sector and aims to focus on operational excellence, 
geographic expansion, and sustainable practices. 
 

6. RISKS AND CONCERNS 
 
Key risks include input cost volatility, supply chain issues, policy changes, and technological shifts. 
Risk mitigation strategies are in place. 

 
7. INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEMS AND THEIR ADEQUACY 

 
Rathi Bars Limited has adequate internal control systems, regularly reviewed by an independent 
auditor and monitored by the Audit Committee. 
 

8. FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE WITH RESPECT TO OPERATIONAL PERFORMANCE 
 
Revenue growth was driven by volume increase and cost management. Margins were impacted by 
input costs but managed efficiently. 
 

9. HUMAN RESOURCES AND INDUSTRIAL RELATIONS 
 
The Company had 92 employees as on March 31, 2025. Regular training programs and cordial 
industrial relations were maintained. 
 

10. ENVIRONMENT, HEALTH AND SAFETY (EHS) 
 
Commitment to safety and health with regular EHS audits, safety drills, and compliance with 
environmental norms. 
 

11. SIGNIFICANT CHANGES IN KEY FINANCIAL RATIOS ALONG WITH EXPLAINATION THEREOF 
 

Particular F.Y.24-
25 

F.Y.23-
24 

Percentage 
increase/ 
decrease 

Detailed explanation with 
respect to significant change 

i.e. 25% or more 
Debtors Turnover 5.83 8.08 -27.80% Due to increase in trade 

receivables and decrease in 
revenue. 

Inventory Turnover 5.39 6.04 -10.74% Not Required as variance is less 
than 25% 

Interest Coverage 
Ratio 

1.24 1.68 -26.32% Due to increase in tax expense 
resulting in decrease in net profit 
after tax  

Current Ratio 1.72 1.90 -9.39% Not Required as variance is less 
than 25% 

Debt Equity Ratio 0.85 0.71 19.90% Not Required as variance is less 
than 25% 

Operating Profit 
Margin (%) 

1.73 1.60 8.13% Not Required as variance is less 
than 25% 
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Net Profit Margin 
(%) 

0.52 0.58 -11.25% Not Required as variance is less 
than 25% 

Return on Net 
Worth 

 3.26  4.69 30.49% Due to decrease in profit due to 
decline in turnover 

Return on Equity 2.69 3.87 -30.42% Decrease in net profit after tax and  
due to decrease in revenue from 
operations. 

Trade Payable 
Turnover  

57.99 60.90 -4.77% Not Required as variance is less 
than 25% 

Return on 
Investment 

0.00 127.99 NA No return on investment this year 
due to no investment being 
disposed off this year. 

Debt Service 
Coverage Ratio 

1,24 1.68 -26.32% Due to increase in tax expense 
resulting in decrease in net profit 
after tax as compared to last year. 

Net Capital 
Turnover Ratio 

7.98 9.71 -17.76% Not Required as variance is less 
than 25% 

Return on Capital 
employed 

9.23 9.42 -1.97% Not Required as variance is less 
than 25% 

 
12. DISCLOSURES OF ACCOUNTING TREATMENT: 

 
The Company, in preparation of financial statements has followed the same treatment which are 
prescribed in the respective accounting standards applicable on the Company. 
 

13. CAUTIONARY STATEMENT  
 
Statements in Management Discussion and Analysis describing the Company’s objectives, 
projections, expectations, and estimates are based on the current business environment. Actual 
results could differ from those expressed or implied, based upon the future economic and other 
developments, both in India and abroad 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Date: 22.08.2025 

Place: New Delhi 

 

          

  

Sd/- 

Anurag Rathi 

(Managing Director) 

DIN:00063345 

   By order of the Board of Directors 

For Rathi Bars Limited 

                                    

Sd/- 

Uddhav Rathi 

(WTD cum CFO) 

DIN:06604905 
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Annexure-B 

FORM NO. MR-3 

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT 

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31.03.2025 

[Pursuant to Section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 9 of the 

Companies (Appointment and Remuneration Personnel) Rules, 2014] 

To,  

 

The Members,  

Rathi Bars Limited  

A-24/7, Mohan Cooperative Industrial Estate  

Mathura Road, New Delhi-110044 

 

Dear Members, 

 

We have conducted the Secretarial Audit of compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the 

adherence to good corporate practices by Rathi Bars Limited having CIN: L74899DL1993PLC054781 

(hereinafter called "the Company"). The Secretarial Audit is conducted in a manner that provided us a 

reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory compliances and expressing my opinion 

thereon.  

 

Based on our verification of the Company's books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other 

records maintained by the Company and also the information/ representations provided by the Company, 

its officers, agents and authorized representatives during the conduct of Secretarial Audit. 

 

We hereby report that in our opinion, the Company has during the audit period covering the financial year 

ended on March 31, 2025 complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that the 

Company has proper Board-processes and compliance-mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and 

subject to the reporting made hereinafter. 

 

We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained 

by the Company for the financial year ended on March 31, 2025, according to the provisions of:  

 

(i) The Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules made thereunder;  

 

(ii) The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA’) and the rules made thereunder; NA 

 

(iii) The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder; 

 

(iv) Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made there under to the 

extent of Foreign Direct Investment and Overseas Direct Investment and External Commercial 

Borrowings. NA 

 

(v) The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board of 

India Act, 1992 (‘SEBI Act’): - 

 

a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers) 

Regulations, 2011;(Not applicable to the Company during the audit period); 

 

b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 1992; 

 

c) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) 

Regulations, 2009 (Not applicable to the Company during the audit period); 

 

d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Employee Stock Option Scheme and Employee 

Stock Purchase Scheme) Guidelines, 1999 (Not applicable to the Company during the audit 

period); 
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e) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities) Regulations, 

2008 (Not applicable to the Company during the audit period); 

 

f) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer Agents) 

Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing with client; 

 

g) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2009 

(Not applicable to the Company during the audit period); 

 

h) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 1998 (Not 

applicable to the Company during the audit period); 

 

(vi) The other laws as applicable specifically on the Company: - 

 Air (Prevention and Control of Pollution) Act, 1981 and the rules and standards made there under. 

1. Water (Prevention and Control of Pollution) Act, 1974 and Water (Prevention and Control of 

Pollution) Rules, 1975. 

2. Environment Protection Act, 1986 and the rules, notifications issued there under. 

3. Factories Act, 1948 and allied State Laws. 

4. The Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 

2013. 

5. Maternity Benefits Act 1961 

6. The Workmen’s Compensation Act, 1923 

7. The Employees’ State Insurance Act, 1948 (ESI Act)  

8. Employees Provident and Miscellaneous Provisions Act, 1952  

9. The Contract Labour (Regulation & Abolition) Act, 1970  

10. The Apprentices Act, 1961  

11. Minimum Wages Act, 1948 

12. Payment of Wages Act, 1936  

13. Payment of Bonus Act, 1965  

14. Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972  

15. The Equal Remuneration Act, 1976  

16. The Industrial Disputes Act, 1947  

17. The Employees Exchanges (Compulsory Notification of Vacancies) Act, 1959 

 

We have also examined compliances with the applicable clauses of the following:  

 

(i) Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India. 

 

(ii) The Listing Agreements entered into by the Company with Stock Exchange. 

 

During the period under review, the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules, 

Regulations, guidelines, standards etc. mentioned above subject to the following observations: 

 

1. That the Company has filed the respective forms, returns, documents and resolutions with the 

Ministry of Corporate Affairs, New Delhi prescribed under the Act and rules made there under. 

 

2. That the Board has duly met 11 (Eleven) times i.e. on 15.05.2024, 30.05.2024, 17.07.2024, 

12.08.2024, 30.08.2024, 24.09.2024, 08.10.2024, 25.10.2024, 14.11.2024, 02.01.2025 and 

11.02.2025 during the year. Audit Committee also met 6 (Six) times on 30.05.2024, 12.08.2024, 

30.08.20234, 24.09.2024, 14.11.2024 and 11.02.2025.; Nomination and Remuneration 

Committee duly met 3 (Three) times on 30.08.2024, 25.10.2024 and 11.02.2025; Stakeholders 

Relationship Committee duly met once on 20.03.2025 during the year. 

 

3. The Company was not required to deposit the unclaimed amounts pending for more than seven 

years to the Investor Education and Protection Fund pursuant to Section 125 of the Companies 

Act, 2013. 
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4. The Company has constituted the Audit Committee, Nomination and Remuneration Committee, 

Stakeholders Relationship Committee as per the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013; 

 

5. Managerial Remuneration has been paid to the Mr. Anurag Rathi (Managing Director) and Mr. 

Uddhav Rathi (Whole time Director cum CFO), and sitting fee was paid to Mr. Chander Mohan 

(Non-Executive Non-Independent Director), Mr. Hukum Singh (Additional Non-Executive 

Director), Mr. Rajendra Prasad (Independent Director), Mrs. Shikha Chakraborty (Independent 

Director), Mrs. Sonali V Chitalkar (Independent Director) during the year. 

 

6. The Company has entered into business transactions with related parties in the normal course 

of business at arm’s length. 

 

7. That the shares of the Company are in dematerialized form with the depositories and an 

agreement between the Company and the Depository has been entered initially in the year 2007 

and amended/revised from time to time; 

 

We further report that: 

 

The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Executive Directors, 

Non-Executive Directors and Independent Directors. The changes in the composition of the Board of 

Directors that took place during the period under review were carried out in compliance with the provisions 

of the Act.  

 

Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed notes on 

agenda were sent in advance in requisite time as permitted under the Companies Act, 2013 and a system 

exists for seeking and obtaining further information and clarifications on the agenda items before the 

meeting and for meaningful participation at the meeting.  

 

We further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the Company commensurate with the 

size and operations of the Company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules, 

regulations and guidelines. 

 

We further report that during the audit period, the Company has no other specific event required to be 

reported except above mentioned. 

 

We further report that the Company has complied with the requirements of the Stock Exchanges, SEBI 

and other statutory authorities on all matters relating to capital markets during the last three years and no 

penalties and/or strictures have been imposed on the Company in this regard, except in the following cases: 

 

Sl. 

No. 

Particular of non-

compliances/ 

Auditor Remark’s 

Section/ Regulation/ Rules Advisory / Clarification/ 

Fine/ Show Cause 

Notice/ Warning etc. 

Management Response 

1. Failed to regularize 

the additional Director 

within a period of 3 

months 

Regulation 17(1C) of SEBI 

(LODR) Regulations, 2015 

NA The Company intends to 

regularize the appointment of 

additional Director in 

forthcoming Annual General 

Meeting. The management 

assures that measures will be 

implemented to prevent similar 

instances of non-compliances 

in the future 

2. The Company has not 

submitted its financial 

results within the 

period prescribed 

under this Regulation 

Regulation 33 of the SEBI 

(LODR) Regulations, 2015 

Fine of Rs. Rs. 1,71,100/- 

imposed by BSE 

The Company has paid the fine 

of Rs. 1,71,100/- to the BSE 

and ensured that this type of 

non-compliance shall not occur 

in future. 
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3. The Company has not 

submitted the 

disclosure of related 

party transactions on 

consolidated basis. 

Regulation 23 (9) of the 

SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 

2015 

No fine was imposed by 

the BSE 

The Company has represented 

to BSE that it will ensure that 

this type of non-compliance 

shall not occur in future. 

4. The Company has not 

submitted the 

secretarial compliance 

report in the XBRL 

format. 

Regulation 24 (A) of the 

SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 

2015 

Fine of Rs. 35,400/- 

imposed by the BSE 

The Company has paid the Fine 

of Rs. 35,400/- to BSE and 

ensure that this non-

compliance occurred due to 

introduction of the submission 

of the new format of XBRL for 

secretarial compliance report 

and will ensure that this type of 

non-compliance shall not occur 

in future. 

5. Meeting of 

Stakeholder 

Relationship 

Committee has not 

been held during the 

FY 2023-24 

Regulation 20 (3A) of the 

SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 

2015 

Query raised by the BSE The Company has represented 

to BSE that meeting of 

Stakeholder Relationship 

Committee held on Monday, 

the 12th Day of February, 2024. 

6. Mismatched 

observed by BSE: 

The Company has not 

provided same PAN of 

Promoter/ Promoter 

Group in depositories 

system as provided in 

shareholding pattern 

filed by the Company 

with BSE 

SEBI Circulars no. SEBI/HO/ 

ISD/ISD/CIR/P/2020/168 

dated 09.09.2020 & SEBI/ 

CIR/CFD/DCR1/CIR/P/2020/

181 dated 23.09.2020 & 

Regulation 31(1) of the SEBI 

(LODR) Regulations, 2015 

Query raised by the BSE The Company has addressed 

the issue with BSE & NSDL. 

7. Non-Submission of 

Corporate 

Governance Report, 

Statement of investor 

Complaints and 

Integrated Filing 

(Governance) for the 

quarter ended 

31.12.2024  

Regulation 13(3) & 27(2) of 

the SEBI (LODR) 

Regulations, 2015 

Query raised by the BSE The Company has represented 

to BSE that all the filing of the 

said quarter has been done 

within the time framed i.e. 

14.02.2025. 

8. BSE sought the 

explanations from the 

Company regarding 

fluctuations in share 

price of the Company 

Regulation 30 of the SEBI 

(LODR) Regulations, 2015 

Clarification on Price 

Movement 

The Company has addressed 

the issue with BSE 

For PWR Associates 

Company Secretaries 

Sd/- 

Devesh Maheshwari, Partner 

C. P. No: 26255 

UDIN: A070318G001023820 

Peer Review No. 2988/2023 

 

 

 

 

 

Date: 18.08.2025 

Place: New Delhi 

Note: This report is to be read with our letter of even date which is annexed as “Annexure 1 to the Report” 

and forms an integral part of this report. 
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Annexure 1 to the Secretarial Audit Report 

To, 

The Members 

Rathi Bars Limited 

New Delhi 

 

Our Secretarial Audit Report of even date, for the financial year 2024-25 is to be read along with this letter.  

 

1. Maintenance of Secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of the Company. Our 

responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records based on our audit. 

 

2. We have followed the audit practices and process as were appropriate to obtain reasonable 

assurance about the correctness of the contents of the Secretarial records. The verification was done 

on test basis to ensure that correct facts are reflected in Secretarial records. We believe that the 

process and practices, we followed provide a reasonable basis for our opinion. 

 

3. We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books of 

Accounts of the Company. 

 

4. Where ever required, we have obtained the Management representation about the Compliance of 

laws, rules and regulations and happening of events etc.  

 

5. The Compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations, 

standards is the responsibility of management. Our examination was limited to the verification of 

procedure on test basis.  

 

6. The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor 

of the efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the 

Company. 

 

 

For PWR Associates 

Company Secretaries 

 

 

 

Sd/- 

Devesh Maheshwari 

Partner 

C. P. No: 26255 

UDIN: A070318G001023820 

Peer Review No. 2988/2023 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Date: 18.08.2025 

Place: New Delhi 
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Annexure C 
 

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ CERTIFICATE ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE 

 

(Pursuant to Regulations 34(3) and Schedule V Para E of the SEBI (Listing Obligation and Disclosure 

Requirements) Regulations, 2015) 

 

To 

The Members 

Rathi Bars Limited 

 

We have examined the compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance by Rathi Bars Limited, for the 

year ended on March 31, 2025 as stipulated under Regulation 34 (3) and Schedule V of the SEBI (Listing 

Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (‘Listing Regulations’). 

 

Management’s Responsibility 

The Compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance is the responsibility of the management. Our 

examination was limited to a review of procedures and implementation thereof, adopted by the Company 

for ensuring the compliance of the conditions of Corporate Governance as stipulated in the Listing 

Regulations. It is neither an audit nor an expression of opinion on the financial statements of the Company. 

 

Auditor’s Responsibility: 

Our responsibility is limited to examining the procedures and implementation thereof, adopted by the 

Company for ensuring compliance with the conditions of the Corporate Governance. It is neither an audit 

nor an expression of opinion on the financial statements of the Company. 

 

We have examined the books of account and other relevant records and documents maintained by the 

Company for the purposes of providing reasonable assurance on compliance with Corporate Governance 

requirements by the Company. 

 

We have carried out an examination of the relevant records of the Company in accordance with the 

Guidance Note on Certification of Corporate Governance issued by the Institute of the Chartered 

Accountants of India (the ICAI), the Standards on Auditing specified under Section 143(10) of the 

Companies Act, 2013, in so far as applicable for the purpose of this certificate and as per the Guidance 

Note on Reports or Certificates for Special Purposes issued by the ICAI which requires that we comply 

with the ethical requirements of the Code of Ethics issued by the ICAI. 

 

We have complied with the relevant applicable requirements of the Standard on Quality Control (SQC) 1, 

Quality Control for Firms that Perform Audits and Reviews of Historical Financial Information, and Other 

Assurance and Related Services Engagements. 

 

Opinion 

Based on our examination of the relevant records and according to the information and explanations 

provided to us and the representations provided by the Management, we certify that the Company has 

complied with the conditions of Corporate Governance as stipulated in regulations 17 to 27 and clauses (b) 

to (i) of regulation 46(2) and para C and D of Schedule V of the Listing Regulations except the following: 

 

Sl. 

No. 

Particular of non-

compliances/ 

Auditor Remark’s 

Section/ Regulation/ Rules Advisory / Clarification/ 

Fine/ Show Cause 

Notice/ Warning etc. 

Management Response 

1. Failed to regularize 

the additional Director 

within a period of 3 

months 

Regulation 17(1C) of SEBI 

(LODR) Regulations, 2015 

NA The Company intends to 

regularize the appointment of 

additional Director in 

forthcoming Annual General 

Meeting. The management 

assures that measures will be 

implemented to prevent similar 
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instances of non-compliances 

in the future 

2. The Company has not 

submitted the 

disclosure of related 

party transactions on 

consolidated basis.  

Regulation 23 (9) of the 

SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 

2015 

Fine of Rs. 0.00 imposed 

by the BSE (Through Mail 

on 28.06.2024) 

The Company has represented 

to BSE that it will ensure that 

this type of non-compliance 

shall not occur in future. 

(Through Mail on 03.072024 & 

08.07.2024) 

3. The Company has not 

submitted the 

secretarial compliance 

report in the XBRL 

format.  

Regulation 24 (A) of the 

SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 

2015 

Fine of Rs. 35,400/- 

imposed by the BSE 

(Through Mail on 

28.06.2024) 

The Company has paid the Fine 

of Rs. 35,400/- to BSE and 

ensure that this non-

compliance occurred due to 

introduction of the submission 

of the new format of XBRL for 

secretarial compliance report 

and will ensure that this type of 

non-compliance shall not occur 

in future. (Through Mail on 

03.072024 & 08.07.2024) 

4. Meeting of 

Stakeholder 

Relationship 

Committee has not 

been held during the 

FY 2023-24  

Regulation 20 (3A) of the 

SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 

2015 

Query raised by the BSE 

(Through Mail on 

09.08.2024) 

The Company has represented 

to BSE that meeting of 

Stakeholder Relationship 

Committee held on Monday, 

the 12th Day of February, 2024. 

(Through Mail to BSE and 

Reply in Communication 

module over BSE Portal on 

09.08.2024) 

5. Non-Submission of 

Corporate 

Governance Report, 

Statement of investor 

Complaints and 

Integrated Filing 

(Governance) for the 

quarter ended 

31.12.2024  

Regulation 13(3) & 27(2) of 

the SEBI (LODR) 

Regulations, 2015 

Query raised by the BSE 

(Through Mail on 

13.02.2025) 

The Company has represented 

to BSE that all the filing of the 

said quarter has been done 

within the time framed i.e. 

14.02.2025. 

 

We state that such compliance is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor the 

efficiency or effectiveness with which the Management has conducted the affairs of the Company. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Date: 22.08.2025 

Place: New Delhi 

For Masar & Co. 

Chartered Accountants 

FRN: 033829N 

 

 

Sd/- 

Shashi Shekhar Rai 

Partner 

M. No. 519011 

                          UDIN: 25519011BMLIGN5479 
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Annexure D 
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT 

 

[Pursuant to provisions of SEBI (Listing Obligations & Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015] 

 

The Company is committed to the highest standards of corporate governance while maintaining its rapid 

growth and performance excellence. Being a listed Company on the stock exchanges, we must keep setting 

global benchmarks of all-round excellence in its sustainability performance. The strong financial footing 

on which the Company stands today is largely built on the system orientation ingrained in our departments 

and business units.  

 

We strongly believe that efficient governance at all levels is necessary to drive change, towards a more 

resilient and responsible future. In order to continue to sustain as a progressive Company balancing 

financial return to investors with unwavering focus on being socially responsible, there is a need to 

constantly reinvent and upgrade our governance models in synchronization with the demands of the 

contemporary times.  

 

Effective corporate governance is a continuous process of prioritization and improvement, and we must 

adapt our processes and activities to be relevant to the evolving external and internal landscapes. 

 

The Directors of the Company are pleased to present the Corporate Governance Report for the Financial 

Year 2024-25. The Shareholders and Investors of the Company will find the information informative and 

useful. 

 

Company’s policies on the Corporate Governance and due Compliance Report on specific areas wherever 

applicable for the year ended 31st March, 2025 are given hereunder divided into the following areas: 

 

1.        COMPANY’S PHILOSOPHY ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE: - 

 

The fundamental principle of Corporate Governance is achieving sustained growth ethically and in the best 

interest of all stakeholders. The Company continuously strives for improving performance. The Company’s 

philosophy on Corporate Governance oversees business strategies and ensures accountability, integrity, 

ethical corporate behavior and fairness to all its stakeholders comprising regulators, employees, customers, 

vendors, investors and society at large. The Company has adopted a Code of Conduct for its employees 

including the Managing Director, Executive Directors and its Non-Executive Directors which includes 

Code of Conduct for Independent Directors which suitably incorporates the duties of independent directors 

as laid down in the Companies Act, 2013. 

 

The Company has adhered to the requirements stipulated under Regulations 17 to 27 read with Para C and 

D of Schedule V and clauses (b) to (i) of sub-regulation (2) of Regulation 46 of the Securities and Exchange 

Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (‘Listing 

Regulations’) as applicable [including relaxations granted by the Securities and Exchange Board of India 

(‘SEBI’) in the wake of Covid-19], with regard to Corporate Governance and the same is disclosed in this 

Report. 

 

2.        BOARD OF DIRECTORS: - 

 

A. Composition, Category and Size of the Board: 

 

The Board of Directors of the Company is the highest governance authority within the management 

structure of the Company. The Composition of the Board is in conformity with Regulation 17(1) of SEBI 

(Listing Obligations & Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 read with Section 149 of the 

Companies Act, 2013. 

 

The composition of the Board of Directors as at 31st March 2025 is as follows: 

39



 

 

 

 

B. Board meetings held during the year and attendance of each director at Board meeting and last 

Annual General Meeting: 

 

The Board meets at least once in a quarter to consider, amongst other business, the quarterly performance 

of the Company and its financial results. The Board meeting held 11 (Eleven) times i.e. on 15.05.2024, 

30.05.2024, 17.07.2024, 12.08.2024, 30.08.2024, 24.09.2024, 08.10.2024, 25.10.2024, 14.11.2024, 

02.01.2025 and 11.02.2025 during the year and the gap between any two consecutive meetings was within 

the limit prescribed under the Act and SEBI (Listing Obligation and Disclosure Requirements) Regulation, 

2015. All the relevant information needed for taking decisions by the Board is made available to the 

Directors at the meetings.  

 

Independent Directors are Non-Executive Directors as defined and moreover, they have confirmed that 

they meet the criteria as mentioned under the regulations of the SEBI Listing Regulations read with Section 

149(6) of the Act. The maximum tenure of independent directors is in compliance with the Act.  

 

The Board and its Committees formulate policy decisions, to lead and control the Company. None of the 

Director is a member of more than 10 Committees or Chairman of more than of 5 Committees across all 

Companies in which they are directors. Chairmanship / Membership of Board Committees include only 

Audit committee, Nomination and Remuneration Committee and Stakeholders Relationship Committee.  

 

The details are as under: 

 

S. 

No

. 

Name of 

Directors 

 

No. of 

Board 

Meeting 

eligible 

to 

attend 

No. of 

Board 

Meetings 

attended 

Attend-

ance at 

last 

AGM 

Number of 

Directorship 

in Other 

public com-

panies (*) 

Total Number of 

committee 

positions held in 

other public 

companies as on 

31.03.2025 

Shareholding 

(Equity 

shares of Rs. 

10/- each) as 

on 31.03.2025 

     Chairm

an           

Membe

r 

Chair

man 

Member  

1. Mr. Anurag 

Rathi 

11 11 YES 1 2 Nil Nil 12,16,751 

(7.45%) 

2. Mr. Uddhav 

Rathi 

11 11 YES Nil 2 Nil 2 8,59,330  

(5.26%) 

3. Ms. Sonali V 

Chitalkar 

11 10 YES Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil 

4. Ms. Shikha 

Chakraborty 

11 10 YES Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil 

5. Mr. Hukum 

Singh 

3 3 NO Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil 

6. Mr. Rajendra 

Prasad 

11 11 YES Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil 

 

* Excludes directorship in associates, private, foreign and Section 8 Companies. 

 

Name Designation Executive / Non-executive / 

Independent 

Mr. Anurag Rathi Managing Director Executive Director 

Mr. Uddhav Rathi Whole-Time Director cum CFO Executive Director 

Mr. Hukum Singh Additional Director Non-Executive Director 

Ms. Shikha Chakraborty Director Independent Director 

Ms. Sonali V Chitalkar Director Independent Director 

Mr. Rajendra Prasad Director Independent Director 
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C. Disclosure of relationship between Directors inter-se: 

 

Mr. Anurag Rathi and Mr. Uddhav Rathi are related to each other being the members of the same family 

and Ms. Sonali V Chitalkar, Ms. Shikha Chakraborty and Mr. Rajendra Prasad are Independent Directors 

and Mr. Hukum Singh (Additional Non-Executive Director) do not relate to other Directors or inter-se. 

 

D. Policy of Familiarization Programme: 

 

According to the requirement under SEBI (Listing Obligations & Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 

2015 policy of familiarization programmes imparted to Independent Directors have been provided on the 

websitehttp://erp.tsnet.in:8080/rathisteels/wp-content/uploads/2024/04/RBL_Familiarization-Programme-

for-Independent-Directors.pdf 

 

E. Key Board Members’ Qualifications, Expertise, and Attributes: 

 

The Directors are committed to ensuring that the Board is in compliance with the highest standards of 

Corporate Governance. The following key qualifications, skills and attributes are taken into consideration 

by the NRC while recommending appointment of Directors to the Board, namely: 

 

Industry knowledge and 

experience 

Experience and knowledge of the functioning, operations, 

changing trends of the industry. 

Technical expertise 

 

Expertise on project handling, market outreach, resource 

management  

Behavioral Competencies 

 

Ability and willingness to work in dynamic environment with 

integrity and ethical standards. 

Management and leadership skills Competent in maintaining public relations, ability to evaluate 

opportunities in the line of Company’s strategies. 

Understanding of financial aspects  Experience in financial management with understanding of 

funding, capital management and financial reporting processes. 

 

All the directors of the Company have possessed above mentioned skills/ expertise and competence. 

 

F. Confirmation about the fulfilment of the terms and conditions by the independent directors: 

 

The Board is of the opinion on the basis of declarations given by the Independent Directors that they 

fulfilled the terms and conditions specified in these regulations and are independent of the management. 

 

G. Detailed reason for the resignation of an Independent Director who resigns before the expiry of 

his/ her tenure along with the confirmation by such director that there are no other material 

reasons other than those provided: Not Applicable 

 

H. Information in cases of appointment or re-appointment as required under listing regulations is 

given as under: 

 

• Mr. Anurag Rathi retires by rotation and will be re-appointed as Director of the Company in the 

ensuing AGM.  

• Mr. Hukum Singh was appointed as an Additional Non-Executive Director w.e.f. 24.10.2024 and 

is proposed to be regularized at the ensuing Annual General Meeting. 

• Mr. Chander Mohan has resigned from the post of Directorship w.e.f. 25.10.2024. 
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BOARD COMMITTEES 

 

3.       AUDIT COMMITTEE: - 

 

The Audit Committee of the Company is constituted as per Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013 and 

Regulation 18 of SEBI (Listing Obligations & Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 to review the 

Internal Audit Systems and it comprises of Independent Directors in compliance of the respective 

Regulation. The Company has reconstituted its committee on 08.05.2023. Accordingly, Ms. Sonali V 

Chitalkar is the Chairperson of the Committee, Ms. Shikha Chakraborty and Mr. Uddhav Rathi are the 

members of the Committee. Finance Manager/ CFO and Statutory Auditors are the invitees to the meeting. 

The terms of reference of this Committee cover the matters specified for Audit Committees under 

Regulation 18 of SEBI (Listing Obligations & Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 as well as in 

Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013. There were Six Audit Committee Meetings held during the year. 

 

The Audit Committee meeting held 6 (Six) times i.e. on 30.05.2024, 12.08.2024, 30.08.2024, 24.09.2024, 

14.11.2024 and 11.02.2025 during the year and the gap between any two consecutive meetings was within 

the limit prescribed under the Act and SEBI (Listing Obligation and Disclosure Requirements) Regulation, 

2015. All the relevant information needed for taking decisions by the Committee is made available to the 

members at the meetings.  

 

ATTENDANCE OF EACH DIRECTOR AT THE AUDIT COMMITTEE MEETINGS: 

 

S. 

No. 

Name of the 

Director 

Nature of 

Directorship 

Designation in 

Committee 

Number of 

Audit 

Committee 

meetings held 

Number of Audit 

Committee 

Meetings attended 

1. Ms. Sonali V 

Chitalkar 

Independent 

Director 

Chairperson 6 6 

2. Ms. Shikha 

Chakraborty 

Independent 

Director 

Member 6 6 

3. Mr. Uddhav 

Rathi 

WTD and CFO Member 6 6 

 

The major tasks performed by the Audit Committee may be grouped under the following heads: 

 

Statutory audit, internal audit, approval of related party transactions, reporting and other aspects; 

 

i. The Audit Committee of the Company is entrusted with the responsibility to supervise the 

Company’s internal controls and financial reporting process. The Committee acts as a link between 

the Management, Auditors and the Board of Directors of the Company and has full access to the 

financial Information.  

ii. Oversight of the Company’s financial reporting process and the disclosure of its financial 

information to ensure that the financial statement is correct, sufficient and credible and ensuring 

timely submission to statutory authorities.  

iii. Reviewing the Management Discussion & Analysis of financial and operational performance. 

iv. Reviewing with the management, the quarterly financial statements and annual financial statements 

and auditor's report thereon before submission to the Board for approval.  

v. Review the adequacy and effectiveness of the Company’s system and internal control.  

vi. Evaluation of Internal Financial Controls and Risk Management Systems.  

vii. To review the functioning of the Whistle Blower mechanism.  

 

4.        NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE: - 

 

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee (‘NRC’) of the Company is constituted in accordance with 

Section 178 of the Companies  Act and Regulation 19 of SEBI (Listing Obligations & Disclosure 

Requirements) Regulations, 2015 to give recommendation to the Board regarding appointment/ re-

appointment of the Board of Directors and Independent Directors and to evaluate the performance of them 
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and it comprises of Independent Directors and Non- Executive Directors in compliance of the respective 

Regulation.  

 

The terms of reference of this Committee cover the matters specified for Nomination and Remuneration 

Committee under Regulation 19 of SEBI (Listing Obligations & Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 

2015 as well as in Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013. Three Meetings of the respective committee 

were held during the year.  

 

The NRC meeting held 3 (Three) times i.e. on 30.08.2024, 25.10.2024, and 11.02.2025 during the year and 

the gap between any two consecutive meetings was within the limit prescribed under the Act and SEBI 

(Listing Obligation and Disclosure Requirements) Regulation, 2015. All the relevant information needed 

for taking decisions by the committee is made available to the members at the meetings.  

 

The terms of reference of the committee are as follows: - 

 

i. Formulation of the criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes and independence of a 

director and recommend to the Board a policy relating to, the remuneration of the Directors, key 

Managerial Personnel and other employees;  

 

ii. Formulation of criteria for evaluation of Independent Directors and the Board;  

 

iii. Devising a policy on Board diversity;  

 

iv. Identifying persons who are qualified to become Directors and who may be appointed in senior 

management in accordance with the criteria laid down and recommend to the Board their 

appointment and removal.  

 

v. The Remuneration Policy as adopted by the Company envisages payment of remuneration according 

to qualification, experience and performance at different levels of the organization. The workers at 

the factory as well as those rendering clerical, administrative and professional services are suitably 

remunerated according to the industry norms.  

 

The details of the composition of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee are as under:  

 

S. 

No. 

Name of the 

Director 

Nature of 

Directorship 

Designation in 

Committee 

Number of 

meetings held 

No. of meetings 

attended 

1 Ms. Shikha 

Chakraborty  

Independent 

Director 

Chairperson 3 3 

2 Ms. Sonali V 

Chitalkar 

Independent 

Director 

Member 3 3 

3 Mr. Rajendra 

Prasad 

Independent 

Director 

Member 3 3 

 

PERFORMANCE EVALUATION: 

 

Criteria for evaluating the performance of Independent Directors is enumerated below: 

 

S. No. Assessment Criteria Rating Remarks/ Comments 

1. Attendance and participation in the meetings   

2. Raising of concerns to the Board   

3. Demonstrating a willingness to devote time and 

effort to understand the Company and its business 

and readiness to participate in events outside the 

meeting room, such as site visits 

  

4. Safeguard of confidential information.   
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5. Rendering independent, unbiased opinion and 

resolving issues at meetings. 

  

6. Director’s performance and behaviour promotes 

mutual trust and respect within the Board / 

Committee. 

  

7. Initiative in terms of new ideas and planning for the 

Company. 

  

8. Safeguarding interest of whistle-blowers under 

vigil mechanism. 

  

9. Timely inputs on the minutes of the meetings of the 

Board and Committee’s, if any 

  

10. Director is able to present his/ her views 

convincingly yet diplomatically. 

  

11. Director acts within his authority and assists in 

protecting the legitimate interest of the Company, 

Shareholder and employees. 

  

12. Overall rating of Independent Directors 

Performance 

  

 

5.        STAKE-HOLDER’S RELATIONSHIP COMMITTEE: - 

 

The Stake-Holder’s Relationship Committee of the Company is constituted as per Regulation 20 of SEBI 

(Listing Obligations & Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 to give recommendation to look after 

the redressal of Shareholders and Investors Grievances and approves transfer/ transmission, sub-division 

and issue of duplicate share certificates etc. The Company’s Registrars and Share Transfer Agents handle 

the investor grievances in consultation with the Compliance Officer of the Company. The Registrars have 

adequate skilled staff with potential qualifications and advanced computer systems for speedy redressal of 

the investor grievances. One Meeting of the respective committee were held during the year. 

 

The details of composition of the Committee are as under: 

 

S. No. Name Nature of Directorship Designation in Committee 

1. Ms. Shikha 

Chakraborty  

Independent Director (NED) Chairperson 

2. Ms. Sonali V Chitalkar Independent Director (NED) Member 

3. Mr. Uddhav Rathi Whole Time Director (ED) Member 

 

Name of Compliance Officer:  

 

Bharti chitkara (Company Secretary cum Compliance Officer) 

 

• Number of shareholder’s complaint received during the year: NIL 

• Number of complaints not solved to the satisfaction of shareholder’s: NIL 

• Number of pending complaints: NIL 

 

The total process of settlement of a complaint right from its receipt to disposal is fully computerized to 

ensure timely settlement. It normally takes 10-15 days from the receipt of the complaint for disposal of 

investor grievance. 

 

6.        REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS: - 

 

A. PECUNIARY RELATIONSHIP 

 

During FY 2024-25, the Company did not have any material pecuniary relationship or transactions with 

Non-Executive Directors apart from paying Director’s remuneration/ Sitting fee. Further, the Directors 
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have not entered into any contracts with the Company or its subsidiaries, which are in material conflict 

with the interest of the Company. 

 

The Board has received disclosures from KMPs and Members of Senior Management relating to material, 

financial and commercial transactions where they and/or their relatives have personal interest. 

 

B. CRITERIA OF MAKING PAYMENT TO NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR: 

 

The criteria for making payment to non-executive director is disseminate on the website of the Company 

and the weblink for accessing the same is http://erp.tsnet.in:8080/rathisteels/wp-content/uploads/ 2024/ 04/ 

RBL_NRC-Policy.pdf 

 

C. DISCLOSURE WITH RESPECT TO REMUNERATION OF THE DIRECTORS: 

 

S. 

No. 

Name Designation Remuneration 

paid for FY 

2023-24 (in Rs.) 

Ratio/ Times 

per Median of 

employee 

remuneration 

Percentage 

Increase/ 

decrease in the 

Remuneration 

1. Anurag Rathi 

 

Managing Director 21,60,000 8.99 0.00% 

2. Uddhav Rathi 

 

Whole-time Director 18,00,000 7.49 0.00% 

3. Chander Mohan Non-Executive 

Director 

1,18,032 0.49 -31.32% 

4. Rajendra Prasad Independent Director 50,000 0.21 0.00% 

5. Shikha 

Chakraborty 

Independent Director 50,000 0.21 0.00% 

6. Sonali V 

Chitalkar 

Independent Director 50,000 0.21 0.00% 

7. Hukum Singh Additional Non-

Executive Director 

Nil Nil Nil 

 

The Company is not paying any type of Bonus, Commission or any other perquisite or incentives to its 

directors apart from the remuneration. 

 

7.        RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE: 

 

The Company is not required to constitute risk management committee under the regulation 20 of SEBI 

(LODR) Regulations, 2015. 

 

8.        SENIOR MANAGEMENT: 

 

There is no change in the senior management of the Company. 

 

9.        GENERAL BODY MEETINGS: 

 

The General Meetings of the last three years of the Company have been held as under: 

 

For the 

Year 

Location Day and Date Time No. of 

Special 

Resolution 

passed 

2023-24 A-24/8, Mohan Co-Operative 

Industrial Estate, Mathura Road, 

New Delhi-110044 

Tuesday, 24th 

September, 2024 

10:00 A.M. 0 
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2022-23 

(AGM) 

A-24/8, Mohan Co-Operative 

Industrial Estate, Mathura Road, 

New Delhi-110044 

Friday, 04th August, 

2023 

10:00 A.M. 2 

2021-22 

(AGM) 

A-24/8, Mohan Co-Operative 

Industrial Estate, Mathura Road, 

New Delhi-110044 

Thursday, 29th 

September, 2022 

10:00 A.M. 2 

 

• No Extra Ordinary General Meeting of the shareholders was held during the year. 

• No special resolution is passed in last year through postal ballot. 

 

10.     MEANS OF COMMUNICATION: 

 

As per the directions given in the circulars issued by Ministry Corporate Affairs (“MCA”) and Securities 

and Exchange Board of India (“SEBI”) the companies are allowed to send Annual Report by e-mail to all 

the Members of the Company. Therefore, the Annual Report for FY 2024-25 and notice of 32nd AGM of 

the Company is being sent to the Members at their registered e-mail addresses in accordance with MCA 

and SEBI Circulars.  

 

Yearly financial results of the Company are published as per the requirements of Regulation 33 & 47 of 

the SEBI (LODR) Regulations in leading newspapers i.e., Jansatta (Hindi) and Financial Express (English). 

The financial results, press releases and other reports/ intimations required under the SEBI (LODR) 

Regulations are filed electronically BSE Limited (BSE) and also uploaded on the Company’s website 

http://erp.tsnet.in:8080/rathisteels/investors/ 

 

During the year, no presentations were made to analysts/ institutional investors 

 

11.      GENERAL SHAREHOLDERS INFORMATION: 

 

Corporate Identification Number (CIN)  L74899DL1993PLC054781 

Registered Office  A-24/7, Mohan Cooperative Industrial Estates, 

Mathura Road, New Delhi-110044 

Annual General Meeting  

 

 

Day, Date and Time :        Tuesday, 16th September, 2025 at 12:30 P.M. 

Venue :  A-24/7, Mohan Co-operative Industrial Estate, 

Mathura Road, New Delhi-110044 

Financial Calendar   

Financial Year  :  01st April, 2024 to 31st March, 2025 

First Quarter Results  : 12th August, 2024 

Second Quarter Results : 14th November, 2024 

Third Quarter Results : 11th February, 2024 

Fourth Quarter Results : 29th Day of May, 2025 

Annual General Meeting for the year  

ending March 31, 2024 

: 24th Day of September, 2024 

Date of Book Closure 

 

 

:   

13th September, 2025 to 16h September 2025 (both 

days inclusive) 

Dividend Payment Date : NA 

 

Listing on Stock Exchanges 

 

 

: Bombay Stock Exchange Ltd.  

Floor 25, P J Towers, Dalal Street, 

Mumbai-400 001 

 

Scrip Code : 532918 

ISIN for Depositories :     INE575101016 
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DISTRIBUTION OF SHAREHOLDING: 

 

SHAREHOLDING NO. OF SHARE 

HOLDERS 

% AGE NO. OF SHARES % AGE TO 

TOTAL 

Upto-5000 7575 81.89 1029063 6.302 

5001-10000 891 9.63 700257 4.288 

10001-20000 435 4.70 633503 3.879 

20001-30000 133 1.44 333426 2.042 

30001-40000 50 0.54 184423 1.129 

40001-50000 39 0.42 184485 1.13 

50001-100000 49 0.53 377316 2.311 

100001-Above 78 0.85 12887884 78.92 

TOTAL 9250 100.00 16330357 100.00 

 

PHYSICAL/NSDL/CDSL -SUMMARY REPORT AS ON 31.03.2025: 

 

PARTICULARS SHARES PERCENTAGE (%) 

PHYSICAL 4 0.00 

NSDL 13366227 81.85 

CDSL 2964126 18.15 

TOTAL 16330357 100.00 

 

SHAREHOLDING PATTERN AS ON 31.03.2025: 

 

CATEGORY NO. OF 

HOLDERS 

NO. OF SHARES PERCENTAGE 

(%) OF 

HOLDING 

PROMOTER & PROMOTER 

GROUP 

21 10453112 64.01 

FINANCIAL INSTITUTION 0 0 0.00 

CLEARING MEMBER 5 10557 0.06 

NON-RESIDENT INDIAN 55 97523 0.60 

BODIES CORPORATE 19 106901 0.65 

INDIVIDUALS 9150 5662264 34.68 

TOTAL 9250 16330357 100.00 

 

DEMATERIALISATION OF SHARES: 

 

Break up of shares in physical and demat form as on 31st March, 2025 is as follows: 

 

Particulars No. of Shares % of Total No. of Shares 

Physical Segment 4 0.00 

Demat Segment:  16330353 100.00 

NSDL- 13366227 - - 

CDSL- 2964126 - - 

Total 16330357 100 

 

OUTSTANDING INSTRUMENTS AND THEIR IMPACT ON EQUITY: 

 

There are no outstanding GDRs/ADRs or warrants or any other convertible instrument as on 31.03.2025 
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CREDIT RATINGS: 

 

The list of credit rating(s) obtained by the Company along with revisions thereto for the financial year, 

2024-25 is furnished below: 

 

Particular Rating month Rating during FY 2024-25 

CRISIL LIMITED 26/08/2024 BBB 

 

COMMODITY PRICE RISK OR FOREIGN EXCHANGE RISK AND HEDGING ACTIVITIES: 

 

The above-mentioned clause is not applicable on the Company. 

 

IN CASE THE SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY ARE SUSPENDED FROM TRADING, THE 

REASONS THEREOF: 

 

Not Applicable 

 

PLANT LOCATION: 

 

SP1-7, RIICO Industrial Area, Khushkhera (Bhiwadi), P.O. Tapukra-301707, Distt. Alwar, Rajasthan 

 

REGISTER & SHARE TRANSFER AGENT: 

 

MAS Services Limited, T-34, Second Floor, Okhla Industrial Area, Phase II, New Delhi-110020  

Ph: 011-26387281-83, Email: sm@masserv.com 

 

ADDRESS FOR CORRESPONDENCE: 

 

Shareholders correspondence may be addressed to:  

 

The Registrar & Transfer Agent - 

MAS Services Limited 

T-34, Second Floor, Okhla Industrial  

Area, Phase II New Delhi-110020  

Ph:011-26387281-83 

Email: sm@masserv.com 

The Company - 

Rathi Bars Limited 

A-24/7, Mohan Cooperative Industrial  

Estate, Mathura Road, New Delhi-110044 

Ph: 011-42760373 

Email: rathibars@hotmail.com 

 

SHARE TRANSFER SYSTEM: 

 

The Company’s shares are in demat mode. The shares received for transfer in physical mode are registered 

and returned within a period of 15 days from the date of receipt, if the documents are clear in all respect. 

 

OTHER DISCLOSURES: 

 

In accordance with requirement of Companies Act as well as SEBI (Listing Obligations & Disclosure 

Requirements) Regulations, 2015, a vigil mechanism has been adopted by the Board of directors and 

accordingly a whistle blower policy has been formulated with a view to provide a mechanism for employees 

of the Company to approach Internal Auditor or Chairman of the Audit Committee of the Company to 

report any grievance. A link to such policy is also provided in the website of the Company. 

 

Compliances, rules & regulations as laid down by various statutory authorities has always been observed 

by the Company since such change over both in letter as well as in spirit. 

 

The Board has obtained certificates/disclosures from key management personnel confirming, they do not 

have any material financial and commercial interest in transactions with the Company at large. 
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RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS: 

 

All transactions entered into with the Related Parties as defined under the Companies Act, 2013 and 

Regulation 23 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 during the 

financial year were on arm’s length basis and do not attract the provisions of section 188 of the Companies 

Act, 2013. There were no materially significant transactions with Related Parties during the year. 

 

As required under Regulation 23(1) of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 

Regulations, 2015, the Company has formulated a policy on dealing with Related Party Transactions. The 

policy is available on the website: http://erp.tsnet.in:8080/rathisteels/wp-content/uploads/2024/04/ RBL 

_RPT-Policy.pdf 

 

DETAILS OF NON-COMPLIANCE: 

 

The Company has complied with the requirements of the Stock Exchanges, SEBI and other statutory 

authorities on all matters relating to capital markets during the last three years and no penalties and/or 

strictures have been imposed on the Company in this regard, except in the following cases: 

 

Sl. 

No. 

Particular of non-

compliances/ 

Auditor Remark’s 

Section/ Regulation/ Rules Advisory / Clarification/ 

Fine/ Show Cause 

Notice/ Warning etc. 

Management Response 

1. Failed to regularize 

the additional Director 

within a period of 3 

months 

Regulation 17(1C) of SEBI 

(LODR) Regulations, 2015 

NA As per the management, it is 

due to not updation with the 

law and will ensure that this 

type of non-compliances 

should not repeat in future 

2. The Company has not 

submitted its financial 

results within the 

period prescribed 

under this Regulation 

Regulation 33 of the SEBI 

(LODR) Regulations, 2015 

Fine of Rs. Rs. 1,7,1100/- 

imposed by BSE 

The Company has paid the fine 

of Rs. 1,71,100/- to the BSE 

and ensure that this type of non-

compliance shall not occur in 

future. 

3. The Company has not 

submitted the 

disclosure of related 

party transactions on 

consolidated basis. 

Regulation 23 (9) of the 

SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 

2015 

Fine of Rs. 0.00 imposed 

by the BSE 

The Company has represented 

to BSE that it will ensure that 

this type of non-compliance 

shall not occur in future. 

4. The Company has not 

submitted the 

secretarial compliance 

report in the XBRL 

format. 

Regulation 24 (A) of the 

SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 

2015 

Fine of Rs. 35,400/- 

imposed by the BSE 

The Company has paid the Fine 

of Rs. 35,400/- to BSE and 

ensure that this non-

compliance occurred due to 

introduction of the submission 

of the new format of XBRL for 

secretarial compliance report 

and will ensure that this type of 

non-compliance shall not occur 

in future. 

5. Meeting of 

Stakeholder 

Relationship 

Committee has not 

been held during the 

FY 2023-24 

Regulation 20 (3A) of the 

SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 

2015 

Query raised by the BSE The Company has represented 

to BSE that meeting of 

Stakeholder Relationship 

Committee held on Monday, 

the 12th Day of February, 2024. 

6. Mismatched 

observed by BSE: 

The Company has not 

provided same PAN of 

SEBI Circulars no. 

SEBI/HO/ISD/ISD/CIR/P/2

020/168 dated 09.09.2020 & 

SEBI/CIR/CFD/DCR1/CIR/

Query raised by the BSE The Company has addressed 

the issue with BSE & NSDL. 
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Promoter/ Promoter 

Group in depositories 

system as provided in 

shareholding pattern 

filed by the Company 

with BSE 

P/2020/181 dated 

23.09.2020 & Regulation 

31(1) of the SEBI (LODR) 

Regulations, 2015 

7. Non-Submission of 

Corporate 

Governance Report, 

Statement of investor 

Complaints and 

Integrated Filing 

(Governance) for the 

quarter ended 

31.12.2024  

Regulation 13(3) & 27(2) of 

the SEBI (LODR) 

Regulations, 2015 

Query raised by the BSE The Company has represented 

to BSE that all the filing of the 

said quarter has been done 

within the time framed i.e. 

14.02.2025. 

8. BSE sought the 

explanations from the 

Company regarding 

fluctuations in share 

price of the Company 

Regulation 30 of the SEBI 

(LODR) Regulations, 2015 

Clarification on Price 

Movement 

The Company has addressed 

the issue with BSE 

 

VIGIL MECHANISM POLICY: 

 

The Company believes in the conduct of the affairs of its constituents in a fair and transparent manner by 

adoption of highest standards of professionalism, honesty, integrity and ethical behavior. The Vigil 

Mechanism Policy adopted by the Company is in line with section 177(9) and (10) of the Companies Act, 

2013 and SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, which is a 

mandatory requirement and has been posed on the Company’s website, http://erp.tsnet.in:8080/ rathisteels/ 

wp-content/uploads/2024/04/RBL_Vigil-Mechanism.pdf 

 

DETAILS OF COMPLIANCE WITH MANDATORY REQUIREMENTS AND ADOPTION OF 

NON-MANDATORY REQUIREMENTS: 

 

The listed entity has complied with all the mandatory requirements as prescribed under Companies Act, 

2013, SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015 and other rules, regulations and other Acts as may be mandatorily 

applicable to the entity. 

 

However, the Company makes its best efforts for better corporate governance and maximum disclosures 

in addition to the mandatory requirements. 

 

WEB LINK WHERE POLICY FOR DETERMINING ‘MATERIAL SUBSIDIARIES’ IS 

DISCLOSED: 

 

Not Applicable 

 

WEB LINK WHERE POLICY ON DEALING WITH ‘RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS: 

 

The policy is available on the website: http://erp.tsnet.in:8080/rathisteels/wp-content/uploads/2024/04/ 

RBL_RPT-Policy.pdf 

 

COMMODITY PRICE RISK OR FOREIGN EXCHANGE RISK AND HEDGING ACTIVITIES: 

 

The above-mentioned clause is not applicable on the Company. 
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UTILIZATION OF FUNDS RAISED THROUGH PREFERENTIAL ALLOTMENT OR 

QUALIFIED INSTITIUTIONS PLACEMENT AS SPECIFIED UNDER REGULATION 32(7A): 

 

No funds were raised by the Company through Preferential allotment or by way of Qualified Intuitions 

Placement during the financial year, 2024-25. 

 

CERTIFICATE FROM PRACTICING COMPANY SECRETARIES: 

 

The Company has obtained a certificate from Mr. Devesh Maheshwari, partner of M/s. PWR Associates, 

Company Secretaries in Practice, pursuant to Regulation 34(3) and Schedule V Para C clause (10)(i) of the 

SEBI (LODR) Regulations confirming that none of the Directors on the Board of the Company have been 

debarred or disqualified from being appointed or continuing as directors of companies by the SEBI/ MCA/ 

Reserve Bank of India or any such statutory authority which is annexed as Annexure 1 with this Report. 

 

ACCEPTNCE AND NON-ACCEPTANCE OF RECOMMMENDATION/ SUBMISSION OF 

COMMITTEE OF BOARD BY THE BOARD AND REASON THEREOF FOR NON-

ACCEPTANCE: 

 

The Board has accepted all the recommendation/ submission made by the Committees of the Board. 

 

COMPLIANCE WITH ACCOUNTING STANDARDS: 

 

In the preparation of the financial statements, the Company has followed the Accounting Standards notified 

pursuant to Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2006 (as amended) and the relevant provision of the 

Companies Act, 2013 read with General Circular 8/2014 dated April 04, 2014, issued by the Ministry of 

Corporate Affairs. The significant accounting policies which are consistently applied have been set out in 

the Notes to the Financial Statements. 

 

The Company has paid a fee of Rs. 2,50,000 (Rupees Two Lakh and Fifty Thousand Only) to the Statutory 

Auditor of the Company for all his services including statutory audit. 

 

SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT WORKPLACE (PREVENTION, PROHIBITION 

AND REDRESSAL) ACT, 2013: 

 

The Company has in place a Policy for Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal of Sexual Harassment at 

work place which is in line with the requirements of the Sexual Harassment of women at the Workplace 

(Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013 and Rules made thereunder (“POSH”).  

 

All employees (permanent, contractual, temporary and trainees) are covered under this Policy. The 

Company has constituted an Internal Committee under Section 4 of the captioned Act. The Company has 

filed an Annual Report with the concerned Authority. Details of Sexual harassment complaints received: 

 

No. of complaints filed during the financial year 24-25: 0 

No. of complaints disposed of during the financial year 24-25: 0 

No. of complaints pending as on 31.03.2025: 0 

 

LOANS AND ADVANCES BY LISTED ENTITY AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES: 

 

The Company has not given any loans and advances to other forms/ Companies in which directors are 

interested. 

 

Name of firm/Companies in which director are interested and to 

who loans and advances are given 

 NA 

Amount Nil 
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DETAILS OF MATERIAL SUBSIDIARY OF COMPANY: 

 

As on March 31st, 2025 the Company doesn’t have any material subsidiary. 

 

NON-COMPLIANCE OF ANY REQUIREMENT OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE: 

 

There are no instances of non-compliance of any requirement of Corporate Governance Report. The 

Company has been regularly submitting the quarterly compliance report to the Stock Exchange as required 

under SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 

 

DISCLOSURE UNDER PART E OF SCHEDULE II OF SEBI (LODR) REGULATION, 2015: 

 

The listed entity has not adopted any of the discretionary requirements as specified in Part E Of Schedule 

II of SEBI (LODR) Regulation, 2015 

 

DISCLOSURE UNDER REGULATION 17 TO 27 AND REGULATION 46(2)(b) to (i) OF SEBI 

(LODR) REGULATION, 2015: 

 

The disclosures on corporate governance as required under Regulation 17 to 27 and Clause (b) to (i) of sub-

regulation (2) of Regulation 46 have been adhered and complied with. 

 

COMPLIANCE CERTIFICATE BY THE AUDITOR: 

 

Compliance certificate signed by the auditor regarding the compliance of conditions of the corporate 

governance is annexed as Annexure-C with Director’s Report. 

 

DECLARATION BY THE CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER: 

 

The listed entity doesn’t have any chief executive officer therefore, the said declaration stating that the 

members of Board of Director and Senior Management personnel have affirmed compliance with the Code 

of Conduct of the Board of Director and the Senior Management is signed by the Managing Director cum 

Chairman of the listed entity and the same is attached herewith this Annual Report as Annexure-2. 

 

DISCLOSURES WITH RESPECT TO DEMAT SUSPENSE ACCOUNT/ UNCLAIMED 

SUSPENSE ACCOUNT: 

 

Pursuant to Regulation 34(3) read with Schedule V of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 

Requirements) Regulations, 2015, the Company confirms that there are no equity shares lying in the Demat 

Suspense Account or Unclaimed Suspense Account as on the date of this report. 

 

COMPLIANCE CERTIFICATE BY THE CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER AND THE CHIEF 

EXECUTIVE OFFICER: 

 

The listed entity doesn’t have any chief executive officer therefore, the said compliance certificate under 

regulation 17(8) read with Part B of Schedule II of SEBI (LODER) Regulations, 2015 is signed by the 

Chief Financial Officer only of the listed entity and the same is attached herewith this Annual Report as 

Annexure-3. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Date: 22.08.2025 

Place: New Delhi 

 

          

  

Sd/- 

Anurag Rathi 

(Managing Director) 

DIN:00063345 

   By order of the Board of Directors 

For Rathi Bars Limited 

                                    

Sd/- 

Uddhav Rathi 

(WTD cum CFO) 

DIN:06604905 
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Annexure 1 

CERTIFICATE OF NON-DISQUALIFICATION OF DIRECTORS 

 

(Pursuant to Regulation 34(3) and Schedule V Para C clause (10)(i) of the 

SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015) 

 

 To, 

 The Members of 

 Rathi Bars Limited 

 

 Sir(s), 

 

We have examined the relevant registers, records, forms, returns and disclosures received from the 

Directors of Rathi Bars Limited (“the Company”) having CIN L74899DL1993PLC054781 and having 

Registered Office situated at A-24/7, Mohan Cooperative Industrial Estate, New Delhi-110044, produced 

before me by the Company for the purpose of issuing this Certificate, in accordance with Regulation 34(3) 

read with Schedule V Para-C Sub clause 10(i) of the Securities Exchange Board of India (Listing 

Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations,2015. 

 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the verifications (including Directors 

Identification Number (DIN) status at the portal (www.mca.gov.in) as considered necessary and 

explanations furnished to me/us by the Company & its officers, we hereby certify that none of the Directors 

on the Board of the Company as stated below for the Financial Year ending 31st March, 2025 have been 

debarred or disqualified from being appointed or continuing as Directors of companies by the Securities 

and Exchange Board of India, Ministry of Corporate Affairs, or any such other Statutory Authority. 

 

Sr. No. Name of Director DIN Date of appointment 

1 Mr. Anurag Rathi 00063345 10.08.1993 

2 Mr. Uddhav Rathi 06604905 13.02.2014 

3 Mr. Hukum Singh 07989600 25.10.2024 

4 Ms. Sonali V Chitalkar 07602962 30.09.2016 

5 Ms. Shikha Chakraborty 08253713 12.10.2018 

6. Mr. Rajendra Prasad 10057339 08.05.2023 

 

Ensuring the eligibility of for the appointment / continuity of every Director on the Board is the 

responsibility of the management of the Company. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these 

based on our verification. This certificate is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company 

nor of the efficiency or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Date: 18.08.2025 

Place: New Delhi 

 

For PWR Associates 

Company Secretaries 

 

- Sd/- 

Devesh Maheshwari 

Partner 

                               M. No.: 70318,  

C P No.: 26255 

UDIN: A070318G001023897  

Peer Review No. 2988/2023 
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Annexure-2 

  

DECLARATION BY THE MANAGING DIRECTOR UNDER REGULATION 26(3) OF SEBI (LISTING 
OBLIGATIONS AND DISCLOSURE REQUIREMENTS) REGULATIONS, 2015 REGARDING 
COMPLIANCE BY BOARD MEMBERS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL WITH THE 
COMPANY’S CODE OF CONDUCT 
 
 
I, Anurag Rathi, Managing Director of Rathi Bars Limited, hereby declare that all the members of the 
Board of Directors and Senior Management Personnel have affirmed compliance with the Code of 
Conduct, as applicable to them, for the year ended March 31, 2025. 
 
   

 
 
 
 
Date: 22.08.2025 
Place: New Delhi 

 
 

Sd/- 
Anurag Rathi 

(Managing Director) 
DIN:00063345 
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Annexure-3 

 

CERTIFICATE BY CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER PURSUANT TO REGULATION 17(8) READ WITH 
PART B OF SCHEDULE II OF THE SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE BOARD OF INDIA (LISTING 
OBLIGATIONS AND DISCLOSURE REQUIREMENTS) REGULATIONS, 2015 
 
To 
The Board of Directors, 
Rathi Bars Limited 
 
I, Uddhav Rathi, Chief Financial Officer of Rathi Bars Limited, to the best of my knowledge and belief, 
certify to the Board of Directors of the Company as required Regulation 17(8) read with Part B of 
Schedule II of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 that: 
 
A. I have reviewed financial statements and the cash flow statement for the year and that to the 

best of my knowledge and belief: 
 

a. These statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any material fact 
or contain statements that might be misleading;  

 
b. These statements together present a true and fair view of the Company’s affairs and are in 

compliance with existing accounting standards, applicable laws, and regulations.  
 
B. There are, to the best of our knowledge and belief, no transactions entered into by the Company 

during the year which are fraudulent, illegal, or violate the Company’s code of conduct. 
 
C. We accept responsibility for establishing and maintaining internal control for financial reporting 

and that they have evaluated the effectiveness of internal control systems of the Company 
pertaining to financial reporting and we have disclosed to the auditors and the Audit Committee, 
deficiencies in the design or operation of such internal controls, if any, of which we are aware 
and the steps we have taken or propose to take to rectify these deficiencies. 

 
D. We have indicated to the auditors and the Audit committee: - 
 

a. Significant changes, if any, in internal control over financial reporting during the year; 
 
b. Significant changes, if any, in accounting policies during the year and that the same have been    

disclosed in the notes to the financial statements; and  
 
c. Instances of significant fraud of which they have become aware and the Involvement therein, 

if any, of the management or an employee having a significant role in the Company’s internal 
control system over financial reporting. 

 
 
 

 
 
 
Date: 22.08.2025 
Place: New Delhi 

 
Sd/- 

Uddhav Rathi 
DIN: 06604905 

(Whole Time Director cum CFO) 
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56~1ASAR & CO 
(Chartered Accountants) CA 

IND I A 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 

TO THE MEMBERS OF RATHI BARS LIMITED 

Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements 

Opinion 

B-113, Ilnd Floor, Sector-64, 
Noida-201301 (U.P.) 
Pbone:9891473868 
E-mail : info@masarindia.com 
Web.: www.masarindia.com 

We have audited the accompanying standalone financial statements of RATHI BARS 
LIMITED (the "Company"), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2025, the 
Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the Statement of 
Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended on that date and notes 
to the financial statements, including a summary of material accounting policies and other 
explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as the "Standalone Financial Statements"). 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, 
the aforesaid Standalone Financial Statements give the information required by the Companies 
Act, 2013 (the "Act") in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity 
with the Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act, ("Ind AS") and 
other accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company 
as at March 31, 2025 and its profit, total comprehensive income, changes in equity and its cash 
flows for the year ended on that date. 

Basis for Opinion 

We conducted our audit of the Standalone Financial Statements in accordance with the 
Standards on Auditing ("SA"s) specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities 
under those Standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of 
the Standalone Financial Statements section of our repo1t. We are independent of the Company 
in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants oflndia 
("ICAI") together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the Standalone 
Financial Statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder, and we 
have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the 
ICAI's Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence obtained by us is sufficient and 
appropriate to provide a basi$ for our audit opinion on the Standalone Financial Statements. 

Key Audit Matters 

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most 
significance in our audit of the Standalone Financial Statements of the current period. These 
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the Standalone Financial Statements as a 
whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these 
matters. We have determined the matters described below to be the key audit matters to be 
communicated in our report. 

We have determined t 1~ ...... w.i;;__ 'ey audit matters to communicate in our repo1t. 

* FRN-033829N .! 
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Information Other than the Fi.nancial Statements and Auditor's Report Thereon 

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other 
information comprises the information included in the Management Discussion and Analysis, 

Board's Repo1i including Annexures to Board's Report, Business Responsibility and 
Sustainability Report, Corporate Governance and Shareholder's Information, but does not 
include the consolidated financial statements, Standalone Financial Statements and our 

auditor's report thereon. 

Our opinion on the Standalone Financial Statements does not cover the other information and 

we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon. 

In connection with our audit of the Standalone Financial Statements, our responsibility is to 
read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially 
inconsistent with the Standalone Financial Statements or our knowledge obtained during the 

course of our audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. 

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of 
this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this 

regard. 

Responsibilities of Management and Board of Directors for the Standalone Financial 
Statements 

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the 
Act with respect to the preparation of these Standalone Financial Statements that give a true 
and fair view of the financial position, financial performance, including other comprehensive 

income, changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting 
principles generally accepted in India, including Ind AS specified under section 133 of the Act. 
This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance 
with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing 

.and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate 
accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and 
design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were 

operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, 
relevant to the preparation and presentation of the Standalone Financial Statements that give a 
true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

In preparing the Standalone Financial Statements, management and Board of Directors are 
responsible for assessing the Company's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as 
applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting, 
unless the Board of Directors either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, 
or has no realistic alternative but to do so. 

The Company's Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company's financial 
reporting process. 

~~o ;s::,; 
~~ Ar:P!.$. 
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Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Standalone Financial 

Statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and 

to issue an auditor's rep01i that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of 

assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always 

detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and 

are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected 

to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these Standalone Financial 

Statements. 

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain 

• professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also: 

• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the St:mdalone Financial 

Statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures 

responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to 

provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement 

resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve 

collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal 

control. 
• Obtain an understanding of internal financial control relevant to the audit in order to 

design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section l 

43(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the 

Company has adequate internal financial controls with reference to Standalone 

Financial Statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls. 

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of 

accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the management. 

• Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of 

accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty 

exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's 

ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, 

we are required to draw attention in our auditor's repo11 to the related disclosures in the 

Standalone Financial Statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our 

opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our 

auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease 

to continue as a going concern. 

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Standalone Financial 

Statements, including the disclosures, and whether the Standalone Financial Statements 

represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair 

presentation. 

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the Standalone Financial Statements that, 

individually or in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably 

knowledgeable user of the Standalone Financial Statements may be influenced. We consider 

quantitative materiality and qua(9~ (i) planning the scope of our audit work and 

~~A~$5 
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in evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified 

misstatements in the Standalone Financial Statements. 

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the 

planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant 

deficiencies in internal financial controls that we identify during our audit. 

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with 

relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all 

relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, 

and where applicable, related safeguards. 

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those 

matters that were of most significance in the audit of the Standalone Financial Statements of 

the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our 

auditor's report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, 

in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in 

our repo1t because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to 

outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication. 

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 

1. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit we report that: 

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of 

our knowledge and be Lief were necessary for the purposes of our audit. 

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the 

Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books. 

c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including Other Comprehensive 

Income, Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows dealt with 

by this Repo1t are in agreement with the books of account. 

d) In our opinion, the aforesaid Standalone Financial Statements comply with the Ind AS 

specified under Section 133 of the Act. 

e) On the basis ofthe written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 

2025 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as 

on March 31, 2025 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the 

Act. 

f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to 

Standalone Financial Statements of the Company and the operating effectiveness of 

such controls, refer to our separate Repo1t in "Annexure A". Our repo1t expresses an 

unmodified opinion on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the Company's 

internal financial controls w· ~Rrtf} to Standalone Financial Statements. 

~~ao ~ FRN-033829N ·; 

·~ ~ 
~A~,$. 
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g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance 

with the requirements of section 197( 16) of the Act, as amended, in our opinion and to 

the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the 

remuneration paid by the Company to its directors during the year is in accordance with 

the provisions of section 197 of the Act. 

h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance 

with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended, in our 

opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to 

us: 
1. There is no pending litigation which would have impact on its financial 

position and its financial Statements. 

11. The Company has made provision as required under applicable law or 

accounting standards for material foreseeable losses. The Company did not 

have any long-term derivative contracts. 

u1. There has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be transferred 

to the Investor Education and Protection Fund by the Company. 

iv. 
(a) The Management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and 

belief, no funds (which are material either individually or in the 

aggregate) have been advanced or loaned or invested ( either from 

borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) 

by the Company to or in any other person or entity, including foreign 

entity ("Intermediaries"), with the understanding, whether recorded in 

writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or 

indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any 

manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company ("Ultimate 

Beneficiaries") or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf 

of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; 

(b) The Management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and 

belief, no funds (which are material either individually or in the 

aggregate) have been received by the Company from any person or 

entity, including foreign entity ("Funding Parties"), with the 

understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the 

Company shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other 

persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf 

of the Fundin ____ • ate Beneficiaries") or provide any 

guarantee, sec "-~-~~ ehalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; 
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( c) Based on the audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and 
appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has 
caused us to believe that the representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) 
of Rule ll(e), as provided under (a) and (b) above, contain any material 
misstatement. 

v. The company has not declared or paid any dividend during the year 

v1. Based on our examination, which included test checks, the Company has 
used accounting software systems for maintaining its books of account for 
the financial year ended March 31, 2025 which have the feature of recording 
audit trail ( edit log) facility and the same has operated throughout the year 
for all relevant transactions recorded in the software systems. Further, 
during the course of our audit we did not come across any instance of the 
audit trail feature being tampered with and the audit trail has been preserved 
by the Company as per the statutory requirements for record retention. 

2. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 (the "Order") issued by the 
Central Government in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, we give in "Annexure B" a 
statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order. 

Place: New Delhi 
Date: 29.05.2025 

For MASAR & Co. 
Chartered A 
(FRN: 033 

CA. Shashi She 
(Partner) 
Membership No.519011 

UDIN:J.55Jqo11BML! Fl9q 13 
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ANNEXURE "A" TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 

(Referred to in paragraph l(t) under 'Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements' 
section of our report to the Members ofRATHI BARS LIMITED of even date) 

Report on the Internal Financial Controls with reference to Standalone Financial Statements 
under Clause (i) of sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the "Act") 

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to Standalone Financial Statements 
ofRATHI BARS LIMITED (the "Company") as of March 31, 2025 in conjunction with our audit 

of the Standalone Financial Statements of the Company for the year ended on that date. 

Management's and Board of Directors' Responsibilities for Internal Financial Controls 

The Company's Management and Board of Directors are responsible for establishing and 
maintaining internal financial controls with reference to Standalone Financial Statements based on 
the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the 
essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit oflnternal Financial 
Controls Over Financial Repo1ting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (the 
"ICAI''). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate 
internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient 

conduct of its business, including adherence to company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, 
the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting 

records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Act. 

Auditor's Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with 
reference to Standalone Financial Statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in 
accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial 

Reporting (the "Guidance Note") issued by the ICAI and the Standards on Auditing prescribed 
under Section 143(!0) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls 
with reference to Standalone Financial Statements. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require 
that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable 
assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to Standalone Financial 
Statements was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material 
respects. 

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the 
internal financial controls with reference to Standalone Financial Statements and their operating 
effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls with reference to Standalone Financial 

Statements included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls with reference to 
Standalone Financial Statements, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and 
evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The 
procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgement, including the assessment of the risks of 
material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained, is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis 
for our audit opinion on the Compan ~P!'E:!M--lv><• ·a1 controls with reference to Standalone 

Financial Statements. 
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference to Standalone Financial Statements 

A company's internal financial control with reference to Standalone Financial Statements is a 
process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting 
and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally 
accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial control with reference to Standalone 
Financial Statements includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of 
records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of 
the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as 
necessary to pennit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted 
accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in 
accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide 
reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or 
disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements. 

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with reference to Standalone Financial 
Statements 

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including 
the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements 
due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the 
internal financial controls with reference to Standalone Financial Statements to future periods are 
subject to the risk that the internal financial control with reference to Standalone Financial 
Statements may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of 
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate. 

Opinion 

In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the 
Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls with reference to 
Standalone Financial Statements and such internal financial controls with reference to Standalone 
Financial Statements were operating effectively as at March 31, 2025, based on the criteria for 
internal financial control with reference to Standalone Financial Statements established by the 
Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on 
Audit oflnternal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the ICAI. 

Place: New Delhi 
Date: 29.05.2025 

For MASAR & Co. 
Chartered Accountants 
(FRN: 033829N) --~-

CA. Shashi Shekhar Rai 
(Partner) 
Membership No.519011 

UDIN:2.5&, qou (3MLI c=.2gq,~ 
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ANNEXURE 'B' TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 

(Referred to in paragraph 2 under 'Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements' 
section of our report to the Members of Rathi Bars Limited of even date) 

To the best of our information and according to the explanations provided to us by the Company 
and the books of account and records examined by us in the normal course of audit, we state 
that: 
i) In respect of the Company's property, plant and equipment, right-of-use assets and 

intangible assets: 

ii) 

(a) (A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, 
including quantitative details and situation of property, plant and equipment 
and relevant details ofright-of-use assets. 

(B)The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of 
intangible assets. 

(b) The Company has a program of physical verification of property, plant and 
equipment and right-of-use assets so to cover all the assets once every three years 
which, in our opinion, is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and 
the nature of its assets. Pursuant to the program, certain property, plant and 
equipment and right-of-use assets were due for verification during the year and were 
physically verified by the Management during the year. According to the 
information and explanations given to us, no material discrepancies were noticed 
on such verification. 

(c) Based on our examination of the property tax receipts and lease agreement for land 
on which building is constructed, registered sale deed / transfer deed / conveyance 
deed provided to us, we report that, the title in respect of self-constructed buildings 
and title deeds of all other immovable prope11ies ( other than properties where the 
company is the lessee and the lease agreements are duly executed in favour of the 
lessee), disclosed in the financial statements included under Prope11y, Plant and 
Equipment are held in the name of the Company as at the balance sheet date. 

(d) The Company has not revalued any of its property, plant and equipment (including 
right-of-use assets) and intangible assets during the year. 

(e) No proceedings have been initiated during the year or are pending against the 
Company as at March 31, 2025 for holding any benami property under the Benami 
Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (as amended in 2016) and rules made 
thereunder. 

(a) The Management has conducted physical verification of inventory at reasonable 
intervals during the year. In our opinion, the coverage and procedure of such 
verification by the management is appropriate and no discrepancies of 5% or more 
in the aggregate for each class of inventory were noticed. 

(b) The Company has working capital limits in excess of~ 5crore sanctioned by banks 
on the basis of security of current assets and th nts, in respect of 

the working capital limits have been filed by th ~.i...,;: __ '~ banks and such 
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statements are in agreement with the books of account of the company for the 

respective periods, which were not subject to audit/review. 

iii) As informed to us, the company has not granted any loans, secured or unsecured, to 

companies, firms or other parties covered in the register maintained under section 189 

of the companies act. Accordingly, the sub clause (a), (b), (c), (d), (e) and (t) are not 

applicable to the company 

iv) The Company has complied with the provisions of Sections 185 and 186 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 in respect of loans granted, investments made and guarantees 

and securities provided, as applicable. 

v) The Company has not accepted any deposit or amounts which are deemed to be 

deposits. Hence, reporting under clause 3(v) of the Order is not applicable. 

vi) We have broadly reviewed the books of account maintained by the company pursuant 

to the rules made by Central Government for the maintenance of the cost records under 

section 148(1) of the companies act, 2013, related to the manufacturing activities and 

are of opinion the prima facie, the specified accounts and records have been made 

and maintained. We have not, however, made a detailed examination of the same. 

vii) In respect of statutory dues: 

(a) In our opinion, the Company has generally been regular in depositing undisputed 

statutory dues, including Goods and Services tax, Provident Fund, Employees' State 

Insurance, Income Tax, Sales Tax, Service Tax, duty of Custom, duty of Excise, 

Value Added Tax, Cess and other material statutory dues applicable to it with the 

appropriate authorities. 

There were no undisputed amounts payable in respect of Goods and Service tax, 

Provident Fund, Employees' State Insurance, Income Tax, Sales Tax, Service Tax, 

duty of Custom, duty of Excise, Value Added Tax, Cess and other material statutory 

dues in arrears as at March 31, 2025 for a period of more than six months from the 

date they became payable. 
(b) Details of statutory dues referred to in sub-clause (a) above which have not been 

deposited as on March 31, 2025 on account of disputes are given below: 

Name of Nature of Gross Amount Period to Forum 
the statute the dues amount Paid under the which where 

(In lacs) protest (in the amount dispute is 
lacs) relates pending 

Income Income 2.01 Nil AY 2014-15 CIT(A) 
tax tax 
act,1961 (Quantum) 

Income Income 17.67 Nil AY2015-16 CIT(A) 
tax tax 
act,1961 (Quantum) 
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Goods and Goods and 11.11 Nil FY August Appellate 
Services Services 2017 to Authority 
tax tax September 

(Quantum) 2020 

viii) There were no transactions relating to previously unrecorded income that have been 
surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the 
Income Tax Act, 1961 ( 43 of 1961 ). 

ix) 

x) 

(a) According to the information and explanations given to us, the company has not 
defaulted in repayment of its loans or borrowings or in the payment of interest 
thereon to any lender. • 

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, including confirmations 
Received from banks and representations received from the management of the 
company and on the basis of our audit procedures, we repo1i that the company has 
not been declared a wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or other 
lender. 

(c) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, 
money raised by way of term loans were applied for the purposes for which these 
were obtained. 

( d) On an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, funds raised 
on shmi-tenn basis have, prima facie, not been used during the year for long-term 
purposes by the Company. 

( e) On an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, the 
Company has not taken any funds from any entity or person on account of or to 
meet the obligations of its subsidiaries. 

(f) According to the information and explanations given to us, the company has not 
raised any loans during the year on the pledge of secmities held in its subsidiaries 
or joint venture 

(a) The Company has not raised moneys by way of initial public offer or further public 
offer (including debt instruments) during the year and hence repotiing under clause 
3(x)(a) of the Order is not applicable. 

(b) During the year, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private 
placement of shares or convertible debentures (fully or partly or optionally) and 
hence reporting under clause 3(x)(b) of the Ord • is not applicable. 

xi) ~R & 
(a) No fraud by the Company and no mate ,a,.rz11<•uu :--0,,...:T-"'~ mpany has been noticed 

or reported during the year. 
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(b) No report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Companies Act has been filed 
in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) 
Rules, 2014 with the Central Government, during the year and upto the date of this 
rep01i. 

(c) We have taken into consideration the whistle blower complaints received by the 
Company during the year (and upto the date of this report), while determining the 
nature, timing and extent of our audit procedures. 

xii) The Company is not a Nidhi Company and hence reporting under clause (xii) of the 
Order is not applicable. 

xiii) 

xiv) 

xv) 

xvi) 

(a) 

(b) 

(a) 

(b) 

In our opinion, the Company is in compliance with Section 177 and 188 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 with respect to applicable transactions with the related pa1iies 
and the details of related party transactions have been disclosed in the Standalone 
Financial Statements as required by the applicable accounting standards. 

In our opinion, the Company has an adequate internal audit system commensurate 
with the size and the nature of its business. 
We have considered, the internal audit reports for the year under audit, issued to the 
Company during the year and till date, in determining the nature, timing and extent 
of our audit procedures. 

In our opinion, during the year the Company has not entered into any non-cash 
transactions with its Directors or persons connected with its directors and hence 
provisions of section 192 of the Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable to the 
Company. 

In our opinion, the Company is not required to be registered under section 45-IA of 
the Reserve Bank oflndiaAct, 1934. Hence, reporting under clause 3(xvi)(a), (b) 
and (c) of the Order is not applicable. 

In our opinion, there is no core investment company within the Group (as defined 
in the Core Investment Companies (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016) and 
accordingly reporting under clause 3(xvi)(d) of the Order is not applicable. 

xvii) The Company bas not incurred cash losses during the financial year covered by our 
audit and the immediately preceding financial year. 

xviii) There has been.no resignation of the statutory auditors of the Company during the year. 

xix) On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realisation of financial 
assets and payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the 
financial statements and our knowledge of the Board of Directors and Management 
plans and based on our examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions, 
nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to believe that any material 
uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report indicating that Company is not 
capable of meeting its liabilities existing at t alance sheet as and when they 
fall due within a period of one year from t lC'll,i.N'l.i;H'l1::;1:"'1'1R;;c:;J.'1Uate. We, however, state that 
this is not an assurance as to the future vi '1:1· of the any. 

* FRN-033829N -l!J 
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xx) 

We further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit 
report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling 
due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by 
the Company as and when they fall due. 

(a) The provisions relating to Corporate Social Responsibility under section 135 of the 
companies act,2013 are not applicable to the company. Accordingly, reporting 
under clause 3(xx)(a) of the Order is not applicable to the company. 

(b) The reporting under Clause 3(xxi) of the order is not applicable in respect of audit 
of standalone financial Statements. Accordingly, no comment in respect of the said 
clause has been included in his report 

For MASAR & Co. 
Chartered A ~-~ 
(FRN: 0 

CA. Shashi Sh 
(Partner) 
Membership No.519011 

Place: New Delhi 
Date: 29.05.2025 

uDIN:2-s-s1qo11BM Ll Fz.eq 13 
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RATHI BARS LIMITED 
Regd. Office: A-24/7, Mohan Co-Operative Industrial Estate, Mathura Road, New Delhi-110044 

Standalone Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2025. 
Particulars 

ASSETS 

Non-current assets 

(a) Property, plant and equipment 

(b) Capital work-in-progress 

(c) Financial assets 

- Investments 

(d) Deffered Tax Assets (Net) 

(e) Other non-current Assets 

-Investment in Gold / Silver 

Sub-total - Non-Current Assets 

Current assets 

(a) Inventories 

(b} Financial assets 

- Investments 

-Trade receivables 

-Cash and cash equivalents 

-Loans & Advances 

(c) Current Tax Assets (net) 

(d) Other Current Assets 

Sub-total - Current Assets 

TOTAL - ASSETS 

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 

EQUITY 

(a) Equity Share capital 

(b) Other equity 

Sub-total - Equity 

LIABILITIES 

Non-current liabilities 

(a) Financial liabilities 

(b) 

(c) 

(d) 

-Borrowings 

Provisions 

Deffered tax liabilities (net) 

Other non-current liabilities 

Sub-total - Non-current liabilities 

Current liabilities 

(a) Financial liabilities 

-Borrowings 

(b) 

(c) 

(d) 

-Trade payables 

Other current liabilities 

Provisions 

Current tax liabilities (net) 

Sub-total - Current liabilities 

TOTAL - EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 

General Information 

Significant Accounting Policies & Notes on Accounts 

As per our report of ev 

For MASAR & 

CA. Shash 

Partner 

~ 
(Company Secretary) 

Membership No.519011 Membership No.72963 

UDIN 2-5519°IIGHL.It=z.8q13 
Place : New Delhi 

Date : 29/05/2025 

Notes 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

2 

(All amounts in Rs. Lacs unless otherwise stated) 

As at 31 March,2025 

4,135.40 

503.15 

7.72 

14.68 

4,660.95 

1,287.01 

9,744.81 

24.77 

3,792.62 

0.39 

14,849.60 

19,510.55 

1,633.04 

8,015.96 

9,649.00 

736.96 

48.91 

461.03 

1,246.90 

7,461.26 

758.65 

385.66 

9.08 

8,614.65 

19,510.55 

As at 31 March,2024 

3,812.11 

691.26 

7.72 

14.68 

4,525.77 

1,569.41 

7,279.15 

48.82 

4,442.00 

4.27 

13,343.65 

17,869.42 

1,633.04 

7,759.40 

9,392.44 

991.31 

46.80 

424.68 

1,462.79 

5,664.26 

888.98 

454.21 

6.74 

7,014.19 

17,869.42 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 

Uddhav Rathi 

(Whole Time Director and CFO) 

DIN No: 06604905 

144,' 
~athi 

~Mana:~n:rf :ctor) 

DIN No: 00063345 
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RATHI BARS LIMITED 
Reqd. Office: A-24/7, Mohan Co-Operative Industrial Estate, Mathura Road, New Delhi-110044 

Statement of Profit and Loss for the Year ended 31st March, 2025 
Particulars 

1 Income 
(a) Revenue from Operations 

(b) Other Income 

Total Income 
2 Expenses 

(a) Cost of Materials consumed 
(b) Purchase of stock-in-trade 

(c) Changes in inventories of finished goods, work-in­
(d) Employee benefits expense 

(e) Finance Costs 

(f) Depreciation and amortisation expense 
(g) Other expenses 

Total Expenses 
3 Profit/ (Loss) before exceptional items and Tax(l-2) 

4 Exceptional Items 

5 Profit/ (Loss) before tax (3 - 4) 

6 Tax expense* 

(a) Current Tax 
( b) Deferred tax (Refer Note-2 item 3g of notes of accounts) 

7 Net Profit/ (Loss) for the period from Continuing 
Operatin (5 - 6)* 

8 Profit & Loss from Discontinuing Operation 
9 Tax Expenses from Discontinuing operation 
10 Profit/ (Loss) from Discontinuing Operation after Tax 

(8-9) 

11 Net Profit/ (Loss) for the period (7 + 10) 

12 Other Comprehensive Income 
A Items that will not be reclassified to Profit or Loss 

ii Income Tax relating to items that wiil not be 
reclassified to Profit or Loss 

B 

ii 

Items that will be reclassified to Profit or Loss 

Income Tax relating to items that wiil be 
reclassified to Profit or Loss 

Total Comprehensive Income (11+12) 
13 Earnings Per Share (EPS) ( of Rs. 10/- each) 
(a) Basic and diluated (EPS) (in Rs.) 

General Information 

Significant Accounting Policies & Notes on Accounts 

As per our report of even date attached 

For MASAR & Co. 

FRN: 033829 

CA. Shashi Shekha 

Partner 

Membership No.519011 

Place : New Delhi 

Date : 29/05/2025 

(Company Secretary) 

Membership No.72963 

Note No. 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

2 

(All amounts in Rs. Lacs unless otherwise stated) 
For the Year ended For the Year ended 

31 March,2025 31 March,2024 

(Rs in Lacs) (Rs in Lacs) 

49,628.82 61,403.52 

141.77 33.72 

49,770.59 61,437.24 

29,815.84 37,213.36 

16,164.47 20,478.44 

360.97 131.97 

519.75 562.76 

649.98 613.30 
476.02 449.06 

1,431.96 1,583.62 
49,418.99 61,032.51 

351.60 404.73 

351.60 404.73 

58.69 81.97 
36.35 (34.06) 
256.56 356.82 

256.56 356.82 

1.57 2.19 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 

~ID.itu 
Uddhav Rathi 

(Whole Time Director and CFO) 

DIN No: 06604905 

(Managing Director) 

DIN No: 00063345 
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RATHI BARS LIMITED 
Regd. Office: A-24/7, Mohan Co-Operative Industrial Estate, Mathura Road, New Delhi-110044 

Cash Flow Statement for Year ended 31st March, 2025 

S. Particulars 
No: 
A Cash Flow from operating activities: 

Profit Before Taxation 
Adjustments for: 
Depreciation 
lntere~t and Financial Charges 
Misc. Expenditure written off 
Pre-operative Expenses 
Loss/ (Profit) on Mutual Fund 
Interest Income 
Dividend Income 

Operating Profit before working capital changes 

Decreased (Increase) in Trade Receivables 
Decreased (Increase) in Inventories 
Decreased (Increase) in Loan & Advances 
Increase (Decrease) in Current Liabilities and 
Provisions 

Cash Generated from operations 
Income Tax paid 

Net cash provided by operating activities 

B Cash flow from investing activities: 
Proceeds from sale of fixed assets 
Sale/ (Purchase) of Investments 
Sale / (Purchase) of Fixed assets and Capital Work in 
Progress 
Profit/ (Loss) on Mutual Fund 

Income from Interest 
Income from Dividend 

Net cash used in investing activities 
C Cash Flow from Financing Activities 

Proceeds from Share Capital (Including Premium) 
Unclaimed Share Application Money Refundable 
Increase/ (Decrease) in Reserves & Surplus 
lncrease/(Decrease) in Long Term Borrowing 
Increase in Short Term Borrowing (Net) 
Increase (Decrease) in Unsecured Loan 
Interest Paid 

Net Cash used in Financing Activities 

D Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 

E Cash and Cash Equivalent at the begning of the year 

F Cash and Cash Equivalent at the end of the year 

For MASAR & Co. 

~ ..... 
Partner 
Membership No.519011 

(Company Secretary) 
Membership No.72963 

UDIN: 'll5s1q 0 ,, BM LI Fzsqi-3 

Place : New Delhi 
Date : 29/05/2025 

(All amounts in Rs. Lacs unless otherwise stated) 

Year Ended 
31/03/2025 

351.60 

476.02 
649.98 

11.82 

1489.42 

(2465.67) 
282.40 
653.27 

(196.54) 

(237.12) 
(58.69) 

(295.81) 

(611.20) 

(11.82) 

(623.02) 

(252.24) 
1797.00 

(649.98) 

894.78 

(24.05) 

48.82 

24.77 

Year Ended 
31/03/2024 

404.73 

449.06 
613.30 

8.83 
(0.06) 

1475.86 

648.67 
59.41 

(511.08) 
(347.89) 

1324.97 
(81.97) 

1243.00 

46.69 
(98.39) 

(8.83) 
0.06 

(60.47) 

(560.89) 
(12.03) 

(613.30) 

(1186.22) 

(3.69) 

52.51 

48.82 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 

~~;~~-
(Whole Time Director and CFO) (Managing Director) 

DIN No: 06604905 DIN No: 00063345 
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RATHI BARS LIMITED 
Reqd. Office: A-24/7, Mohan Co-Operative Industrial Estate. Mathura Road, New Delhi-110044 

Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended 31st March 2025 
A. EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL 
Particulars 
As at 31st March,2023 
Changes in equity share capital during the year 
As at 31st March,2024 
Changes in equity share capital during the year 
As at 31st March,2025 

B. OTHER EQUITY 
Paticulars 

Balance as on March 31, 2023 
Add/Less : Changes in Accounting Policy or Prior 

Restated balance at 01 April, 2023 
Add/Less: Total Comprehensive Income for the 
Year 

ii Dividends 
iii Transfer to Retained Earnings 
iv Any Other Change 

Balance as on March 31, 2024 
Add/Less : Changes in Accounting Policy or Prior 

Restated balance at 01 April, 2024 
Add/Less: Total Comprehensive Income for the 

ii Dividends 
iii Transfer to Retained Earnings 
iv Any Other Change 

Balance as on March 31, 2025 

Reserve and 
Surplus 

5,616.86 

5,616.86 

356.83 

5,973.69 

5,973.69 

256.56 

6,230.25 

(All amounts in Rs. Lacs unless otherwise stated) 

Balance 
1,633.04 

1,633.04 

1,633.04 

(All amounts in Rs. Lacs unless otherwise stated) 

Securities Premium Total 
Account 

1,785.71 

1,785.71 

1,785.71 

1,785.71 

1,785.71 

7,402.57 

7,402.57 

356.83 

7,759.40 

7,759.40 

256.56 

8,015.96 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 

~-

Membership No.519011 

(Company Secretary) 
Membership No.72963 

Uddhav Rathi 
(Whole Time Director and CFO) 

DIN No: 06604905 

Rathi 

( g g rector) 

DIN No: 00063345 

Place : New Delhi 

Date : 29/05/2025 
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RA THI BARS LIMITED 

NOTE-1 

General Information 

Rathi Bars Limited ("the Company") is a publicly listed limited company incorporated and domiciled in 
India under the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act"). The registered office of the Company is located at A -
24 I 7, Mohan Co-Operative Industrial Estate, Mathura Road, New Delhi 110044. The Company's 
equity shares are listed at Bombay Stock Exchange (BSE). 

The primary activities of the Company involve the manufacturing, marketing, branding, and distribution 
of TMT Bars and Low Carbon Billets under the brand name Rathi Shaktiman. To cater to the increasing 
demand for reinforcement steel bars in the construction sector, the Company has established a steel 
rolling mill in Khushkhera, Distt. Alwar, Rajasthan. 

The standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025, were duly approved and 
authorized by the Board of Directors during their meeting held on May 29, 2025. 

NOTE-2 

BASIS OF PREPARATION, MEASUREMENT AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

1. Basis of Preparation, Measurement: 

These standalone financial statements ('financial statements') of the Company have been prepared in 
accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting 
Standards ('Ind AS') specified under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 ('the Act') and other 
relevant provisions of the Act. The Company has uniformly applied the accounting policies during the 
periods presented. 

The financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees which is also the functional currency of the 
Company. 

All assets and liabilities have been classified as current or noncurrent as per the Company's normal 
operating cycle and other criteria as set out in the Division II of Schedule III to the Companies Act, 
2013. Based on the nature of products and the time between acquisition of assets for processing and 
their realisation in cash and cash equivalents, the Company has ascertained its operating cycle as 12 
months for the purpose of current or non-current classification of assets and liabilities. 

STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES: 

a. Basis of Accounting: 

These financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention on the accrual basis. 
The financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees which is the Company's functional and 
presentation currency. 

b. Revenue Recognition: 

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable. The Company 
recognizes revenues on sale of products, net of discounts, rebates granted, returns, GST and duties when 
the products are delivered to customer or when delivered to a carrier, which is when significant risks 
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and rewards of ownership pass to the customer. Revenue from sale of by-products are included m 
revenue. 

c. Property, Plant & Equipment: 

On transition to Ind AS, the Company has adopted optional exception under Ind AS 101 to measure 
Property, Plant and Equipment at carrying value under previous GAAP. Consequently the carrying 
value has been assumed to be deemed cost of Property, Plant and Equipment on the date of transition. 

Subsequently Property, Plant and Equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and 
impairment losses, if any. Costs include costs of acquisitions or constructions including incidental 
expenses thereto, borrowing costs, and other attributable costs of bringing the asset to its working 
condition for its intended use and are net of available duty/tax credits. 

Subsequent expenditure relating to property, plant and equipment is capitalized only when it is probable 
that future economic benefits associated with these will flow to the Company and the cost of the item 
can be measured reliably. 

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are 
reviewed at each financial year end and adjusted prospectively. 

d. Capital work-in-progress: 

Expenditure related to and incurred on implementation of new/expansion-cum-modernisation and up 
gradation of projects is included under capital work-in-progress until the relevant assets are ready for its 
intended use. 

e. Intangible Assets : 

Intangible assets as defined IND AS 38, are initially measured at cost. Intangible assets acquired in a 
business combination are recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. Subsequently, intangible assets 
are carried at cost less any accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses, if any. The 
useful lives of intangible assets are assessed as either finite or indefinite. 

f. Depreciation: 

Depreciation is systematically allocated over the useful life of an asset as specified m Pa11 C of 
Schedule II of Companies Act, 2013. 

g. Financial Assets & Financial Liabilities: 

Financial assets are recognised when the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the 
instrument. 
Financial liabilities are recognised when the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of 
the instrument 

h. Inventories: 

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. 

Cost of raw materials include cost of purchase and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to 
their present location and condition. Cost of finished goods include cost of direct materials and labour 
and a proportion of manufacturing overheads based on the normal operating capacity. Costs of 
inventories are determined on weighted average basis. 
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Net realisable value represents the estimated selling price for inventories less all estimated costs of 
completion and costs necessary to make the sale. 

i. Provisions: 

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive), as a result 
of past events, and it is probable that an outflow of resources, that can be reliably estimated, will be 
required to settle such an obligation. 

j. Cash and Cash Equivalents: 

Cash and cash equivalents are short-term (three months or less from the date of acquisition), highly 
liquid investments that are readily convertible into cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of 
changes in value. 

k. Retirement and other Employee Benefits: 

i) Defined Contribution Plan 

The company makes defined contribution to provident fund which is recognized in the profit & loss 
account on accrual basis. 

ii) Defined Benefit Plan 

The company's liabilities under payment of Gratuity Act are determined on the basis of actuarial 
valuation made at the end of each financial year using the projected unit credit method. 

I. Taxation: 

i) Tax expense comprises of current and deferred tax. 

ii) Provision for current tax is made on the basis of estimated taxable income for the current accounting 
year in accordance with the Income Tax Act, 1961. 

iii) The deferred tax for timing difference between the books and taxable Income for the year is 
accounted for, using the tax rates and laws have been substantively enacted as on the balance sheet 
date. Deferred tax assets arising from timing difference are recognized to the extent there is 
reasonable certainty that these would be realized in future. 

iv) Deferred tax assets in case of unabsorbed losses and unabsorbed depreciation are recognized only if 
there is virtual certainty that such deferred tax assets can be realized against future taxable profits 

m. Contingent Liabilities: 

Contingent liabilities are disclosed when there is a possible obligation arising from past events, the 
existence of which will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more 
uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Company or a present obligation that arises 
from past events where it is either not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the 
obligation or a reliable estimate of the amount cannot be made. 
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2. Notes on Accounts: 

a. The Company has provided liabilities on account of Defined Benefit Obligation on the basis of 
actuarial valuation as given by actuarial valuer, detailed disclosure in terms oflnd AS 19 (Revised) 
could not be made. However, in the opinion of the management, the amount is not material and 
defined benefit obligation has been provided. 

b. Current Liabilities & Provisions: 

i) Sundry creditors include Rs 3.22 lacs (31st March, 2024: Rs 3.02 lacs) due to Micro, Small 
& Medium Enterprises (MSME Units) as identified by the Company and relied upon by the 
auditors. 

ii) The company has not received few intimations from "Suppliers" regarding their status under 
the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 and thus accordingly 
disclosures, if any, relating to amounts unpaid as at the year-end together with interest 
paid/payable as required under the said Act have been provided. 

c. Payment to Auditors in respect of: 

A Audit Fees 

Fee for Limited Review 

C Out of Pocket Expenses 

Year ended 
on 31st March, 2025 

Rs 2.00 Lacs 

Rs 0.40 Lacs 

Rs 0.10 Lacs 

d. Expenditure in Foreign Currency: 

Store & Spares 
Tour & travelling 

Year ended 
on 31st March, 2025 

Rs.---­
Rs. ----

e. Related Party disclosure, as required in IND AS 24 : 

Year ended 
on 31st March, 2024 

Rs 1.50 Lacs 

Rs 0.40 Lacs 

Rs 0.10 Lacs 

Year ended 
on 31st March, 2024 

Rs. 
Rs. 

All the transactions between all related parties are on arm's length price and in due course of normal 
business. 

List of Related Parties and relationship: 

I.Key Managerial Person: 
• Bharti Chitkara (Company Secretary) 
• Anurag Rathi (Managing Director) 
• Uddhav Rathi (WTD and CFO) 
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2. Close members of Key Managerial Person: 
• Pushpa Rathi 
• Nandita Rathi 
• Vanshika Rathi 
• Parnika Rathi 
• Devanshi Rathi 

3.Enterprises over which Key Management Personnel and their relatives exercise 
significant influence and with whom transactions have taken place during the 
year. 

• Rathi Special Steels Ltd 
• Bhiwadi Iron Pvt Ltd 
• Khushkhera Steels Pvt Ltd 
• Anurag Rathi HUF 
• Anupam Rathi HUF 
• Vasudev Exports Pvt Ltd 
• Parnika Leasing and Finance Pvt Ltd 
• Sarveshwar Cereals Pvt Ltd 
• Uddhav Leasing and Finance Pvt Ltd 
• Rathi Overseas Pvt Ltd 

Transaction with Related Parties: 
Rs in Lacs 

Enterprises 

Key Management Close Family 
controlled by key 

Description Personnel Members (relative) 
management 
personnel & their 
relatives 

2024-25 2023-24 2024-25 2023-24 2024-25 2023-24 
Purchase of goods 535.83 3331.42 

Sale of goods 4386.94 2621.72 

Expense of service 4.94 11.44 
received 

Income from service 3.00 3.00 
rendered 

Remuneration paid 46.04 47.30 38.40 84.00 
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f. Earning Per Share (EPS): 

Profit after taxation as per Profit and Loss Account (in Lacs) 
11 Weighted Average number of equities shares outstanding (in Lacs) 
111 Basic and Diluted earnings per share (in Rs) 

g. Break-up of deferred Tax Liabilities is given as under: 

Year ended 
on 31st March, 2025 

256.56 
163.30 

1.57 

Particulars As on 31.03.2025 As on 31.03.2024 
(Amt. in Rs Lacs) (Amt. in Rs Lacs) 

Depreciation 
Carried Forward unabsorbed depreciation & 
Losses 

h. Contingent liabilities not provided for: 

461.03 424.68 

461.03 424.68 

Claims against the Company not acknowledged as debts (to the extent ascertained) in respect of 
various demands including Penalty etc. raised, which in the opinion of the management are not 
tenable are under appeal at various stages: 

Income Tax Matters 
GST Matters 

Year ended 
on 31st March, 2025 

Rs.19.68 Lacs 
Rs.11.11 Lacs 

Year ended 
on 31st March, 2024 

Rs. 19.68 Lacs 
Rs. 5 .96 Lacs 

i. The figures of previous year have been re-arranged/re-grouped wherever felt necessary. 
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RA THI BARS LIMITED 

K. RATIOS 
The ratios for the years ended March 31, 2025 and March 31, 2024 are as follows: 

Numerator 
I 

Denominator 2024-25 I 2023-24 % of variation 
I I 

Current Ratio Current Assets 1 Current Liabilities ' 1.721 1.90 -9.39% 
Reason of variance-Due to increase in short term borrrowings and decrease in loans & advances. 

I 

Debt Equity Ratio Total Debt Shareholder's 0.85 i 0.71 19.90% 
1Equity I 

I 

Reason of variance-Not required to mention as variance is less than 25% 
' I l i 

Debt Service Coverage Ratio Earning available for 1 Debt Service ' 1.24 j 1.68 • -26.32% 
debt services ! 

I 
I 

i 
Reason of variance-Due to increase in tax expense resulting in decrease in net profit after tax as compared to last year. 

Return on Equity Ratio Net profit after taxes Avg. Shareholders i 2.69% 3.87% -30.42% I . 
I !Equity 

Reason of variance-Decrease in net profit after tax and due to decrease in revenue from operations. 

I 

Inventory Turnover Ratio Cost of Goods sold Average Inventory I 5.39 6.04 -10.74% 
Reason of variance-Not required to mention as variance is less than 25% 

I 

I 
Trade Receivables Turnover Ratio Revenue 'Average Trade 5.83 8.08 -27.80% 

Receivables 
Reason of variance-Due to increase in trade receivables and decrease in revenue. 

Trade Payables Turnover Ratio Purchases of services Average Trade 57.99 60.90 -4.77% 
and other expenses Payables ! 

' I I 

j I 
Net Capital Turnover Ratio Revenue IWorking Capital I 7.98 9.71 , -17.76% 
Reason of variance-Not required to mention as variance is less than 25% 

I I 

Net Profit Ratio Net Profit 1Revenue 0.52% 0.58% -11.25% Reason of variance-Not required to mention as variance is less than 25% 

I i 
Return on Capital employed Earning before I Capital Employed 9.23% ' 9.42% -1.97% 

I interest and taxes I I 
Reason of variance-Not required to mention as variance is less than 25% 

I I Return on Investment Return /Profit/ Investment 

I 0.00%' 127.99%1 
Earnings I 

Reason of variance-No return on investment this year due to no investment being disposed off this year. 



80
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L. Other Statutory Information: 
The Group does not have any Benarni property, where any proceeding has been initiated or pending against the Group for holding any Benami property, 

ii The Group does not have any charges or satisfaction which is yet to be registered with ROC beyond the statutory period, 

iii The Group has not traded or invested in Crypto currency or Virtual Currency during the financial year, 

iv The Group has not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Intermediaries) with the understanding that the Intermediary shall; 
a. directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the company (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or, 
b. provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries. 

v The Group has not received any fund from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Funding Party) with the understanding (whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that the Company shall: 
a. directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or, 
b. provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries, 

vi The Group has no such transaction which is not recorded in the books of accounts that has been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (such as, search or survey) or any other relevant provisions of the Income Ta," Act. 1961. 
vii The Group has not been declared as wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution (as defined under the Companies Act, 2013) or consortium thereof, in accordance with the guidelines on wilful defaulters issued by the Reserve Bank oflndia. 

viii The Group does not have any transactions with Companies struck off. 
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RATHI BARS LIMITED 

3. QUANTITATIVE INFORMATION: 
A. PRODUCTION & PURCHASE 

As at 
Particulars 31.03.2025 

1. Licensed Capacity Steel Bars 1,00,000.000 MT 
Ingot/ Billets 68,500.000 MT 

2. Actual Production & Purchase 
Steel Bars 92,836.455 MT 
Billets / Casting ** 9,608.025 MT 

TOTAL 1,02,444.480 MT 

"92836.455 M.T. Includes 31712.17 M.T. Trading Purchase of Steel Bars (Previous Year: 33891.690 M.T.) 
""9608 025 MT. Includes 9608 025 M.T. Trading Purchase (Previous Year 10127.805 M.T.) 

B. STOCKS 

Particulars Opening Stock 
As at 01.04.2024 As at 01.04.2023 As at 31.03.2025 

QTY AMOUNT QTY. AMOUNT QTY. AMOUNT 
(in MT) (in Rs) (in MT) (in Rs) (in MT) (in Rs) 

Steel Bars 1,496.830 8, 16,58,064 1,585.581 8,73,65,513 620.860 3,51,64,269 

TOTAL 1,496.830 8, 16,58,064 1,585.581 8,73,65,513 620.860 3,51,64,269 

C. DESPATCH 
Particulars As at 31.03.2025 

QTY AMOUNT 
(in MT) (in Rs) 

Steel Bars* 93,712.425 4,49,56, 12,845 .. 
Billets / Casting 9,608.025 39,74,73,583 
Scrap, Commission etc -
TOTAL 1,03,320.450 4,89,30,86,428 

93712.425 M.T. Includes 31712.17 M.T. Trading Sale of Steel Bars (Previous Year: 33891.690 M.T.) .. 
9608.025 M.T. Includes Nil M.T. Used For Capative Consumption (Previous Year: Nil M.T.) 

As at 

31.03.2024 

1,00,000.000 MT 

68,500.000 MT 

1, 15,556.799 MT 

10,127.805 MT 

1,25,684.604 MT 

Closing Stock 

As at 31.03.2024 

QTY AMOUNT 
(in MT) (in Rs) 

1,496.830 8, 16,58,064 

1,496.830 8, 16,58,064 

As at 31.03.2024 

QTY. AMOUNT 
(in MT) (in Rs) 

1, 15,645.550 5, 76,62, 18,436 
10,127.805 25,78,06,086 

-
1,25, 773.355 6,02,40,24,522 
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D. CONSUMPTION 

Particulars As at 31.03.2025 As at 31.03.2024 

QTY AMOUNT QTY. AMOUNT 
(in MT) (in Rs) (in MT) (in Rs) 

Ingots/ Billets* 65,117.390 2,98, 15,84, 132 79,477.860 3, 72, 13,36, 187 
Stores & Spares - 95, 15,665 - 87,22,957 

I 
TOTAL 65,117.390 2,99, 10,99,797 79,477.860 3,73,00,59, 144 

Note : All Raw Material, Stores & Spares are indigenous. 

For MASAR & Co. 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 

Partner 

Membership No.519011 

UDIN :2551 qo11 t3MLI r=z.eq13 

Place : New Delhi 

Date : 29/05/2025 

(Company Secretary) 

Membership No.72963 

Uddhav Rathi 

(Whole Time Director and CFO) 

DIN No: 06604905 

~~-
(Managing Director) 

DIN No: 00063345 
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RATHI BARS LIMITED 

Note-3 
. Non Current Assets - Property, plant and equipment 

Particulars GROSS BLOCK DEPRECIATION NET BLOCK As at Addition Deletion As at Up to Addition Deduction Up to As at As at 01.04.2024 31.03.2025 31.03.2024 31.03.2025 31.03.2025 31.03.2024 (Rs in Lacs) (Rs in Lacs) (Rs in Lacs) (Rs in Lacs) (Rs in Lacs) (Rs in Lacs) (Rs in Lacs) (Rs in Lacs) (Rs in Lacs) (Rs in Lacs) 
Leashold Land 39.21 - 39.21 - - - - 39.21 39.21 Building 443.64 - 443.64 363.57 7.61 - 371.18 72.46 80.07 Plant & Machinery 9,727.44 638.63 10,366.07 6,172.80 377.42 - 6,550.22 3,815.85 3,554.64 Tubewell 2.22 - 2.22 2.11 - - 2.11 0.11 0.11 Furniture 25.28 0.35 25.63 20.87 1.18 - 22.05 -3.58 4.41 Vehicle 358.19 160.34 - 518.53 224.53 89.81 - 314.34 204.19 133.66 

10,595.98 799.32 - 11,395.30 6,783.88 476.02 - 7,259.90 4,135.40 3,812.10 CWIP 691.26 449.94 638.05 503.15 - - - - 503.15 691.26 Total 11,287.24 1,249.26 638.05 11,898.45 6,783.88 476.02 - 7,259.90 4,638.55 4,503.36 Previous Year 11,209.01 170.66 92.42 11,287.25 6,354.97 449.06 20.15 6,783.87 4,503.37 4,854.04 

Capital Work in Progress Ageing Schedule 
Amount in CWIP for a period of As at As at 

31.03.2025 31.03.2024 
(Rs in Lacs) (Rs in Lacs) 

Less than 1 Year 449.94 23.86 
1-2 Years 53.21 667.40 
2 • 3 Years 

More Than 3 Years 
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Note (4) 
Non-Curent Assets - Financial Assets - Investments 
Particulars 

Investment 

Trade, Quoted: 

Equity shares 

Non Trade, Unquoted: 

Govt. Securities 

National Saving Certificates 

Note (5) 
Non Current Assets - Other non-current assets - Investment in Gold/ Silver 
Particulars 

Other non-current assets 

Investment in Gold I Silver 

Note (6) 

Current Assets - Inventories 
Particulars 

Inventories 

Note (7) 

Finished goods 

Raw material 

Stores & spares 

Coal 

Scrap 

Current assets - Financial Assets -Trade receivables 
Particulars 

Trade receivables (Unsecured) 

Undisputed Trade Receivables - Considered Good 
Less than 6 Months 

6 Months - 1 Year 

1-2 Years 

2 - 3 Years 

More Than 3 Years 

As at 31 March,2025 

(Rs in Lacs) 

7.66 

0.06 

7.72 

As at 31 March,2025 

(Rs in Lacs) 

14.68 

14.68 

As at 31 March,2025 

(Rs in Lacs) 

351.64 

208.00 

594.96 

132.41 

1,287.01 

As at 31 March,2025 

(Rs in Lacs) 

9,708.94 

35.87 

9,744.81 

As at 31 March,2024 

(Rs in Lacs) 

7.66 

0.06 

7.72 

As at 31 March,2024 

(Rs in Lacs) 

14.68 

14.68 

As at 31 March,2024 

(Rs in Lacs) 

816.58 

131.43 

592.96 

28.44 

1,569.41 

As at 31 March,2024 

(Rs in Lacs) 

7,176.59 

102.56 

7,279.15 
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Note (8) 
Current assets - Financial Assets -Cash and cash equivalents 
Particulars 

Cash and cash equivalents 

a Cash in hand 

b Balances with scheduled banks in current accounts 

in current account 

C 

Unclaimed share application money 

Others (Fixed Deposit -Margin Money for LC) 

Note (9) 
Current assets - Financial Assets -Loans and advances 
Particulars 

Loans and advances (Unsecured and considered good unless stated otherwise). 

a Advance recoverable in cash or in kind 

b Balance with excise and other statutory authorities 
Advance Tax & TDS 

Excise Duty Recoverable 

Service Tax credit receivable 

MAT Credit Entitlement 
VAT Credit Receivable 

GST Credit Receivable 

c Security deposits 

Note (10) 
Current assets - Financial Assets -Other Current Assets 
Particulars 

Other Current Assets 

Prepaid expenses 

As at 31 March,2025 

(Rs in Lacs) 

3.26 

0.33 

21.18 

24.77 

As at 31 March,2025 

(Rs in Lacs) 

2,997.70 

125.56 

191.96 

1.26 

35.93 

49.76 

114.82 

275.63 

3,792.62 

As at 31 March,2025 

(Rs in Lacs) 

0.39 

0.39 

As at 31 March,2024 

(Rs in Lacs) 

1.65 

46.17 

1.00 

48.82 

As at 31 March,2024 

(Rs in Lacs) 

3,723.83 

149.09 

191.96 

1.26 

35.93 

49.76 

103.91 

186.26 

4,442.00 

As at 31 March,2024 

(Rs in Lacs) 

4.27 

4.27 
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Note (11) 
Equity - Equity Share Capital 
Particulars 

(a) Authorised Share Capital 

1,80,00,000 Equity Shares of Rs 1 o each 
(Previous Year: 1,80,00,000 Equity Shares of Rs1 O each) 

(b) Issued, Subscribed & Paid-up 
1,63,30,357 Equity Shares (Previous Year: 1,63,30,357 
Equity Shares) of Rs 1 o each Called-up and Fully Paid-up. 

Terms I rights attached to equity shares 

As at 31 March,2025 

(Rs in Lacs) 

1,800.00 

1,633.04 

1,633.04 

As at 31 March,2024 

(Rs in Lacs) 

1,800.00 

1,633.04 

1,633.04 

The Company has only one class of equity shares having par value of Rs.1 O per share. Each holder of the equity share is entitled to one vote per share. 

Details of shares held by shareholders holding more than 5% of the aggregate shares in the Company 
Particulars Percentage of Share No.of Shares As at 31 Percentage of Share No.of Shares As at 31 

Equity shares 
Sh. Anurag Rathi 

Smt. Parnika Rathi 

Sh. Uddhav rathi 

Smt. Pushpa Rathi 

Detail of Promoter Share Holding 
S.No Promoter Name 

ANURAG RATHI 

2 ANURAG RATHI HUF 

3 PUSHPA RATHI 

4 PARNIKA RATHI 

5 NANDITA RATHI 

6 UDDHAV RATHI 

7 ADVIKA RATHI 

8 DEVANSHI RATHI 

9 BHUWNESHWARI LEASING AND FINANCE PVT LTD 
10 UDDHAV INVESTMENTS PRIVATE LIMITED 
11 UDDHAV LEASING AND FINANCE PRIVATE LIMITED 
12 RATHI BREWERIES PRIVATE LIMITED 
13 AMRIT KRISHI FARMS PRIVATE LIMITED 

14 SARVESHWAR CEREALS PRIVATE LIMITED 
15 VASUDEV EXPORTS PRIVATE LIMITED 
16 RATH! OVERSEAS PRIVATE LIMITED 
17 PRANIKA LEASING AND FINANCE PRIVATE LIMITED 
18 PARNIKA INVESTMENTS PRIVATE LIMITED 
19 MARYADA HOLDINGS PRIVATE LIMITED 
20 ELEVENTH HOUR LEASING AND FINANCE PVT LIMITED 
21 PUSHPKAMAL ENTERPRISES PRIVATE LIMITED 

Holding As at 31 March, 2025 Holding As at 31 March, March, 2024 
March, 2024 2024 

7.45% 12,16,751 7.45% 12,16,751 
6.05% 9,88, 109 6.05% 9,88, 109 
5.26% 8,59,330 5.26% 8,59,330 
9.72% 15,86,906 9.72% 15,86,906 

46,51,096 46,51,096 

No.of Shares As at 31 Percentage of Share Holding % Change During the 
March, 2025 As at 31 March, 2025 Year 

12, 16,751 7.45% 

5,07,500 3.11% 

15,86,906 9.72% 

9,88, 109 6.05% 

77,269 0.47% 

8,59,330 5.26% 

16,773 0.10% 

16,772 0.10% 

2,75,625 1.69% 

2,16,125 1.32% 

2,77,375 1.70% 

4,32,445 2.65% 

4,63,250 2.84% 

6,57,825 4.03% 

5, 10,475 3.13% 

6,56,250 4.02% 

2,64,250 1.62% 

6,69,375 4.10% 

1,71,675 1.05% 

3,71,875 2.28% 

2,17,157 1.33% 
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Note (12) 

Equity - Other Equity 
Particulars 

Other Equity 

a Profit & loss account 

Opening Balance 

Add- Surplus as per Profit & loss A/C 

Add- MAT Credit 

b Securities Premium Account 

Note (13) 

Non Current Liabilities - Financial Liabilities - Borrowings 
Particulars 

Borrowings 

a Term Loan 
HDFC Bank Ltd., New Delhi.(Against Equitable Mortage of 
land & Building, Exclusive Charge on Plant & Machineries & 
guaranteed by Executive Directors) 

b Automobile Loans (Secured by Hypothecation of relevent Vehicle) 

HDFC Bank 

BMW India Financial Services Pvt. Lid. 

Toyota Financial Services Ltd 

Mercedes Benz Financial Services 

As at 31 March,2025 

(Rs in Lacs) 

5,973.69 

256.56 

6,230.25 

6,230.25 

1,785.71 

8,015.96 

As at 31 March,2025 

(Rs in Lacs) 

468.52 

78.80 

67.51 

122.13 

736.96 

As at 31 March,2024 

(Rs in Lacs) 

5,616.86 

356.83 

5,973.69 

5,973.69 

1,785.71 

7,759.40 

As at 31 March,2024 

(Rs in Lacs) 

813.21 

75.06 

15.23 

87.81 

0 

991.31 
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RATHI BARS LIMITED 
Note (14) 

Non Current Liabilities -Provisions 
Particulars 

Provisions 

Note (15) 

Provision for Leave Encashment 

Provision for Gratuity 

Current Liabilities - Financial Liabilities -Borrowings 

Particulars 

Borrowings 

a Working Capital Limits 

HDFC Bank Ltd. 
(Secured by hypothecation of stock & Book debts and Guaranted by Executive Directors) 

Yes Bank Ltd. 
(Secured by hypothecalion of stock & Book debts and Guaranted by Executive Directors) 

b Term Loan 

C 

Note (16) 

HDFC Bank Ltd., New Delhi.(Against Equitable Mortage of land & Building, 
Exclusive Charge on Plant & Machineries & guaranteed by Executive Directors) 

Automobile Loans (Secured by Hypothecation of relevent Vehicle) 

HDFC Bank (Auto Loan) 

Daimler Financial Services India Pvt. Ltd. 

BMW India Financial Services Pvt. Ltd. 
Toyota Financial Services Ltd 
Mercedes Benz Financial Services 

Current Liabilities - Financial Liabilities - Trade payables 
Particulars 

Trade payables 

a Due to Micro and Small Enterprises (See Notes on 
Accounts- , Note-2, item 3b ( i )) 

Less than 1 Year 

1-2 Years 

2 - 3 Years 

More Than 3 Years 

b Due to Others 

Less than 1 Year 

1-2 Years 

2 - 3 Years 

More Than 3 Years 

As at 31 March,2025 

(Rs in Lacs) 

21.47 

27.44 

48.91 

As at 31 March,2025 

(Rs in Lacs) 

6,057.71 

992.66 

344.69 

30.76 

20.30 

15.14 

7,461.26 

As at 31 March,2025 

(Rs in Lacs) 

3.22 

755.43 

758.65 

As at 31 March,2024 

(Rs in Lacs) 

20.22 

26.58 

46.80 

As at 31 March,2024 

(Rs in Lacs) 

5,044.78 

566.39 

28.49 

5.92 

18.68 

5,664.26 

As at 31 March,2024 

(Rs in Lacs) 

3.02 

885.96 

888.98 
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Note (17) 

Current Liabilities - Other current liabilities 
Particulars 

Other current liabilities 

Note (18) 

Advance received from customers 

Statutory dues (including provident fund and tax deducted at source) 
Other payables (including employee dues & Dues with in one year) 

Current Liabilities - Provisions 

Particulars 

Provisions 

Note (19) 

Provision for Leave Encashment 

Provision for Gratuity 

Revenue - Revenue from operations 

Particulars 

Revenue from operations (Including excise duty) 

Sale of Steel Bars 

Sale of Billets / Casting 
Other operating revenues 

Note (20) 
Revenue - Other Income 

Particulars 

Other Income 

Interest received on deposits 

Miscellaneous Receipts 

As at 31 March,2025 

(Rs in Lacs) 

19.45 

79.11 

287.10 

385.66 

As at 31 March,2025 

(Rs in Lacs) 

4.41 

4.67 

9.08 

Year 

2024-25 

(Rs in Lacs) 

44,956.13 

3,974.74 

697.95 

49,628.82 

Year 

2024-25 

(Rs in Lacs) 

11.82 

129.95 

141.77 

As at 31 March,2024 

(Rs in Lacs) 

56.40 

98.54 

299.27 

454.21 

As at 31 March,2024 

(Rs in Lacs) 

3.35 

3.39 

6.74 

Year 

2023-24 

(Rs in Lacs) 

57,662.18 

2,578.06 

1,163.28 

61,403.52 

Year 

2023-24 

(Rs in Lacs) 

8.83 

24.89 

33.72 
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RATHI BARS LIMITED 
Note (21) 
Expenses - Cost of materials consumed 

Particulars 

Cost of materials consumed 

a Ingots I Billets 
Opening stock 

Add: Purchases 

Less: Closing stock 

Material Consumed 

Note (22) 
Expenses - Changes in inventories of finished goods, Work-in-progress and Stock-in-Trade 
Particulars 

Changes in inventories 

a OPENING STOCK 

Finished goods 

Scrap 

b CLOSING STOCK 

Finished goods 

Scrap 

C (Increase)/ Decrease in stocks 

Note (23) 
Expenses - Employee benefits expense 

Particulars 

Employee benefits expense 

a contribution to provident fund and other funds 

b Employees welfare 

c Production contract Expenses 

d Salaries, wages, bonus & other allowances 

(I) 

(II) 

(I - II) 

Year 

2024-25 

(Rs in Lacs) 

131.43 

29,892.41 

208.00 

29,815.84 

Year 

2024-25 

(Rs in Lacs) 

816.58 

28.44 

845.02 

351.64 

132.41 

484.05 

360.97 

Year 

2024-25 

(Rs in Lacs) 

6.95 

38.62 

185.95 

288.23 

519.75 

Year 

2023-24 

(Rs in Lacs) 

87.56 

37,257.23 

131.43 

37,213.36 

Year 

2023-24 

(Rs in Lacs) 

873.66 

103.33 

976.99 

816i58 

28.44 

845.02 

131.97 

Year 

2023-24 

(Rs in Lacs) 

1.71 

37.44 

191.55 

332.06 

562.76 
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RATHI BARS LIMITED 
Note (24) 
Expenses - Finance costs 

Particulars Year Year 

2024-25 2023-24 

(Rs in Lacs) (Rs in Lacs) 

Finance costs 

Interest on : 

Cash Credit 482.21 401.95 
Term Loan 129.45 159.78 
Others 14.62 

Bank Charges 38.32 36.95 

649.98 613.30 

Note (25) 
Expenses - Other expenses 

Particulars Year Year 

2024-25 2023-24 

(Rs in Lacs) (Rs in Lacs) 

Other expenses 

Administrative charges 0.20 0.22 
Advertisement & Selling Expenses 0.80 1.41 
Auditor's fees 2.50 2.00 
Corporate Social responsibility 5.14 3.57 
Directors salary 39.60 41.15 
Directors Sitting Fees 1.31 1.50 
Freight & cartage 14.01 14.29 
General expenses 9.28 14.88 
Generator Running Expenses 0.09 0.12 
Insurance 11.61 10.39 
Investment Written Off 4.18 
Legal & professional charges 65.23 65.84 
Listing Expenses 0.53 0.55 
Postage expenses 0.39 0.28 
Power and Fuel 661.01 1,033.90 
Printing & stationery 1.63 1.12 
Rates, taxes & fees 13.97 10.59 
Rent 28.00 0.18 
Repair and Maintenance: 

Plant & Machinery 14.06 12.51 
Buildings 7.00 1.62 
Others 8.64 7.56 

Sales Promotion 

Security service charges 6.17 2.39 
Stores and Spares Consumed 95.16 87.23 
Telephone expenses 0.64 1.02 
Travelling & conveyance 29.58 22.82 
Treds Charges 406.34 228.84 
Vehicles repair & maintenance 9.07 12.61 

1,431.96 1,583.62 
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